LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE PERMITTED

Due to the Novel Coronavirus pandemic and the ongoing state of emergency, in-person attendance at this
Council meeting by members of the general public will be limited. Attendance will be limited to twenty
percent of the stated maximum occupancy, which equates to thirty-four (34) persons (including Council
members, other elected officials, and staff). Attendees will be required to sit in designated seats,
appropriately spaced. In-person attendance will be allowed on a “first-come” basis.

Additionally, to ensure the meeting otherwise remains open to the public, we will continue to broadcast it
live on the County’s YouTube channel, which can be found via the County’s website at Oconeesc.com.
Further, the public may call in and listen by dialing 888-475-4499 OR 877-853-5257 and entering
meeting ID # 873 2187 5061. And, individuals parked in close proximity to Council Chambers may listen
to the meeting on FM 92.3.

AGENDA
OCONEE COUNTY
CONSERVATION BANK BOARD
April 6, 2021
9:00 AM

Oconee County Administrative Offices
Council Chambers, 415 South Pine Street, Walhalla, SC

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Minutes
e March 2, 2021

3. Treasurer’s Report
e February 2021  [Community First Bank & Local Government Investment Pool]

4, Fundraising and Public Relations Reports  [to include Vote and/or Action on matters brought up
for discussion, if required]

5. Discussion Items  [to include Vote and/or Action on matters brought up for discussion, if required]
e Discussion and/or action regarding OCCB Grant Agreement
e Discussion and/or action regarding amending Policy 0002, Bank Account & Policy
0003, Grant Procedures
e Discussion and/or action regarding pending grants
e Discussion and/or action regarding applications submitted by the April 1% deadline

6. Adjourn

There will not be any Public Comment session at this meeting.

BOARD MEMBERS
Andrew Smith, Chairman, District |1 Emily Hitchcock, Vice-Chairman, At-Large
Laura Havran, Treasurer, District | Ryan Keese, Secretary, District 111
Nicholas Gambrell, District IV Scuddy Walker, District V
Charles VanOver, At-Large
Oconee County Conservation Bank Board Agenda Page 1 of 1
April 6, 2021



OCONEE CODE OF ORDINANCES

Sec. 2-61. - Access to and conduct at county meetings, facilities and property.

(a) Purpose. The county council has determined that it is necessary to regulate access to county
facilities, grounds and property in order to ensure the safety and security of the public who visit these
areas or the county employees who serve them. The conduct of persons who visit county facilities
and/or who have contact with county employees must also be regulated to preserve public order,
peace and safety. The regulation of access and conduct must be balanced with the right of the public
to have reasonable access to public facilities and to receive friendly, professional service from
county employees. These regulations apply to all county facilities and meetings, as defined below,
for and over which county council exercises control and regulation, and to the extent, only, not pre-
empted by state or federal law.

(b) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different
meaning:

Facility means any building, structure, or real property owned, leased, rented, operated or occupied
by the county or one of its departments, offices or agencies.

Meeting means any assemblage of persons for the purpose of conducting county governmental
business, operations or functions or any assemblage of persons within a county governmental facility.
The term "meeting" includes, but is not limited to, county council meetings, county board and committee
and staff meetings, trials, hearings and other proceedings conducted in the courts of general sessions
and common pleas, family court, master-in-equity, probate court and magistrate's court; and other
meetings by entities duly authorized by the county council.

(c) Prohibited acts. It shall be unlawful for any person to:

(1) Utter loud, obscene, profane, threatening, disruptive or abusive language or to engage in any
disorderly or disruptive conduct that impedes, disrupts or disturbs the orderly proceedings of
any meeting, or operations of any department or function of the county government, including,
without limitation, speaking when not explicitlly recognized and authorized to do so by the
presiding official in such meeting.

(2) Bring, carry, or otherwise introduce any firearm, knife with blade longer than two inches or
other dangerous weapon, concealed or not concealed, into any facility or meeting. This
prohibition does not apply to law enforcement personnel or any other person whose official,
governmental duties require them to carry such firearm, knife, or other weapon.

(3) Engage in partisan political activity, including speech, in any meeting not authorized and called
for the purpose of partisan political activity and explicitly authorized for such purpose in the
facility in which such activity is to be conducted, or refusing to cease such activity when the
presiding official of the meeting in question has ruled that the activity in question is partisan
political activity and has directed that such activity stop.

(4) Interfere with, impede, hinder or obstruct any county governmental official or employee in the
performance of his duties, whether or not on county government property.

(5) Enter any area of a county government facility, grounds or property when such entry is
prohibited by signs, or obstructed or enclosed by gates, fencing or other physical barriers. Such
areas include rooms if clearly marked with signs to prohibit unauthorized entry.

(6) Enter by vehicle any area of a county governmental facility, grounds or property when such
area is prohibited by signs or markings or are obstructed by physical barriers; or park a vehicle
in such restricted areas; or park in @ manner to block, partially block or impede the passage of
traffic in driveways; or park within 15 feet of a fire hydrant or in a fire zone; or park in any area
not designated as a parking space; or park in a handicapped parking space without proper
placarding or license plate; or park in a reserved parking space without authorization.



(d)

(7) Use any county governmental facility, grounds or other property for any purpose not authorized
by law or expressly permitted by officials responsible for the premises.

(8) Enter without authorization or permission or refuse to leave any county governmental facility,
grounds or other property after hours of operation.

(9) Obstruct or impede passage within a building, grounds or other property of any county
governmental facility.

(10) Enter, without legal cause or good excuse, a county governmental facility, grounds or property
after having been warned not to do so; or, having entered such property, fail and refuse without
legal cause or good excuse to leave immediately upon being ordered or requested to do so by
an official, employee, agent or representative responsible for premises.

(11) Damage, deface, injure or attempt to damage, deface or injure a county governmental
property, whether real property or otherwise.

(12) Enter or attempt to enter any restricted or nonpublic ingress point or any restricted access
area, or bypass or attempt to bypass the designated public entrance or security checkpoint of a
facility without authorization or permission.

(13) Perform any act which circumvents, disables or interferes with or attempts to circumvent,
disable or interfere with a facility’s security system, alarm system, camera system, door lock or
other intrusion prevention or detection device. This includes, without limitation, opening,
blocking open, or otherwise disabling an alarmed or locked door or other opening that would
allow the entry of an unauthorized person into a facility or restricted access area of the facility.

(14) Exit or attempt to exit a facility through an unauthorized egress point or alarmed door.

Penally for violation of section. Any person violating the provisions of this section shall be deemed
guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished in accordance with section 1-7. In
addition, vehicles that are improperly parked on any county property, facility, or other premises may
be towed at the owner's expense.

(Ord. No. 2003-04, §§ 1—4, 4-15-2003; Ord. No. 2012-06, § 1, 4-3-2012)



OCONEE COUNTY
CONSERVATION BANK BOARD

415 South Pine Street
Walhalla, SC 29691
c/o Clerk to Council

Treasurer’s Report
Community First Bank Account; *####%%] g3

Period Ending: February 28, 2021

Month Opening Balance $4.,420.00
DEPOSITS
Deposit $0.00

EXPENDITURES
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0.00

BALANCE IN ACCOUNT
AS OF PERIOD ENDING DATE $4,420.00

Report Submitted by: %%//%‘/Q%)

Laura Havran A ngf /, 45,//2'///1
Oconee County Conservation Bank Board Treasurer
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OCONEE COUNTY
CONSERVATION BANK BOARD

415 South Pine Street
Walhalla, SC 29691
c/o Clerk to Council

Treasurer’s Report
Local Government Investment Pool

Period Ending: February 28, 2021

Month Opening Balance $344.292 41
DEPOSITS

Reinvestments [Interest] $36.54
EXPENDITURES

$0.00
BALANCE IN ACCOUNT
AS OF PERIOD ENDING DATE $344,328.95
Report Submitted by ///%//- f(./ 2/ )
“Laura Havran é vt ;% very

Oconee County Conservation Bank Board Treasurer
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Record and Return:

Oconee County Conservation Bank
415 S. Pine Street

Walhalla, SC 29691

SOUTH CAROLINA )
) GRANT AGREEMENT
OCONEE COUNTY )

WHEREAS, the Oconee County Council approved the Oconee County Conservation
Bank’s (the “OCCB”) recommendation for grant funding to

(the “Grantee”) on 20
in the amount of
and 00/100 Dollars ($ .00) (the “Grant Funds”) for the fee simple purchase
of or the placement of a conservation easement on the tract of land described in Exhibit A

(the “Property”) for the purpose of permanently conserving the Property;

WHEREAS, the OCCB’s award was effected pursuant to Sections 2-398 through 2-409
of the Oconee County Code of Ordinances (the “Conservation Bank Ordinance”);

WHEREAS, the Conservation Bank Ordinance requires the Grantee to enter into a Grant
Agreement to ensure that the Property is permanently conserved in accordance with
Conservation Bank Ordinance, the Grantee’s Application for funding, and this Grant Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, Sections 2-404 and 2-405 of the Conservation Bank Ordinance require that
a) Grantee enter into this Grant Agreement and b) the County and the OCCB be indemnified in
the amount of the Grant Funds in the event of improperly used OCCB funding, title issues or
defects, or other issues referenced in Section 2-405.

NOW, THEREFORE, the County, the OCCB, and the Grantee agree that by signing
this Agreement and accepting any of the Grant Funds, the following shall apply:

1. Grant Award. The OCCB hereby awards funding in the amount of
and 00/100 Dollars ( .00) to Grantee for
the acquisition of real estate interests for the conservation purposes set forth in the
Conservation Bank Ordinance, this Grant Agreement, and Grantee’s Application for
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Funding, which was received by the OCCB on 20 . All
representations made by Grantee in the Application and during the review and consideration
of the Application by the OCCB and Council are incorporated into this Grant Agreement.

General Terms of Grant.
Grantee:
Project/Property:
Fee Simple or Conservation Easement:
Date Approved by the OCCB:
Date Approved by Oconee County Council:
Date Grant Award Accepted by Grantee:
Total Grant Amount:

Proportional Per Acre Percent of Fair Market Value:
Closing Deadline:
Title Insurance Provider:

o Se@ e a0 o

Failure to Close. The failure to close by the Closing Deadline, unless a written extension is
granted by the OCCB, shall automatically render the Grant Award null and void.

Use of Grant Funds. The OCCB awarded this Grant in reliance upon the accuracy and
completeness of the Grantee’s Application and supporting documents, and Grantee’s
representations. Grant Funds must only be used for the acquisition of real estate interests for
conservation purposes, including closing costs as allowed by the Conservation Bank
Ordinance. Any material changes to the scope or purpose of the Project arising after
approval by the Oconee County Council must be approved by the OCCB and Council.

Conditions for Disbursement of Grant Funds. Pursuant to the Conservation Bank
Ordinance, the OCCB shall not disburse the Grant Funds until the Grantee provides the
OCCB with the following:

a. An independent certified appraisal of the Property dated within twelve (12) months of the
Grant approval by Council,

b. A certified environmental hazard assessment, unless the Application qualifies as a small
grant application;

c. A final draft of the conservation easement and/or deed;
d. A final draft of the settlement statement;

e. A final draft of the title insurance commitment and exceptions;
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6.

10.

11.

f.  Arecorded by copy of this Grant Agreement signed by the Grantee, and for conservation
easements, by the Landowner; and

g. Any other data, acknowledgement, or documentation requested by the OCCB.
h. The name, address, email address, and phone number of the Closing Attorney and Firm.

The OCCB reserves the right to reject documents that do not comply with the
Conservation Bank Ordinance.

Recorded Grant Agreement. The Grantee shall record the executed Grant Agreement with
the Register of Deeds for Oconee County, South Carolina. A copy of the recorded Grant
Agreement must be submitted to the OCCB in accordance with Paragraph 5f herein.

Delivery of Grant Funds. All approved Grant Funds shall be delivered to the closing
attorney identified by the Grantee after the OCCB approves the documents required in
Paragraph 5.

Discrepancies.

a. Acreage Discrepancies. If the interest in the Property is reduced by 10% or less in
acreage as to that stated in the Application, the OCCB Chair shall have the authority to
reduce the award on a proportional per acre basis. However, a reduction of acreage
exceeding 10% shall be deemed material and will render the Application and Grant
Award null and void.

b. Valuation Discrepancies. The ultimate amount of the Grant Funds shall be based upon the
Conservation Value cited in the appraisal or in the Application, whichever is less.

Closing Deadline. Closing for the Property shall be scheduled no later than the date set forth
in Paragraph 2h or within 30 days of delivery of Grant Funds, whichever is sooner. In the
event that Grantee is not going to close on the Property/Project by the Closing Deadline,
Grantee shall submit to the OCCB, before the Closing Deadline, a written status report
explaining the circumstances, and shall either a) withdraw the Application and acceptance of
the Grant award, or b) request a one-time extension not to exceed six (6) months.

Closing Report. Within sixty (60) days of closing, the Grantee shall submit to the OCCB a
report detailing how the Grant Funds were distributed and the status of the Project.

Monitoring and Inspection. If this Grant Agreement relates to the fee simple transfer of the
Property to the Grantee, the Grantee acknowledges and agrees that Oconee County: a) has
the right to access the Property for the sole purpose of inspecting and monitoring the status of
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

conservation of the Property and b) has the authority to enforce the provisions of this Grant
Agreement and the Conservation Bank Ordinance.

Annual Report. The Grantee shall submit a copy of Grantee’s annual inspections of the
Property to the OCCB within twelve (12) months of the release of Grant Funds. Thereafter,
copies of all future inspection reports must be submitted to the OCCB on an annual basis.
Electronic copies of Grantee’s annual stewardship reports are acceptable. Grantee is required
to give the OCCB notice of any stewardship concern that materially threatens the
conservation purposes of the Grant Award within thirty (30) days of discovery.

Record-Keeping. Grantee shall be responsible for the expenditure of Grant Funds and for
retaining and maintaining documents and records consistent with generally accepted
accounting practices pertaining to the Grant award, acquisition of interests in the Property,
and management and/or status of the conservation of the Property. Grantee’s financial
record-keeping and accounting procedures relating to the administration of the Grant Award
must be made available for examination by the OCCB during normal business hours and if
requested with reasonable notice.

Public Relations. Grantee agrees to coordinate with the OCCB before issuing press releases
or other public statements concerning the Grant Award. The OCCB may issue press releases
without notice to or the consent of the Grantee.

Title Insurance. The Grantee shall obtain and maintain title insurance in the Grantee’s name
to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the total of the
Grant Funds for issues related to the title to the Property

Indemnification Funds. The Grantee shall maintain funds sufficient to indemnify and
reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the total of the Grant Funds for
issues unrelated to title to the Property that impact the conservation of the Property.

Indemnification — Breach of Grant Agreement, Improper Use of Grant Funds. The
Grantee agrees to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the
total of the Grant Funds for deficiencies, claims, damages, or any other liabilities in the event
of the breach of the Grant Agreement or the improper use of Grant Funds.

Indemnification — Section 2-405 (g): In the event the Grantee’s interest in the Property is
extinguished, terminated, sold, transferred, assigned, alienated, or converted and can not be
replaced as required in Subsections 2-405(g) of the Conservation Bank Ordinance, the
Grantee agrees to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in the amount of the
Grant Funds or the Proportional Per Acre Percent of the then current Fair Market Value,
whichever is greater.
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

Indemnification — Hold Harmless. Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the OCCB and Oconee County from and against any loss, cost, or damage of any kind arising
out of the Grantee’s negligence or willful misconduct.

Notification of Breach. The OCCB shall notify the Grantee in writing if the OCCB
determines the Grantee has breached this Agreement; has not made adequate attempts to
fulfill the terms of the Grant Agreement; has made a misrepresentation about the
organization, such as its 501(c)(3) status, or about the Project; files bankruptcy; has
misappropriated Grant Funds; or has otherwise jeopardized the ability of the Property to be
permanently conserved. Grantee shall have thirty (30) days to review and respond to the
OCCB’s determination and if no response is made, the OCCB shall have the unilateral
authority to require that the Grantee reimburse the OCCB in the full amount of the Grant
Award or the Proportional Per Acre Percent of the then current Fair Market Value, whichever
is greater or require other actions, such as transferring the property to a willing and eligible
OCCSB recipient, to ensure the permanent conservation of the Property.

Notification of Intended Transfer of Property Interest. The Grantee agrees to notify the
OCCB of any intended transfer of the Property or any part or interest in the Property,
including the transfer of the Conservation Easement, if any exists, as soon as the Grantee
determines that the transfer is intended and in no even not later than sixty (60) days before
the intended transfer is to occur.

Authority to Prohibit Transfer of Property. The Grantee agree that the OCCB shall have
the unilateral authority to prohibit the transfer of the Property or any part or interest in the
Property, including the transfer of the Conservation Easement, if any exists, if the OCCB
determines that the proposed transfer a) will threaten or jeopardize the permanent
conservation of the Property or b) will not be to a qualified eligible OCCB recipient as that
term as defined and required in the Conservation Bank Ordinance..

Binding Agreement. This Agreement shall bind the Grantee, it successors and assigns, and
shall continue in existence so long as the obligations as described herein and in the
Conservation Bank Ordinance remain in force.

Severance of Provisions. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this
Grant Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of
this Grant Agreement, and this Grant Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal,
or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

Future Grant Support. The OCCB has no obligation to provide any support beyond award
of the Grant, unless otherwise agreed to in writing between the Parties to this Grant
Agreement.
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26.

27.

28.

Governing Law. This Grant Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of South Carolina and the Conservation Bank Ordinance. In carrying out the
Project, Grantee will comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances and
will not infringe, misappropriate, or violate the intellectual property, privacy, or publicity
rights of any third party.

Independence. Nothing contained herein shall create a partnership, joint venture,
employment, agency or fiduciary relationship between the parties. Neither party has the right
or authority to control or direct the activities of the other or the right or ability to bind the
other to any agreement with a third party or to incur any obligation or liability on behalf of
the other party, unless expressly authorized in this Agreement. Neither party to this
Agreement shall be liable to the other party for any consequential, punitive, special or
exemplary damages (including lost profits) resulting from or arising out of any breach of this
Agreement, or any party’s performance under this Agreement.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts (or upon
separate signature pages bound together in one or more counterparts), each executed
counterpart constituting an original agreement, but altogether constituting only one
agreement.  This Agreement may be executed via facsimile or electronic document
(including PDF) signature.

This Grant Agreement is executed by and between Oconee County, South Carolina, the

Oconee County Conservation Bank, the Grantee, its successors and assigns, to wit:

OCONEE COUNTY:
Witness:
Signature
By: Witness:
Its: Date:
Sworn and subscribed before me this Notary Seal:
day of 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:
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GRANTEE:

Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
day of 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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OCONEE COUNTY CONSERVATION BANK:

Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
day of 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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FOR GRANT AGREEMENT RELATING TO A CONSERVATION EASEMENT

LANDOWNER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT

A) THE EXECUTION OF THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT IS A BINDING LEGAL
DOCUMENT THAT PERMANENTLY CONVEYS A PROPERTY INTEREST, AND

B) THE LANDOWNER WILL BE LEGALLY BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THE
CONSERVATION EASEMENT, WHICH WILL BE THE CONTROLLING
DOCUMENT REGARDING WHAT IS AND WHAT IS NOT PERMITTED UPON

THE PROPERTY.

LANDOWNER:

Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
day of 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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Oconee County Conservation Bank

Title: Bank Account
Policy No. 0002

Effective Date: September 15, 2020
Revision Date(s):

Pagel of 2

Attachments: None

Purpose:

This policy governs the procedures used in opening, maintaining, and closing bank
accounts or investment accounts for the Oconee County Conservation Bank.

Definitions:

1. The definitions set forth in Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 9, Section 2-399 of
the Oconee County Code of Ordinances are incorporated by this reference.

2. “Community First account” means the OCCB account at Community First
Bank established by the Board.

3. “Clerk” means the person duly appointed as the Clerk to the Council.

4. “Grant” means the monetary award made to an Eligible OCCB Recipient by
the Council.

5. “State Pool” means Local Government Investment Pool managed by the
State Treasurer pursuant to Sections 6-6-10, 12-45-220, and 11-1-60 of the
1976 Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended.

6. “Treasurer” means the person duly elected as the Treasurer of Oconee
County.

Policy:

1. The Chair and Secretary of the Board shall open an account at Community
First Bank at the Walhalla, SC branch.



Title: Bank Account
Policy No. 0002
Page 2 of 2

2. The name on the Community First account shall be the Oconee County
Conservation Bank with the address as 415 South Pine Street, Walhalla, SC
29691.

3. The Board shall manage the funds in the Community First account on behalf
of the Bank.

4. Disbursements from the Community First account shall require two
signatures. The Chair and Secretary of the Board are designated as the two
persons authorized to disburse funds.

5. The Board may invest all or part of the Bank funds in the State Pool,
considering the need, if any, to maintain funds in the Community First Bank
account.

6. The Treasurer shall manage the funds in the State Pool on behalf of the
Bank.

7. After Council’s approval of a Grant and no later than ten (10) days before
closing, the Clerk shall notify the Treasurer by email and telephone that
funds in the amount of the Grant are to be transferred from the State Pool
to the Community First account.

8. The Treasurer shall disburse funds from the State Pool only as authorized
by the Board or this policy.

9. After disbursement of the funds from the State Pool to the Community First
account and approval of the closing documents, the Chair and the Secretary
of the Board shall disburse funds by wire or certified check to the escrow
account of the closing attorney.



Oconee County Conservation Bank

Title: Grant Procedures
Policy No. 0003

Effective Date: March 2, 2021
Revision Date(s):

Page 1 of 6

Attachments:

Application For Funding
Criteria Worksheet
Evaluation Scoresheet
Grant Agreement
Section 404 Findings

Purpose:

This policy provides guidelines for Applicants and governs the evaluation
procedures used by the Oconee County Conservation Bank Board to process,
award, and monitor grants.

Definitions:

1.

The definitions set forth in Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 9, Section 2-399 of
the Oconee County Code of Ordinances are incorporated by this reference.
“Applicant” means an Eligible OCCB Recipient applying for a grant related
to a specific property.

“Application” or “application” means the attached Application For Funding.
“Blue Line Stream or Lake,” as used in the application, means a stream or
lake that appears as a broken or solid blue line (or a purple line) on a USGS
map.

. “Conservation Value” means either

a. the Fair Market Value of the property for a fee simple acquisition; or
b. the amount the Fair Market Value of the property will be reduced by
the placement of a Conservation Easement on the property.
“Grant Agreement” means a binding contract between the Applicant and
Oconee County that meets the requirements of OCCB Ordinance Section 2-
404(c)(2).
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Policy No. 0003
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7. “Inholding Land” means privately owned property that is 100% surrounded
by Protected Land.

8. “Limited Access” means any public access that is less than access on a year-
round and continual basis, i.e., access by the public for some limited time or
seasonal period(s).

9. “Property/Project Name” means the common or colloquial name used to
identify a specific piece of land or project that is the subject of an
Application. Each Property/Project Name must be unique.

10.“Protected Land” means any land substantially protected from
development or designated as scenic or protected through any federal,
state, or local government law or private action.

11.“Scenic View” means a vista that includes mountain, river, lake, forest,
pasture, agricultural, or other pastoral scenery.

12.“Small grant application” means an application for an interest in land if the
amount requested is less than thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or ten
percent (10%) of the Conservation Value, whichever is less.

13.“Unlimited Access” means any public access on a year-round and continual
basis and, additionally, requires that such access is communicated to the
public.

Policy:
Part One: Application Procedures

1. An Applicant may, but is not required to, submit a letter to the Board
requesting the Board’s examination of land or project that may be the
subject of a future application for a preliminary review.

2. The Board will accept applications on or before April 1%, August 1%, and
November 1° of each calendar year.

3. Applicants may apply for a grant from the OCCB by filing an application
with the Board’s administrative staff on or before the application deadline.
All applications must be submitted in duplicate pursuant to Board Policy
No. 0001 Applicant Privacy. All applications must be submitted in
electronic pdf or similar format.
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4. An application for a grant that does not fall within the jurisdiction of the
OCCB will not be accepted. The Board will inform the Applicant in writing
of the reason for its refusal to accept the application.

5. All applications must meet the mandatory requirements in Section Il of the
application. See OCCB Ordinance Sections 2-404(a)(2), (3), & (6), 2-
404(b)(6), 2-404(c)(3)c, and 2-405(c) & (d).

6. All application attachments must identify the application Section and
Question to which it applies.

7. As part of the application procedure, each applicant is required to provide
documentation of the expertise and financial resources of the entity
enforcing any Conservation Easement or deed restriction, the expertise and
financial resources of the entity managing the property, and a description
of the proposed management plan for the property. Failure to provide
documentation satisfactory to the Board will result in a recommendation to
the Council that the grant application be denied.

8. During the review process, the Board may request additional information
from the Applicant. Failure to provide the requested informationin a
timely manner will result in a delay in processing the application until the
next cycle.

9. Applications will be evaluated utilizing the Criteria Worksheet. The Board
members will reduce their final collective evaluation to a score as set forth
on the Evaluation Scoresheet, which will be attached to the official
minutes.

10.Each application must meet the applicable minimum score to be
recommended for a grant award.

a. Farmland must have a minimum score of 30.

b. Inholding Land must have a minimum score of 22.

c. Non-farmland must have a minimum score of 40.

d. Solely historic or cultural land must have a minimum score of 21.

11.The Board may recommend a grant of up to ten percent (10%) of the

Conservation Value of the project. In extraordinary circumstances and for
good cause, the Board may recommend a grant that is more than 10% of
the Conservation Value of the project.
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12.Within ninety (90) days of each application deadline, the Board will process
all pending applications and submit its recommendations to the Oconee
County Council.

13.The Board’s recommendation to Council shall include the findings required
by OCCB Ordinance 2-404(b)(4) utilizing the Section 2-404 Findings Form.
The Board may delegate the responsibility to prepare the Section 2-404
Findings to a single Board member.

14.Council will take action within thirty (30) days of submission of the Board’s
recommendation.

Part Two: Post Award Procedures

1. The Board shall notify the Applicant of the Council’s decision within ten (10)
days of the Council’s decision.

2. If awarded a grant, the Applicant and Landowner have a period of four (4)
months from the date of the Council’s decision to notify the Board of their
decision to accept the grant.

3. The recipient must execute and record a Grant Agreement within fourteen
(14) days of acceptance of the grant award.

4. The transaction must close within one year of recipient’s notice of
acceptance of award. If recipient is unable to close on the Property/Project
by the Closing Deadline, recipient shall submit to the Board, before the
Closing Deadline, a written status report explaining the circumstances, and
shall either

a. withdraw the Application and acceptance of the Grant award, or
b. request a one-time extension not to exceed six (6) months.

6. If the transaction fails to close, the recipient, Council, and Board will
execute and record a document terminating the Grant Agreement.

7. The following closing documents must be submitted to the Board for
review at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled closing:

a. Anindependent certified appraisal of the Property dated within
twelve (12) months of the Grant approval by Council;

b. A certified environmental hazard assessment, unless the Application
qualifies as a small grant application;
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A final draft of the conservation easement and/or deed;

A final draft of the settlement statement;

A final draft of the title insurance commitment and exceptions;

A recorded by copy of this Grant Agreement signed by the Grantee,

and for conservation easements, by the Landowner; and

g. Any other data, acknowledgement, or documentation requested by
the OCCB.
h. The name, address, email address, and phone number of the Closing
Attorney and Firm.
The Board reserves the right to reject documents that do not comply with
the OCCB Ordinance.

8. The Board will process the grant funds pursuant to Policy No. 0002, Bank
Account.

9. Within sixty (60) days of closing, recipient must provide the Board with
executed closing documents, a report of how the grant funds were
distributed, and the status of the project.

10.If the grant award is for the fee simple purchase of land that will not be
subject to a conservation easement, the property is subject to inspection by
the County and the deed must include the following language:

S D a0

Said premises shall be subject to: the provisions of Sections 2-
398 through 2-409 of the Oconee County, South Carolina Code
of Ordinances, the policies adopted by the Oconee County
Conservation Bank, and the grant agreement executed by the
Grantee and Oconee County, such that the premises shall be
permanently protected for the conservation purposes
described therein.

11.The recipient shall submit a copy of recipient’s annual inspections of the
Property to the OCCB within twelve (12) months of the release of Grant
Funds. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the OCCB on an annual basis. Electronic copies of recipient’s
annual stewardship reports are acceptable. Recipient is required to give
the OCCB notice of any stewardship concern that materially threatens the
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conservation purposes of the Grant Award within thirty (30) days of
discovery.

12.The recipient and the Board shall retain copies of all documents related to
the award of the grant and the acquisition of interests in land.

13.For all grants, a copy of the recipient’s annual inspection of the property
must be submitted to the Board within twelve (12) months of closing on
the property. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the Board on an annual basis. The annual reports shall be in a
format comparable to the annual reports typically required of conservation
easements. Recipients are required to give the Board notice of any
stewardship concerns that materially threatens the conservation purposes
of the grant within thirty (30) days of discovery.

14.All interests in land obtained with OCCB funds may only be assigned from
one eligible OCCB recipient to another eligible OCCB recipient after
approval by the majority of the Board.

15.Any fee simple interest in land acquired with OCCB funds may not be used
for any purpose other than that set forth in the Grant Agreement. If OCCB
funds were used to purchase a Conservation Easement, the Conservation
Easement is the controlling legal document on what is or is not permitted
on the property.

16.The eligible OCCB recipient or the Landowner must notify the Board if a
claim is made against the title to the property.

17. Any interest in land or any portion thereof funded in whole or part by
OCCB funds shall not transferred without the approval of the Board. The
Board shall have the unilateral authority to approve or deny such transfer.

18. If the interest in the Property is reduced or increased by 10% or less in
acreage of that stated in the Application, the Board shall have the authority
to reduce the award on a proportional per acre basis. However, a
reduction or increase of acreage exceeding 10% shall be deemed material
and will render the original grant award and the Grant Agreement null and

void.
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Oconee County Conservation Bank

Title: Grant Procedures
Policy No. 0003

Effective Date: March 2, 2021
Revision Date(s):

Page 10of 6

Attachments:

Application For Funding
Criteria Worksheet
Evaluation Scoresheet
Grant Agreement
Section 404 Findings

Purpose:

This policy provides guidelines for Applicants and governs the evaluation
procedures used by the Oconee County Conservation Bank Board to process,
award, and monitor grants.

Definitions:

1.

The definitions set forth in Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 9, Section 2-399 of
the Oconee County Code of Ordinances are incorporated by this reference.
“Applicant” means an Eligible OCCB Recipient applying for a grant related
to a specific property.
“Application” or “application” means the attached Application For Funding.
“Blue Line Stream or Lake,” as used in the application, means a stream or
lake that appears as a broken or solid blue line (or a purple line) on a USGS
map.
“Conservation Value” means either
a. the Fair Market Value of the property for a fee simple acquisition; or
b. the amount the Fair Market Value of the property will be reduced by
the placement of a Conservation Easement on the property.
“Grant Agreement” means a binding contract between the Applicant and
Oconee County that meets the requirements of OCCB Ordinance Section 2-
404(c)(2).
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7. “Inholding Land” means privately owned property that is 100% surrounded
by Protected Land.

8. “Limited Access” means any public access that is less than access on a year-
round and continual basis, i.e., access by the public for some limited time or
seasonal period(s).

9. “Property/Project Name” means the common or colloquial name used to
identify a specific piece of land or project that is the subject of an
Application. Each Property/Project Name must be unique.

10.“Protected Land” means any land substantially protected from
development or designated as scenic or protected through any federal,
state, or local government law or private action,

11.“Scenic View” means a vista that includes mountain, river, lake, forest,
pasture, agricultural, or other pastoral scenery.

12.“Small grant application” means an application for an interest in [and if the
amount requested is |ess than thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or ten
percent {10%) of the Conservation Value, whichever is less.

13.“Unlimited Access” means any public access on a year-round and continual
basis and, additionally, requires that such access is communicated to the
public.

Policy:
Part One: Application Procedures

1. An Applicant may, but is not required to, submit a letter to the Board
requesting the Board’s examination of land or project that may be the
subject of a future application for a preliminary review.

2. The Board will accept applications on or before April 1%, August 1%, and
November 1% of each calendar year.

3. Applicants may apply for a grant from the OCCB by filing an application
with the Board’s administrative staff on or before the application deadline.
All applications must be submitted in duplicate pursuant to Board Policy
No. 0001 Applicant Privacy. All applications must be submitted in
electronic pdf or similar format.
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4. An application for a grant that does not fall within the jurisdiction of the
OCCB will not be accepted. The Board will inform the Applicant in writing
of the reason for its refusal to accept the application.

5. All applications must meet the mandatory requirements in Section II of the
application. See OCCB Ordinance Sections 2-404({a)(2), (3), & (6), 2-
404(b)(6), 2-404{c)(3)c, and 2-405(c) & {d).

6. All application attachments must identify the application Section and
Question to which it applies.

7. As part of the application procedure, each applicant is required to provide
documentation of the expertise and financial resources of the entity
enforcing any Conservation Easement or deed restriction, the expertise and
financial resources of the entity managing the property, and a description
of the proposed management plan for the property. Failure to provide
documentation satisfactory to the Board will result in a recommendation to
the Council that the grant application be denied.

8. During the review process, the Board may request additional information
from the Applicant. Failure to provide the requested informationin a
timely manner will result in a delay in processing the application until the
next cycle.

9. Applications will be evaluated utilizing the Criteria Worksheet. The Board
members will reduce their final collective evaluation to a score as set forth
on the Evaluation Scoresheet, which will be attached to the official
minutes.

10.Each application must meet the applicable minimum score to he
recommended for a grant award.

a. Farmland must have a minimum score of 30.

b. Inholding Land must have a minimum score of 22.

¢. Non-farmland must have a minimum score of 40.

d. Solely historic or cultural land must have a minimum score of 21.

11.The Board may recommend a grant of up to ten percent (10%) of the

Conservation Value of the project. In extraordinary circumstances and for
good cause, the Board may recommend a grant that is more than 10% of
the Conservation Value of the project.
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12.Within ninety (90) days of each application deadline, the Board will process
all pending applications and submit its recommendations to the Oconee
County Council.

13.The Board’s recommendation to Council shali include the findings required
by OCCB Ordinance 2-404(b)(4) utilizing the Section 2-404 Findings Form.
The Board may delegate the responsibility to prepare the Section 2-404
Findings to a single Board member.

14.Council will take action within thirty (30) days of submission of the Board’s
recommendation.

Part Twoa: Post Award Procedures

1. The Board shall notify the Applicant of the Council’s decision within ten {10}
days of the Council’s decision.

2. If awarded a grant, the Applicant and Landowner have a period of four (4)
months from the date of the Council’s decision to notify the Board of their
decision to accept the grant.

3. The recipient must execute and record a Grant Agreement within fourteen
(14) days of acceptance of the grant award.

4. The transaction must close within one year of recipient’s notice of
acceptance of award. If recipient is unable to close on the Property/Project
by the Closing Deadline, recipient shall submit to the Board, before the
Closing Deadline, a written status report explaining the circumstances, and
shall either

a. withdraw the Application and acceptance of the Grant award, or
b. request a one-time extension not to exceed six (6} months.

6. If the transaction fails to close, the recipient, Council, and Board will
execute and record a document terminating the Grant Agreement.

7. The following closing documents must be submitted to the Board for
review at least ten (10} days prior to the scheduled closing:

a. An independent certified appraisal of the Property dated within
twelve (12) months of the Grant approval by Council;

b. A certified environmental hazard assessment, unless the Application
gualifies as a small grant application;
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A final draft of the conservation easement and/or deed;

A final draft of the settlement statement;

A final draft of the title insurance commitment and exceptions;

A recorded by copy of this Grant Agreement signed by the Grantee,

and for conservation easements, by the Landowner; and

g. Any other data, acknowledgement, or documentation requested by
the OCCB.
h. The name, address, email address, and phone number of the Closing
Attorney and Firm.
The Board reserves the right to reject documents that do not comply with
the OCCB Ordinance.

8. The Board will process the grant funds pursuant to Policy No. 0002, Bank
Account.

9. Within sixty (60) days of closing, recipient must provide the Board with
executed closing documents, a report of how the grant funds were
distributed, and the status of the project.

10.If the grant award is for the fee simple purchase of land that will not be
subject to a conservation easement, the property is subject to inspection by
the County and the deed must include the following language:

a0

Said premises shall be subject to: the provisions of Sections 2-
398 through 2-409 of the Oconee County, South Carolina Code
of Ordinances, the policies adopted by the Oconee County
Conservation Bank, and the grant agreement executed by the
Grantee and Oconee County, such that the premises shall be
permanently protected for the conservation purposes
described therein.

11.The recipient shall submit a copy of recipient’s annual inspections of the
Property to the OCCB within twelve (12) months of the release of Grant
Funds. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the QCCB on an annual basis. Electronic copies of recipient’s
annual stewardship reports are acceptable. Recipient is required to give
the OCCB notice of any stewardship concern that materially threatens the
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conservation purposes of the Grant Award within thirty (30) days of
discovery.

12.The recipient and the Board shall retain copies of all documents related to
the award of the grant and the acquisition of interests in land.

13.For all grants, a copy of the recipient’s annual inspection of the property
must be submitted to the Board within twelve {12) months of closing on
the property. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the Board on an annual basis. The annual reports shall be in a
format comparable to the annual reports typically required of conservation
easements. Recipients are required to give the Board notice of any
stewardship concerns that materially threatens the conservation purposes
of the grant within thirty (30) days of discovery.

14 All interests in land obtained with OCCB funds may only be assigned from
one eligible OCCB recipient to another eligible OCCB recipient after
approval by the majority of the Board.

15.Any fee simple interest in land acquired with OCCB funds may not be used
for any purpose other than that set forth in the Grant Agreement. If OCCB
funds were used to purchase a Conservation Easement, the Conservation
Easement is the controlling legal document on what is or is not permitted
on the property.

16.The eligible OCCB recipient or the Landowner must notify the Board if a
claim is made against the title to the property.

17. Any interest in land or any portion thereof funded in whole or part by
OCCB funds shall not transferred without the approval of the Board. The
Board shall have the unilateral authority to approve or deny such transfer.

18. If the interest in the Property is reduced or increased by 10% or less in
acreage of that stated in the Application, the Board shall have the authority
to reduce the award on a proportional per acre basis. However, a
reduction or increase of acreage exceeding 10% shall be deemed material
and will render the original grant award and the Grant Agreement null and
void.
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Purpose:

This policy provides guidelines for Applicants and governs the evaluation
procedures used by the Oconee County Conservation Bank Board to process,
award, and monitor grants.

Definitions:

1. The definitions set forth in Chapter 2, Article 1V, Division 9, Section 2-399 of
the Oconee County Code of Ordinances are incorporated by this reference.
2. “Applicant” means an Eligible OCCB Recipient applying for a grant related
to a specific property.
3. “Application” or “application” means the attached Application For Funding.
4. “Blue Line Stream or Lake,” as used in the application, means a stream or
lake that appears as a broken or solid blue line (or a purple line) on a USGS
map.
5. “Conservation Value” means either
a. the Fair Market Value of the property for a fee simple acquisition; or
b. the amount the Fair Market Value of the property will be reduced by
the placement of a Conservation Easement on the property.
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6. “Grant Agreement” means a binding contract between the Applicant and
Oconee County that meets the requirements of OCCB Ordinance Section 2-
404(c)(2).

7. “Inholding Land” means privately owned property that is 100% surrounded
by Protected Land.

8. “Limited Access” means any public access that is less than access on a year-
round and continual basis, i.e., access by the public for some limited time or
seasonal period(s).

9. “Property/Project Name” means the common or colloquial name used to
identify a specific piece of land or project that is the subject of an
Application. Each Property/Project Name must be unique.

10.“Protected Land” means any land substantially protected from
development or designated as scenic or protected through any federal,
state, or local government law or private action.

11.“Scenic View” means a vista that includes mountain, river, lake, forest,
pasture, agricultural, or other pastoral scenery.

12.“Small grant application” means an application for an interest in land if the
amount requested is less than thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or ten
percent (10%) of the Conservation Value, whichever is less.

13.“Unlimited Access” means any public access on a year-round and continual
basis and, additionally, requires that such access is communicated to the
public.

Policy:
Part One: Application Procedures

1. An Applicant may, but is not required to, submit a letter to the Board
requesting the Board’s examination of land or project that may be the
subject of a future application for a preliminary review.

2. The Board will accept applications on or before April 1%, August 1%, and
November 1% of each calendar year.

3. Applicants may apply for a grant from the OCCB by filing an application
with the Board’s administrative staff on or before the application deadline.
All applications must be submitted in duplicate pursuant to Board Policy
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No. 0001 Applicant Privacy. All applications must be submitted in
electronic pdf or similar format.

4, An application for a grant that does not fall within the jurisdiction of the
OCCB will not be accepted. The Board will inform the Applicant in writing
of the reason for its refusal to accept the application.

5. All applications must meet the mandatory requirements in Section Il of the
application. See OCCB Ordinance Sections 2-404(a)(2), (3), & (6), 2-
404(b)(6), 2-404(c)(3)c, and 2-405(c) & (d).

6. All application attachments must identify the application Section and
Question to which it applies.

7. As part of the application procedure, each applicant is required to provide
documentation of the expertise and financial resources of the entity
enforcing any Conservation Easement or deed restriction, the expertise and
financial resources of the entity managing the property, and a description
of the proposed management plan for the property. Failure to provide
documentation satisfactory to the Board will result in a recommendation to
the Council that the grant application be denied.

8. During the review process, the Board may request additional information
from the Applicant. Failure to provide the requested information in a
timely manner will result in a delay in processing the application until the
next cycle.

9. Applications will be evaluated utilizing the Criteria Worksheet. The Board
members will reduce their final collective evaluation to a score as set forth
on the Evaluation Scoresheet, which will be attached to the official
minutes.

10.Each application must meet the applicable minimum score to be
recommended for a grant award.

a. Farmland must have a minimum score of 30.
b. Inholding Land must have a minimum score of 22.
c. Non-farmland must have a minimum score of 40.
d. Solely historic or cultural land must have a minimum score of 21.
11.The Board may recommend a grant of up to ten percent (10%) of the
Conservation Value of the project. In extraordinary circumstances and for
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good cause, the Board may recommend a grant that is more than 10% of
the Conservation Value of the project.

12.Within ninety (90) days of each application deadline, the Board will process
all pending applications and submit its recommendations to the Oconee
County Council.

13.The Board’s recommendation to Council shall include the findings required
by OCCB Ordinance 2-404(b)(4) utilizing the Section 2-404 Findings Form.
The Board may delegate the responsibility to prepare the Section 2-404
Findings to a single Board member.

14.Council will take action within thirty (30) days of submission of the Board'’s
recommendation.

Part Two: Post Award Procedures

1. The Board shall notify the Applicant of the Council’s decision within ten (10)
days of the Council’s decision.

2. If awarded a grant, the Applicant and Landowner have a period of four (4)
months from the date of the Council’s decision to notify the Board of their
decision to accept the grant.

3. The recipient must execute and record a Grant Agreement within fourteen
(14) days of acceptance of the grant award.

4. The transaction must close within one year of recipient’s notice of
acceptance of award. Recipient’s closing attorney must be registered as a

4.5, If recipient is unable to close on the Property/Project by the Closing
Deadline, recipient shall submit to the Board, before the Closing Deadline, a
written status report explaining the circumstances, and shall either

a. withdraw the Application and acceptance of the Grant award, or
b. request a one-time extension not to exceed six (6) months.

6. If the transaction fails to close, the recipient, Council, and Board will
execute and record a document terminating the Grant Agreement.

7. The following closing documents must be submitted to the Board for
review at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled closing:
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An independent certified appraisal of the Property dated within
twelve (12) months of the Grant approval by Council;

. A certified environmental hazard assessment, unless the Application

qualifies as a small grant application;

A final draft of the conservation easement and/or deed;

A final draft of the settlement statement;

A final draft of the title insurance commitment and exceptions;

A recorded by copy of this Grant Agreement signed by the Grantee,
and for conservation easements, by the Landowner; and

Any other data, acknowledgement, or documentation requested by
the OCCB.

. The name, address, email address, and phone number of the Closing

Attorney and Firm.

The Board reserves the right to reject documents that do not comply with
the OCCB Ordinance.

8. The Board will process the grant funds pursuant to Policy No. 0002, Bank
Account.

9. Within sixty (60) days of closing, recipient must provide the Board with
executed closing documents, a report of how the grant funds were
distributed, and the status of the project.

10.1f the grant award is for the fee simple purchase of land that will not be
subject to a conservation easement, the property is subject to inspection by
the County and the deed must include the following language:

Said premises shall be subject to: the provisions of Sections 2-
398 through 2-409 of the Oconee County, South Carolina Code
of Ordinances, the policies adopted by the Oconee County
Conservation Bank, and the grant agreement executed by the
Grantee and Oconee County, such that the premises shall be
permanently protected for the conservation purposes
described therein.

11.The recipient shall submit a copy of recipient’s annual inspections of the
Property to the OCCB within twelve (12) months of the release of Grant
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Funds. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the OCCB on an annual basis. Electronic copies of recipient’s
annual stewardship reports are acceptable. Recipient is required to give
the OCCB notice of any stewardship concern that materially threatens the
conservation purposes of the Grant Award within thirty (30) days of
discovery.

12.The recipient and the Board shall retain copies of all documents related to
the award of the grant and the acquisition of interests in land.

13.For all grants, a copy of the recipient’s annual inspection of the property
must be submitted to the Board within twelve (12) months of closing on
the property. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the Board on an annual basis. The annual reports shall be in a
format comparable to the annual reports typically required of conservation
easements. Recipients are required to give the Board notice of any
stewardship concerns that materially threatens the conservation purposes
of the grant within thirty (30) days of discovery.

14.All interests in land obtained with OCCB funds may only be assigned from
one eligible OCCB recipient to another eligible OCCB recipient after
approval by the majority of the Board.

15.Any fee simple interest in land acquired with OCCB funds may not be used
for any purpose other than that set forth in the Grant Agreement. If OCCB
funds were used to purchase a Conservation Easement, the Conservation
Easement is the controlling legal document on what is or is not permitted
on the property.

16.The eligible OCCB recipient or the Landowner must notify the Board if a
claim is made against the title to the property.

17. Any interest in land or any portion thereof funded in whole or part by
OCCB funds shall not transferred without the approval of the Board. The
Board shall have the unilateral authority to approve or deny such transfer.

18. If the interest in the Property is reduced or increased by 10% or less in
acreage of that stated in the Application, the Board shall have the authority
to reduce the award on a proportional per acre basis. However, a
reduction or increase of acreage exceeding 10% shall be deemed material
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and will render the original grant award and the Grant Agreement null and
void.



Oconee County Conservation Bank

Title: Bank Account
Policy No. 0002
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Effective Date: September 15, 2020
Revision Date(s): April 6, 2021
Pagel of 2

Attachments: Checklist

Purpose:

This policy governs the procedures used in opening, maintaining, and closing bank
accounts or investment accounts for the Oconee County Conservation Bank.

Definitions:

i

The definitions set forth in Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 9, Section 2-399 of
the Oconee County Code of Ordinances are incorporated by this reference.
“Community First account” means the OCCB account at Community First
Bank established by the Board.

“Clerk” means the person duly appointed as the Clerk to the Council.
“Disburse” means to deliver the funds approved by the OCCB to the escrow
account of the closing attorney.

. “Grant” means the monetary award made to an Eligible OCCB Recipient by

the Council.

. “State Pool” means Local Government Investment Pool managed by the

State Treasurer pursuant to Sections 6-6-10, 12-45-220, and 11-1-60 of the
1976 Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended.

“Treasurer” means the person duly elected as the Treasurer of Oconee
County.

Policy:
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1. The Chair and Secretary of the Board shall open an account at Community
First Bank at the Walhalla, SC branch.

2. The name on the Community First account shall be the Oconee County
Conservation Bank with the address as 415 South Pine Street, Walhalla, SC
29691.

3. The Board shall manage the funds in the Community First account on behalf
of the Bank.

4. Disbursements from the Community First account shall require two
signatures. The Chair and Secretary of the Board are designated as the two
persons authorized to disburse funds.

5. The Board may invest all or part of the Bank funds in the State Pool,
considering the need, if any, to maintain funds in the Community First Bank
account.

6. The Treasurer shall manage the funds in the State Pool on behalf of the
Bank.

7. Priorto dlsbursmg any gran't funds, the Chalr and the Secretary shall
lndependently camplete hi) e"attached ‘Checklist:

8. The Treastirer shall disbursefunds fron? the State Pool bn‘ly" upon the
authorization of both the Chalr and Secretary of the Board

S, The Chalr and Secretary of the BOard shail authorlzethe dlsbursernent of
grant funds by wire or certifiéd check to the éscrow account of the closing
attorney



CHECKLIST

OCCB Policy 0002 (Bank Account)

DATE COMPLETED

TASK

Council approved award of grant

Amount of grant approved:

Applicant accepted award of grant

Grant agreement executed and recorded

If required, appraisal submitted and reviewed

Confirmed appraisal support grant amount or revise grant

amount

If requested, closing extension approved

Closing date set:

Closing documents provided to OCCB

Closing documents approved

Closing attorney registered as vendor with State

Written authorization to County Treasurer / Community First

Bank

Board Chair

Board Secretary




Record and Return:

Oconee County Conservation Bank
415 5. Pine Street

Walhalla, SC 29691

SOUTH CAROLINA )
) GRANT AGREEMENT
OCONEE COUNTY )

WHEREAS, the Oconee County Council approved the Oconee County Conservation
Bank’s (the *OCCB”) recommendation for grant funding to
(the “Grantee™) on 20

in the amount of
and 00/100 Dollars (§ .00} (the “Grant Funds™) for the fee simple purchase
of or the placement of a conservation easement on the tract of land described in Exhibit A

{the “Property™) for the purpose of permanently conserving the Property;

WHEREAS, the OCCB’s award was effected pursuant to Sections 2-398 through 2-409
of the Oconee County Code of Ordinances {the “Conservation Bank Ordinance”);

WHEREAS, the Conservation Bank Ordinance requires the Grantee to enter into a Grant
Agreement to ensure that the Property is permanently conserved in accordance with
Conservation Bank Ordinance, the Grantee’s Application for funding, and this Grant Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, Sections 2-404 and 2-405 of the Conservation Bank Ordinance require that
a) Grantee enter into this Grant Agreement and b) the County and the OCCB be indemnified in
the amount of the Grant Funds in the event of improperly used OCCB funding, title issues or
defects, or other issues referenced in Section 2-405.

NOW, THEREFORE, the County, the OCCB, and the Grantee agree that by signing
this Agreement and accepting any of the Grant Funds, the following shall apply:

1. Grant Award. The OCCB hereby awards funding in the amount of
and 00/100 Dollars ( .00) to Grantee for
the acquisition of real estate interests for the conservation purposes set forth in the
Conservation Bank Ordinance, this Grant Agreement, and Grantee’s Application for
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Funding, which was received by the OCCB on 20 . All
representations made by Grantee in the Application and during the review and consideration
of the Application by the OCCB and Council are incorporated into this Grant Agreement.

. General Terms of Grant.

QGrantee:

Project/Property:

Fee Simple or Conservation Easement:

Date Approved by the OCCB:

Date Approved by Oconee County Council:

Date Grant Award Accepted by Grantee:

Total Grant Amount;

Proportional Per Acre Percent of Fair Market Value:

Closing Deadline:

S FRme RS o

Title Insurance Provider:

. Failure to Close. The failure to close by the Closing Deadline, unless a written extension is
granted by the OCCB, shall automatically render the Grant Award null and void.

. Use of Grant Funds. The OCCB awarded this Grant in reliance upon the accuracy and
completeness of the Grantee's Application and supporting documents, and Grantee’s
representations. Grant Funds must only be used for the acquisition of real estate interests for
conservation purposes, including closing costs as allowed by the Conservation Bank
Ordinance. Any material changes to the scope or purpose of the Project arising after
approval by the Oconee County Council must be approved by the OCCB and Council.

. Conditions for Disbursement of Grant Funds. Pursuant to the Conservation Bank

Ordinance, the OCCB shall not disburse the Grant Funds until the Grantee provides the
OCCB with the following:

a. An independent certified appraisal of the Property dated within twelve (12) months of the
Grant approval by Council;

b. A certified environmental hazard assessment, unless the Application qualifies as a small
grant application;

c. A final draft of the conservation easement and/or deed;
d. A final draft of the settlement statement;

e. A final draft of the title insurance commitment and exceptions;
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10.

11.

f. A recorded by copy of this Grant Agreement signed by the Grantee, and for conservation
easements, by the Landowner; and

g. Any other data, acknowledgement, or documentation requested by the OCCB.
h. The name, address, email address, and phone number of the Closing Attorney and Firm.

The OCCB reserves the right to reject documents that do not comply with the
Conservation Bank Ordinance.

Recorded Grant Agreement. The Grantee shall record the executed Grant Agreement with
the Register of Deeds for Oconee County, South Carolina. A copy of the recorded Grant
Agreement must be submitted to the OCCB in accordance with Paragraph 5f herein.

Delivery of Grant Funds. All approved Grant Funds shall be delivered to the closing
attorney identified by the Grantee after the OCCB approves the documents required in
Paragraph 5.

Discrepancies.

a. Acreage Discrepancies. If the interest in the Property is reduced by 10% or less in
acreage as to that stated in the Application, the OCCB Chair shall have the authority to
reduce the award on a proportional per acre basis. However, a reduction of acreage
exceeding 10% shall be deemed material and will render the Application and Grant
Award null and void.

b. Valuation Discrepancies. The ultimate amount of the Grant Funds shall be based upon the

Conservation Value cited in the appraisal or in the Application, whichever is less.

Closing Deadline. Closing for the Property shall be scheduled no later than the date set forth
in Paragraph 2h or within 30 days of delivery of Grant Funds, whichever is sooner. In the
event that Grantee is not going to close on the Property/Project by the Closing Deadline,
Grantee shall submit to the OCCB, before the Closing Deadline, a written status report
explaining the circumstances, and shall either a) withdraw the Application and acceptance of
the Grant award, or b) request a one-time extension not to exceed six (6) months.

Closing Report. Within sixty (60} days of closing, the Grantee shall submit to the OCCB a
report detailing how the Grant Funds were distributed and the status of the Project.

Monitoring and Imspection. If this Grant Agreement relates to the fee simple transfer of the
Property to the Grantee, the Grantee acknowledges and agrees that Oconee County: a) has
the right to access the Property for the sole purpose of inspecting and monitoring the status of
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13.

conservation of the Property and b) has the authority to enforce the provisions of this Grant
Agreement and the Conservation Bank Ordinance.

Annual Report. The Grantee shall submit a copy of Grantee’s annual inspections of the
Property to the QCCB within twelve (12) months of the release of Grant Funds. Thereafter,
copies of all future inspection reports must be submitted io the OCCB on an annual basis.
Electronic copies of Grantee’s annual stewardship reports are acceptable. Grantee is required
to give the OCCB notice of any stewardship concern that materially threatens the
conservation purposes of the Grant Award within thirty (30) days of discovery.

Record-Keeping. Grantee shall be responsible for the expenditure of Grant Funds and for
retaining and maintaining documents and records consistent with generally accepted
accounting practices pertaining to the Grant award, acquisition of interests in the Property,
and management and/or status of the conservation of the Property. Grantee’s financial
record-keeping and accounting procedures relating to the administration of the Grant Award
must be made available for examination by the OCCB during normal business hours and if
requested with reasonable notice.

14. Public Relations. Grantee agrees to coordinate with the OCCB before issuing press releases

15.

16.

17.

18.

or other public statements concerning the Grant Award. The OCCB may issue press releases
witheout notice to or the consent of the Grantee.

Title Insurance. The Grantee shall obtain and maintain title insurance in the Grantee's name
to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the total of the
Grant Funds for issues related to the title to the Property

Indemnification Funds, The Grantee shall maintain funds sufficient to indemnify and
reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the total of the Grant Funds for
issues unrelated to title to the Property that impact the conservation of the Property.

Indemnification — Breach of Grant Agreement, Improper Use of Grant Funds. The
Grantee agrees to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the
total of the Grant Funds for deficiencies, claims, damages, or any other liabilities in the event
of the breach of the Grant Agreement or the improper use of Grant Funds.

Indemnification — Section 2-405 (g): In the event the Grantee’s interest in the Property is
extinguished, terminated, sold, transferred, assigned, alienated, or converted and can not be
replaced as required in Subsections 2-405(g) of the Conservation Bank Ordinance, the
Grantee agrees to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in the amount of the
Grant Funds or the Proportional Per Acre Percent of the then current Fair Market Value,
whichever is greater.
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20.

21.

22

23.

24,

25,

Indemnification — Hold Harmless. Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the OCCB and Oconee County from and against any loss, cost, or damage of any kind arising
out of the Grantee’s negligence or willful misconduct.

Notification of Breach. The OCCB shall notify the Grantee in writing if the OCCB
determines the Grantee has breached this Agreement; has not made adequate atiempts to
fulfill the terms of the Grant Agreement; has made a misrepresentation about the
organization, such as its 501{c)(3) status, or about the Project; files bankruptcy; has
misappropriated Grant Funds; or has otherwise jeopardized the ability of the Property to be
permanently conserved. Grantee shall have thirty (30) days to review and respond to the
OCCB’s determination and if no response is made, the OCCB shall have the unilateral
authority to require that the Grantee reimburse the OCCB in the full amount of the Grant
Award or the Proportional Per Acre Percent of the then current Fair Market Value, whichever
is greater or require other actions, such as transferring the property to a willing and eligible
OCCB recipient, to ensure the permanent conservation of the Property.

Notification of Intended Transfer of Property Interest. The Grantee agrees to notify the
OCCB of any intended transfer of the Property or any part or interest in the Property,
including the transfer of the Conservation Easement, if any exists, as soon as the Grantee
determines that the transfer is intended and in no even not later than sixty (60) days before
the intended transfer is to occur.

Autharity to Prohibit Transfer of Property. The Grantee agree that the OCCB shall have
the unilateral authority to prohibit the transfer of the Property or any part or interest in the
Property, including the transfer of the Conservation Easement, if any exists, if the OCCB
determines that the proposed transfer a) will threaten or jeopardize the permanent
conservation of the Property or b) will not be to a qualified eligible OCCB recipient as that
term as defined and required in the Conservation Bank Ordinance..

Binding Agreement. This Agreement shall bind the Grantee, it successors and assigns, and
shall continue in existence so long as the obligations as described herein and in the
Conservation Bank Ordinance remain in force.

Severance of Provisions. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this
Grant Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of
this Grant Agreement, and this Grant Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal,
or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

Future Grant Support. The OCCB has no obligation to provide any support beyond award
of the Grant, unless otherwise agreed to in writing between the Parties to this Grant
Agreement.
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26,

27.

28,

Governing Law. This Grant Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of South Carolina and the Conservation Bank Ordinance. In carrying out the
Project, Grantee will comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances and
will not infringe, misappropriate, or violate the intellectual property, privacy, or publicity
rights of any third party.

Independence. Nothing contained herein shall create a partnership, joint venture,
employment, agency or fiduciary relationship between the parties. Neither party has the right
or authority to control or direct the activities of the other or the right or ability to bind the
other to any agreement with a third party or to incur any obligation or liability on behalf of
the other party, unless expressly authorized in this Agreement. Neither party to this
Agreement shall be liable to the other party for any consequential, punitive, special or
exemplary damages (including lost profits) resulting from or arising out of any breach of this
Agreement, or any party’s performance under this Agreement.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts (or upon
separate signature pages bound together in one or more counterparts), each executed
counterpart constituting an original agreement, but altogether constituting only one
agreement. This Agreement may be executed via facsimile or electronic document
(including PDF) signature.

This Grant Agreement is executed by and between Oconee County, South Carolina, the

Oconee County Conservation Bank, the Grantee, its successors and assigns, to wit:

OCONEE COUNTY:
Witness:
Signature
By: Witness:
Its: Date:
Sworn and subscribed before me this Notary Seal:
day of 20 .

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:
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GRANTEE:

Signature

By:

Its:

Swom and subscribed before me this

day of 20 .

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

Witness:

Witness;

Date:

Notary Seal:
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OCONEE COUNTY CONSERVATION BANK:

Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
day of 20 .

Notary Public for:

My Commission ends:

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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FOR GRANT AGREEMENT RELATING TO A CONSERVATION EASEMENT
LANDOWNER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT

A) THE EXECUTION OF THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT IS A BINDING LEGAL
DOCUMENT THAT PERMANENTLY CONVEYS A PROPERTY INTEREST, AND

B) THE LANDOWNER WILL BE LEGALLY BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THE
CONSERVATION EASEMENT, WHICH WILL BE THE CONTROLLING
DOCUMENT REGARDING WHAT IS AND WHAT IS NOT PERMITTED UPON

THE PROPERTY.
LANDOWNER:
Witness:
Signature
By: Witness:
Its: Date:
Swom and subscribed before me this Notary Seal:
day of 20 .

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:
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FOR GRANT AGREEMENT RELATING TO A CONSERVATION EASEMENT
LANDOWNER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT

A) THE EXECUTION OF THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT IS A BINDING LEGAL
DOCUMENT THAT PERMANENTLY CONVEYS A PROPERTY INTEREST,

B) THE LANDOWNER WILL BE LEGALLY BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THE
CONSERVATION EASEMENT, WHICH WILL BE THE CONTROLLING
DOCUMENT REGARDING WHAT IS AND WHAT IS NOT PERMITTED UPON
THE PROPERTY, AND

C) THAT THE PLACEMENT OF THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON THE
PROPERTY IS A CONVEYANCE OF A PROPERTY INTERST TO WHICH ANY
MORTGAGE IS SUBORDINATE.

LANDOWNER:
Witness:
Signature
By: Witness:
Its: Date:
Sworn and subscribed before me this Notary Seal:
day of 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:
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Oconee County Conservation Bank

Title: Bank Account
Policy No. 0002

Effective Date: September 15, 2020
Revision Date(s): April 6, 2021
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Attachments: Checklist

Purpose:

This policy governs the procedures used in opening, maintaining, and closing bank
accounts or investment accounts for the Oconee County Conservation Bank.

Definitions:

1. The definitions set forth in Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 9, Section 2-399 of
the Oconee County Code of Ordinances are incorporated by this reference.

2. “Community First account” means the OCCB account at Community First
Bank established by the Board.

3. “Clerk” means the person duly appointed as the Clerk to the Council.

4. “Disburse” means to deliver the funds approved by the OCCB to the escrow
account of the closing attorney.

5. “Grant” means the monetary award made to an Eligible OCCB Recipient by
the Council.

6. “State Pool” means Local Government Investment Pool managed by the
State Treasurer pursuant to Sections 6-6-10, 12-45-220, and 11-1-60 of the
1976 Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended.

7. “Treasurer” means the person duly elected as the Treasurer of Oconee
County.

Policy:

1. The Chair and Secretary of the Board shall open an account at Community
First Bank at the Walhalla, SC branch.
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2. The name on the Community First account shall be the Oconee County
Conservation Bank with the address as 415 South Pine Street, Walhalla, SC
29691.

3. The Board shall manage the funds in the Community First account on behalf
of the Bank.

4. Disbursements from the Community First account shall require two
signatures. The Chair and Secretary of the Board are designated as the two
persons authorized to disburse funds.

5. The Board may invest all or part of the Bank funds in the State Pool,
considering the need, if any, to maintain funds in the Community First Bank
account.

6. The Treasurer shall manage the funds in the State Pool on behalf of the
Bank.

7. Prior to disbursing any grant funds, the Chair and the Secretary shall
independently complete the attached Checklist.

8. The Treasurer shall disburse funds from the State Pool only upon the
authorization of both the Chair and Secretary of the Board.

9. The Chair and Secretary of the Board shall authorize the disbursement of
grant funds by wire or certified check to the escrow account of the closing
attorney.



CHECKLIST

OCCB Policy 0002 (Bank Account)

DATE COMPLETED

TASK

Council approved award of grant

Amount of grant approved:

Notification of award to applicant

Applicant provides written acceptance of award

Grant agreement executed and recorded

If required, appraisal submitted and reviewed

Confirmed appraisal support grant amount or revise grant

amount

If requested, closing extension approved

Closing date set:

Closing documents provided to OCCB

Closing documents approved

Closing attorney registered as vendor with State

Written authorization to County Treasurer / Community First

Bank

Board Chair

Board Secretary




Oconee County Conservation Bank

Title: Grant Procedures
Policy No. 0003

Effective Date: March 2, 2021
Revision Date(s): April 6, 2021
Page 1 of 7
Attachments:
Application For Funding
Criteria Worksheet
Evaluation Scoresheet
Grant Agreement
Section 404 Findings Template

Purpose:

This policy provides guidelines for Applicants and governs the evaluation
procedures used by the Oconee County Conservation Bank Board to process,
award, and monitor grants.

Definitions:

1. The definitions set forth in Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 9, Section 2-399 of
the Oconee County Code of Ordinances are incorporated by this reference.
2. “Applicant” means an Eligible OCCB Recipient applying for a grant related
to a specific property.
3. “Application” or “application” means the attached Application For Funding.
4. “Blue Line Stream or Lake,” as used in the application, means a stream or
lake that appears as a broken or solid blue line (or a purple line) on a USGS
map.
5. “Conservation Value” means either
a. the Fair Market Value of the property for a fee simple acquisition; or
b. the amount the Fair Market Value of the property will be reduced by
the placement of a Conservation Easement on the property.
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6. “Grant Agreement” means a binding contract between the Applicant and
Oconee County that meets the requirements of OCCB Ordinance Section 2-
404(c)(2).

7. “Inholding Land” means privately owned property that is 100% surrounded
by Protected Land.

8. “Limited Access” means any public access that is less than access on a year-
round and continual basis, i.e., access by the public for some limited time or
seasonal period(s).

9. “Property/Project Name” means the common or colloquial name used to
identify a specific piece of land or project that is the subject of an
Application. Each Property/Project Name must be unique.

10.“Protected Land” means any land substantially protected from
development or designated as scenic or protected through any federal,
state, or local government law or private action.

11.“Scenic View” means a vista that includes mountain, river, lake, forest,
pasture, agricultural, or other pastoral scenery.

12.“Small grant application” means an application for an interest in land if the
amount requested is less than thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or ten
percent (10%) of the Conservation Value, whichever is less.

13.“Unlimited Access” means any public access on a year-round and continual
basis and, additionally, requires that such access is communicated to the
public.

Policy:

Part One: Application Procedures

1. An Applicant may, but is not required to, submit a letter to the Board
requesting the Board’s examination of land or project that may be the
subject of a future application for a preliminary review.

2. The Board will accept applications on or before April 1%, August 1%, and
November 1° of each calendar year.

3. Applicants may apply for a grant from the OCCB by filing an application with
the Board’s administrative staff on or before the application deadline. All
applications must be submitted in duplicate pursuant to Board Policy No.
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0001 Applicant Privacy. All applications must be submitted in electronic pdf
or similar format.

4. An application for a grant that does not fall within the jurisdiction of the
OCCB will not be accepted. The Board will inform the Applicant in writing
of the reason for its refusal to accept the application.

5. All applications must meet the mandatory requirements in Section Il of the
application. See OCCB Ordinance Sections 2-404(a)(2), (3), & (6), 2-
404(b)(6), 2-404(c)(3)c, and 2-405(c) & (d).

6. All application attachments must identify the application Section and
Question to which it applies.

7. As part of the application procedure, each applicant is required to provide
documentation of the expertise and financial resources of the entity
enforcing any Conservation Easement or deed restriction, the expertise and
financial resources of the entity managing the property, and a description
of the proposed management plan for the property. Failure to provide
documentation satisfactory to the Board will result in a recommendation to
the Council that the grant application be denied.

8. During the review process, the Board may request additional information
from the Applicant. Failure to provide the requested informationin a
timely manner will result in a delay in processing the application until the
next cycle.

9. Applications will be evaluated utilizing the Criteria Worksheet. The Board
members will reduce their final collective evaluation to a score as set forth
on the Evaluation Scoresheet, which will be attached to the official
minutes.

10.Each application must meet the applicable minimum score to be
recommended for a grant award.

a. Farmland must have a minimum score of 30.
b. Inholding Land must have a minimum score of 22.
c. Non-farmland must have a minimum score of 40.
d. Solely historic or cultural land must have a minimum score of 21.
11.The Board may recommend a grant of up to ten percent (10%) of the
Conservation Value of the project. In extraordinary circumstances and for
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good cause, the Board may recommend a grant that is more than 10% of
the Conservation Value of the project.

12.Within ninety (90) days of each application deadline, the Board will process
all pending applications and submit its recommendations to the Oconee
County Council.

13.The Board’s recommendation to Council shall include the findings required
by OCCB Ordinance 2-404(b)(4) utilizing the Section 2-404 Findings Form.
The Board may delegate the responsibility to prepare the Section 2-404
Findings to a single Board member.

14.Council will take action within thirty (30) days of submission of the Board’s
recommendation.

Part Two: Post Award Procedures

1. The Board shall notify the Applicant of the Council’s decision within ten (10)
days of the Council’s decision.

2. If awarded a grant, the Applicant and Landowner have a period of four (4)
months from the date of the Council’s decision to notify the Board of their
decision to accept the grant.

3. The recipient must execute and record a Grant Agreement within fourteen
(14) days of acceptance of the grant award.

4. The transaction must close within one year of recipient’s notice of
acceptance of award. Recipient’s closing attorney must be registered as a
vendor with the State of South Carolina prior to closing if money is to be
wired from the Local Government Investment Pool to the closing attorney’s
escrow account.

5. If recipient is unable to close on the Property/Project by the Closing
Deadline, recipient shall submit to the Board, before the Closing Deadline, a
written status report explaining the circumstances, and shall either

a. withdraw the Application and acceptance of the Grant award, or
b. request a one-time extension not to exceed six (6) months.

6. If the transaction fails to close, the recipient, Council, and Board will

execute and record a document terminating the Grant Agreement.
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7. The following closing documents must be submitted to the Board for

review at least ten (10) days prior to the scheduled closing:
a. Anindependent certified appraisal of the Property dated within
twelve (12) months of the Grant approval by Council;
b. A certified environmental hazard assessment, unless the Application
qualifies as a small grant application;

A final draft of the conservation easement and/or deed;

A final draft of the settlement statement;

A final draft of the title insurance commitment and exceptions;

A recorded by copy of this Grant Agreement signed by the Grantee,

and for conservation easements, by the Landowner; and

g. Any other data, acknowledgement, or documentation requested by
the OCCB.
h. The name, address, email address, and phone number of the Closing
Attorney and Firm.
The Board reserves the right to reject documents that do not comply with
the OCCB Ordinance.

8. The Board will process the grant funds pursuant to Policy No. 0002, Bank
Account.

9. Within sixty (60) days of closing, recipient must provide the Board with
executed closing documents, a report of how the grant funds were
distributed, and the status of the project.

10.If the grant award is for the fee simple purchase of land that will not be
subject to a conservation easement, the property is subject to inspection by
the County and the deed must include the following language:

S D Qo

Said premises shall be subject to: the provisions of Sections 2-
398 through 2-409 of the Oconee County, South Carolina Code
of Ordinances, the policies adopted by the Oconee County
Conservation Bank, and the grant agreement executed by the
Grantee and Oconee County, such that the premises shall be
permanently protected for the conservation purposes
described therein.
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11.The recipient shall submit a copy of recipient’s annual inspections of the
Property to the OCCB within twelve (12) months of the release of Grant
Funds. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the OCCB on an annual basis. Electronic copies of recipient’s
annual stewardship reports are acceptable. Recipient is required to give
the OCCB notice of any stewardship concern that materially threatens the
conservation purposes of the Grant Award within thirty (30) days of
discovery.

12.The recipient and the Board shall retain copies of all documents related to

the award of the grant and the acquisition of interests in land.

13.For all grants, a copy of the recipient’s annual inspection of the property
must be submitted to the Board within twelve (12) months of closing on
the property. Thereafter, copies of all future inspection reports must be
submitted to the Board on an annual basis. The annual reports shall be in a
format comparable to the annual reports typically required of conservation
easements. Recipients are required to give the Board notice of any
stewardship concerns that materially threatens the conservation purposes
of the grant within thirty (30) days of discovery.

14.All interests in land obtained with OCCB funds may only be assigned from
one eligible OCCB recipient to another eligible OCCB recipient after
approval by the majority of the Board.

15.Any fee simple interest in land acquired with OCCB funds may not be used
for any purpose other than that set forth in the Grant Agreement. If OCCB
funds were used to purchase a Conservation Easement, the Conservation
Easement is the controlling legal document on what is or is not permitted
on the property.

16.The eligible OCCB recipient or the Landowner must notify the Board if a
claim is made against the title to the property.

17. Any interest in land or any portion thereof funded in whole or part by
OCCB funds shall not transferred without the approval of the Board. The
Board shall have the unilateral authority to approve or deny such transfer.

18. If the interest in the Property is reduced or increased by 10% or less in
acreage of that stated in the Application, the Board shall have the authority
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to reduce the award on a proportional per acre basis. However, a
reduction or increase of acreage exceeding 10% shall be deemed material

and will render the original grant award and the Grant Agreement null and
void.



Record and Return to:

Oconee County Conservation Bank
415 S. Pine Street

Walhalla, SC 29691

SOUTH CAROLINA )
) GRANT AGREEMENT
OCONEE COUNTY )

WHEREAS, the Oconee County Council approved the Oconee County Conservation
Bank’s (the “OCCB”) recommendation for grant funding to

(the “Grantee”) on 20 in
the amount of and
00/100 Dollars ($ .00) (the “Grant Funds”) for the fee simple purchase
of or the placement of a conservation easement on the tract of land described in Exhibit A

(the “Property”) for the purpose of permanently conserving the Property;

WHEREAS, the OCCB’s award was effected pursuant to Sections 2-398 through 2-409
of the Oconee County Code of Ordinances (the “Conservation Bank Ordinance”);

WHEREAS, the Conservation Bank Ordinance requires the Grantee to enter into a Grant
Agreement to ensure that the Property is permanently conserved in accordance with Conservation
Bank Ordinance, the Grantee’s Application for funding, and this Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Sections 2-404 and 2-405 of the Conservation Bank Ordinance require that
a) Grantee enter into this Grant Agreement and b) the County and the OCCB be indemnified in
the amount of the Grant Funds in the event of improperly used OCCB funding, title issues or
defects, or other issues referenced in Section 2-405.

NOW, THEREFORE, the County, the OCCB, and the Grantee agree that by signing this
Agreement and accepting any of the Grant Funds, the following shall apply:

1. Grant Award. The OCCB hereby awards funding in the amount of
and 00/100 Dollars ( .00) to Grantee for
the acquisition of real estate interests for the conservation purposes set forth in the
Conservation Bank Ordinance, this Grant Agreement, and Grantee’s Application for
Funding, which was received by the OCCB on 20 . All
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representations made by Grantee in the Application and during the review and consideration
of the Application by the OCCB and Council are incorporated into this Grant Agreement.

General Terms of Grant.
Grantee:
Project/Property:
Fee Simple or Conservation Easement:
Date Approved by the OCCB:
Date Approved by Oconee County Council:
Date Grant Award Accepted by Grantee:
Total Grant Amount:

Proportional Per Acre Percent of Fair Market Value:
Closing Deadline:
Title Insurance Provider:

o STe@ e a0 o

Failure to Close. The failure to close by the Closing Deadline, unless a written extension is
granted by the OCCB, shall automatically render the Grant Award null and void.

Use of Grant Funds. The OCCB awarded this Grant in reliance upon the accuracy and
completeness of the Grantee’s Application and supporting documents, and Grantee’s
representations. Grant Funds must only be used for the acquisition of real estate interests for
conservation purposes, including closing costs as allowed by the Conservation Bank
Ordinance. Any material changes to the scope or purpose of the Project arising after
approval by the Oconee County Council must be approved by the OCCB and Council.

Conditions for Disbursement of Grant Funds. Pursuant to the Conservation Bank
Ordinance, the OCCB shall not disburse the Grant Funds until the Grantee provides the
OCCB with the following:

a. An independent certified appraisal of the Property dated within twelve (12) months of the
Grant approval by Council;

b. A certified environmental hazard assessment, unless the Application qualifies as a small
grant application;

c. A final draft of the conservation easement and/or deed;
d. A final draft of the settlement statement;
e. A final draft of the title insurance commitment and exceptions;

f. Arecorded by copy of this Grant Agreement signed by the Grantee, and for conservation
easements, by the Landowner; and
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10.

11.

12.

g. Any other data, acknowledgement, or documentation requested by the OCCB.
h. The name, address, email address, and phone number of the Closing Attorney and Firm.

The OCCB reserves the right to reject documents that do not comply with the
Conservation Bank Ordinance.

Recorded Grant Agreement. The Grantee shall record the executed Grant Agreement with
the Register of Deeds for Oconee County, South Carolina. A copy of the recorded Grant
Agreement must be submitted to the OCCB in accordance with Paragraph 5f herein.

Delivery of Grant Funds. All approved Grant Funds shall be delivered to the closing attorney
identified by the Grantee after the OCCB approves the documents required in Paragraph 5.

Discrepancies.

a. Acreage Discrepancies. If the interest in the Property is reduced by 10% or less in
acreage as to that stated in the Application, the OCCB Chair shall have the authority to
reduce the award on a proportional per acre basis. However, a reduction of acreage
exceeding 10% shall be deemed material and will render the Application and Grant
Award null and void.

b. Valuation Discrepancies. The ultimate amount of the Grant Funds shall be based upon the
Conservation Value cited in the appraisal or in the Application, whichever is less.

Closing Deadline. Closing for the Property shall be scheduled no later than the date set forth
in Paragraph 2h or within 30 days of delivery of Grant Funds, whichever is sooner. In the
event that Grantee is not going to close on the Property/Project by the Closing Deadline,
Grantee shall submit to the OCCB, before the Closing Deadline, a written status report
explaining the circumstances, and shall either a) withdraw the Application and acceptance of
the Grant award, or b) request a one-time extension not to exceed six (6) months.

Closing Report. Within sixty (60) days of closing, the Grantee shall submit to the OCCB a
report detailing how the Grant Funds were distributed and the status of the Project.

Monitoring and Inspection. If this Grant Agreement relates to the fee simple transfer of the
Property to the Grantee, the Grantee acknowledges and agrees that Oconee County: a) has
the right to access the Property for the sole purpose of inspecting and monitoring the status of
conservation of the Property and b) has the authority to enforce the provisions of this Grant
Agreement and the Conservation Bank Ordinance.

Annual Report. The Grantee shall submit a copy of Grantee’s annual inspections of the
Property to the OCCB within twelve (12) months of the release of Grant Funds. Thereafter,
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

copies of all future inspection reports must be submitted to the OCCB on an annual basis.
Electronic copies of Grantee’s annual stewardship reports are acceptable. Grantee is required
to give the OCCB notice of any stewardship concern that materially threatens the conservation
purposes of the Grant Award within thirty (30) days of discovery.

Record-Keeping. Grantee shall be responsible for the expenditure of Grant Funds and for
retaining and maintaining documents and records consistent with generally accepted
accounting practices pertaining to the Grant award, acquisition of interests in the Property, and
management and/or status of the conservation of the Property. Grantee’s financial record-
keeping and accounting procedures relating to the administration of the Grant Award must be
made available for examination by the OCCB during normal business hours and if requested
with reasonable notice.

Public Relations. Grantee agrees to coordinate with the OCCB before issuing press releases
or other public statements concerning the Grant Award. The OCCB may issue press releases
without notice to or the consent of the Grantee.

Title Insurance. The Grantee shall obtain and maintain title insurance in the Grantee’s name
to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the total of the Grant
Funds for issues related to the title to the Property

Indemnification Funds. The Grantee shall maintain funds sufficient to indemnify and
reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the total of the Grant Funds for issues
unrelated to title to the Property that impact the conservation of the Property.

Indemnification — Breach of Grant Agreement, Improper Use of Grant Funds. The
Grantee agrees to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in an amount up to the
total of the Grant Funds for deficiencies, claims, damages, or any other liabilities in the event
of the breach of the Grant Agreement or the improper use of Grant Funds.

Indemnification — Section 2-405 (g): In the event the Grantee’s interest in the Property is
extinguished, terminated, sold, transferred, assigned, alienated, or converted and can not be
replaced as required in Subsections 2-405(g) of the Conservation Bank Ordinance, the Grantee
agrees to indemnify and reimburse the County and the OCCB in the amount of the Grant Funds
or the Proportional Per Acre Percent of the then current Fair Market Value, whichever is
greater.

Indemnification — Hold Harmless. Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the OCCB and Oconee County from and against any loss, cost, or damage of any kind arising
out of the Grantee’s negligence or willful misconduct.
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20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

Notification of Breach. The OCCB shall notify the Grantee in writing if the OCCB
determines the Grantee has breached this Agreement; has not made adequate attempts to fulfill
the terms of the Grant Agreement; has made a misrepresentation about the organization, such
as its 501(c)(3) status, or about the Project; files bankruptcy; has misappropriated Grant Funds;
or has otherwise jeopardized the ability of the Property to be permanently conserved. Grantee
shall have thirty (30) days to review and respond to the OCCB’s determination and if no
response is made, the OCCB shall have the unilateral authority to require that the Grantee
reimburse the OCCB in the full amount of the Grant Award or the Proportional Per Acre
Percent of the then current Fair Market Value, whichever is greater or require other actions,
such as transferring the property to a willing and eligible OCCB recipient, to ensure the
permanent conservation of the Property.

Notification of Intended Transfer of Property Interest. The Grantee agrees to notify the
OCCB of any intended transfer of the Property or any part or interest in the Property, including
the transfer of the Conservation Easement, if any exists, as soon as the Grantee determines that
the transfer is intended and in no even not later than sixty (60) days before the intended transfer
is to occur.

Authority to Prohibit Transfer of Property. The Grantee agree that the OCCB shall have
the unilateral authority to prohibit the transfer of the Property or any part or interest in the
Property, including the transfer of the Conservation Easement, if any exists, if the OCCB
determines that the proposed transfer a) will threaten or jeopardize the permanent conservation
of the Property or b) will not be to a qualified eligible OCCB recipient as that term as defined
and required in the Conservation Bank Ordinance..

Binding Agreement. This Agreement shall bind the Grantee, it successors and assigns, and
shall continue in existence so long as the obligations as described herein and in the
Conservation Bank Ordinance remain in force.

Severance of Provisions. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this
Grant Agreement shall be for any reason held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect,
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Grant
Agreement, and this Grant Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

Future Grant Support. The OCCB has no obligation to provide any support beyond award
of the Grant, unless otherwise agreed to in writing between the Parties to this Grant Agreement.

Governing Law. This Grant Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of South Carolina and the Conservation Bank Ordinance. In carrying out the
Project, Grantee will comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances and
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217.

28.

will not infringe, misappropriate, or violate the intellectual property, privacy, or publicity
rights of any third party.

Independence. Nothing contained herein shall create a partnership, joint venture,
employment, agency or fiduciary relationship between the parties. Neither party has the right
or authority to control or direct the activities of the other or the right or ability to bind the other
to any agreement with a third party or to incur any obligation or liability on behalf of the other
party, unless expressly authorized in this Agreement. Neither party to this Agreement shall be
liable to the other party for any consequential, punitive, special or exemplary damages
(including lost profits) resulting from or arising out of any breach of this Agreement, or any
party’s performance under this Agreement.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts (or upon
separate signature pages bound together in one or more counterparts), each executed
counterpart constituting an original agreement, but altogether constituting only one agreement.
This Agreement may be executed via facsimile or electronic document (including PDF)
signature.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

This Grant Agreement is executed by and between Oconee County, South Carolina, the

Oconee County Conservation Bank, the Grantee, its successors and assigns, to wit:

Page 6 of 10



OCONEE COUNTY:

Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
day of 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

GRANTEE:

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
____ dayof 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

OCONEE COUNTY CONSERVATION BANK:

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
____ dayof 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

FOR GRANT AGREEMENT RELATING TO A CONSERVATION EASEMENT

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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LANDOWNER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT

A) THE EXECUTION OF THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT IS A BINDING LEGAL
DOCUMENT THAT PERMANENTLY CONVEYS A PROPERTY INTEREST,

B) THE LANDOWNER WILL BE LEGALLY BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THE
CONSERVATION EASEMENT, WHICH WILL BE THE CONTROLLING
DOCUMENT REGARDING WHAT IS AND WHAT IS NOT PERMITTED UPON

THE PROPERTY, AND

C) THAT THE PLACEMENT OF THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON THE
PROPERTY IS A CONVEYANCE OF A PROPERTY INTERST TO WHICH ANY

MORTGAGE IS SUBORDINATE.

LANDOWNER:

Signature

By:

Its:

Sworn and subscribed before me this
day of 20

Notary Public for:
My Commission ends:

Witness:

Witness:

Date:

Notary Seal:
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OCONEE COUNTY CONSERVATION BANK GRANTS AWARDED

As of April 6, 2021
PROJECT; OWNER GRANT CLOSED | ACRES | RECPIENT PURPOSE TYPE
Oconee Towne; SC DNR $9,567.33 6/5/2017 53.68 | Upstate Forever, History, Conservation, Fee Simple
Naturaland Trust Public Access
Jerry Powell $7,500.00 | 8/17/2017 94.10 | Oconee Soil & Water Working Farm, Conservation | Conservation
Conservation District Easement
McKinney Creek Oconee Bell $58,000.00 | 12/5/2019 | 195.60 | Naturaland Trust Conservation, Public Access | Fee Simple
Preserve - Chiff Timber LLC;
Naturaland Trust
Gary and Christy Lyle $45,000.00 | 6/17/20201 165.89 [ Oconee Soil & Water Working Farm, Conservation, | Conservation
Conservation District Water Quality Protection Easement
Chapman Bridge Oconee Bell $88,000.00 | 7/29/2020 | 238.72 | Naturaland Trust Conservation, Public Access Fee Simple
Preserve - Chiff Timber LLC:
Naturaland Trust
Elaine Morris Trust $12,500.00 | 12/22/2020 26.26 | Upstate Forever Conservation Conservation
Easement
William Lyles Estate; Naturaland $66,100.00 | 12/29/2020 155.56 | Upstate Forever, Working Farm, Conservation, | Fee Simple
Trust Naturaland Trust Water Quality Protection
Peggy Moore $10,000.00 | PENDING 58.60 | Oconee Soil & Water Working Farm, Water Conservation
(June 2021) Conservation District Quality Protection Easement
Grant Funds Disbursed, $286,667.33 929.81
Cost/Acre, Acres Protected $308.31/Acre
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Taychoedah

An Application Prepared for the Oconee County Conservation Bank

Project Summary

Taychoedah (pronounced “tie-CO-ee-dah”) is a Native American word meaning “camp by the
water.” On behalf of Geary Hughes and Dorothy Heger (“Landowners”), Upstate Forever is
pleased to present to the OCCB Board this 42-acre parcel just south of Highway 11 near Lake
Keowee. The tract is located across Highway 11 from Naturaland Trust’s three Oconee Bell
Preserves: Chapman Bridge, McKinneys Creek, and Boones Creek. Not only does the tract
possess habitat suitable for Oconee Bell communities (Shortia galacifolia), an imperiled species
with a limited range, but it is situated in the known geographical range of its historical
distribution. The tract includes approximately ¥2-mile of stream frontage of the east branch of
Cornhouse Creek, which is a spring-fed tributary originating just north of the property. An
impoundment on the east branch creates a small 3-acre pond before joining Cornhouse Creek,
a tributary of Lake Keowee. Currently, there is one residence, one small shed, and a detached
garage/storage structure. No subdivisions are being requested; however, the landowners would
like to build a small guesthouse for family/visitors. During a site visit, one Oconee Bell plant
and several trillium were observed. We respectfully request the Oconee County Conservation
Bank to support the protection of this property through a conservation easement with funding
in the amount of $17,999.

I. General Property and Project Information

The Landowners would like to place a conservation easement on their 42-acre parcel with Upstate
Forever as the land trust holding the easement. Allen McCravy of Stone & Associates prepared an
appraisal for the Landowners in February of this year, which appraised the value of the property at
$275,000, and the conservation easement at $180,000. They are respectfully asking for support
from the Oconee County Conservation Bank (OCCB) for $17,999 - one dollar less than 10% of the
conservation value of the property.

The property consists primarily of deciduous hardwood forest with some small areas pine and
grassland. A spring-fed stream originating north of the property feeds a tributary of Cornhouse
House, which runs adjacent to the eastern boundary of the property and creates a small 3-acre
pond. Cornhouse House is a tributary of Lake Keowee, a major drinking water supply for several
water utilities serving Oconee, Pickens, and Greenville Counties. In addition, there is a small 1-acre
freshwater forested/shrub wetland at the southern end of the property where the spring-fed stream

Pagelof6



UFiFortven

and Cornhouse Creek meet. Most importantly, however, this property is situated in the known
geographical range of the imperiled Oconee Bell (Shortia galacifolia) and provides suitable habitat
for the propagation and enhancement of this rare, endemic species.

Supporting Attachments:
o Excerpt from Appraisal
©  Map: Location of Property within Oconee County
o Map: Location of Property on USGS Topo
o Plat of Survey

II. Mandatory Requirements/Submissions

Per OCCB requirements, Upstate Forever has notified all adjacent landowners of the Landowners
intentions to place a conservation easement on their property, as well as this appeal to the OCCB.
No portion of the funds will be used for endowments, monitoring, staffing, management, planning,
or any costs not associated with the purchase (bargain sale) of the conservation easement. Because
a certified environmental hazard assessment has not been ordered, the amount of this request is $1
less than 10% of the conservation value.

The property interest purchased with OCCB funds will result in a permanent conservation
easement restricting certain development rights and protecting the conservation values in
perpetuity. The existing mortgage on the property will be made subordinate to the conservation
easement.

Supporting Attachments:
o List of Adjacent Landowners
o Example of Letter Mailed to Adjacent Landowners
o Copy of Mortgage Deed

o Draft of Conservation Easement

IT1. Applicant and Project Information

Upstate Forever is a 501(c)3 conservation and advocacy organization with a nationally accredited
land trust operating in the ten-county Upstate region since 1998. To date, we have protected over
25,000 acres of the Upstate, including over 100 miles of rivers and streams, with over 6,000 of those
acres in Oconee County. Most of the protected properties are private lands managed for hunting or
timber, but several are working farms, public recreation areas, or important habitat areas providing
critical migration corridors or protecting rare, threatened, or endangered species.
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We steward our inventory of easements on an annual basis according to National Land Trust
Alliance standards. We take corrective actions as stated in the conservation easement to remedy
unpermitted uses of the property either by the landowner or by outside parties. Further, Upstate
Forever can appeal to Terrafirma for legal remedy if litigation is necessary. The Landowners have
agreed to provide a contribution to our stewardship endowment to cover the long-term costs
associated with ensuring the conservation values of the property remain intact in perpetuity.

Although a membership-based non-profit organization, much of our budget is derived from
contributions from major donors, charitable foundations, and grants, including federal, state, and
local programs. Furthermore, we attribute the high degree of success to strong partnerships and
collaborative efforts with other agencies and organizations. With over twenty years of experience
in conservation, particularly in land conservation through conservation easements, Upstate
Forever is one of the leading and most qualified land trusts working in the Upstate.
Supporting Attachments:

o Draft of Conservation Easement

e RS Determination Letter

e Articles of Incorporation

¢ Excerpt from Most Recent Public Audit

¢ Budget for FY2021

IV. Conservation Criteria

The following conservation values according to the IRS will be protected by the easement:
 Significant natural areas containing relatively natural habitat of fish, wildlife, and/or plants,
associated with mixed hardwood forests; and

» Agricultural and forest land in close proximity to other conserved property, such as Devils
Fork State Park, Keowee-Toxaway State Park, Oconee Bell Preserves.

The Landowner wish to retain the following development rights:

e Maintain, replace, and/or expand existing structures;
¢ Build one additional residential structure - 2,000 sq. ft. max; and

¢ No subdivision is requested.

According to the IPaC resource list provided by the USFWS, several species may benefit from the
protection of natural resources on the property, including the northern long-eared bat (Myotis
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septentrionalis), persistent trillium (trillium persistens), small whorled pogonia (Isotria
medeoloides), and the smooth coneflower (Echinacea laevigata). In addition, the red-headed
woodpecher (Melanerpes erythrocephalus), a migratory bird species of conservation concern, may
use visit this area during breeding season. Lastly, according to the National Wetlands Inventory, the
property contains a small 1-acre freshwater forested/shrub wetland at the confluence of the spring-
fed tributary and Cornhouse Creek.

Taychoedah is located near Naturaland Trust’s three Oconee Bell Preserves and Devils Fork State
Park, home of the annual Oconee Bell Fest. Oconee Bell is a rare plant found only in a few locations
of moist, wooded areas along streams in the mountains of Georgia, North Carolina, and South
Carolina - and on the property itself (see cover photo). Primary impacts to its distribution have been
developments, agriculture, and hydropower. It is estimated that 80% of its population and habitat
were inundated when Lakes Keowee and Jocassee were constructed. A 1979 research study
conducted by Dunn and Jones inventoried known stations of the Oconee Bell, including areas on
nearby Smeltzers and Burgess Creeks, among others. Coneross Creek lies between Lake Keowee and
Smeltzers and Burgess Creeks, and elevation of the Taychoedah project is well within the range
required for propagation (600’ to 1,700), making it suitable habitat for propagation and enhancement
of the Oconee Bell.

Development around Lake Keowee has econtinued to grow and continues to convert former
agricultural lands and forest lands to subdivisions and other development projects. A golf course
and associated community has emerged between the property and the Lake, encouraging increased
development between the Lake and the Town of Salem. As development continues, natural resources
including important habitat and freshwater sources will be severely impacted. This project will
restrict development on the property, including a 200’ buffer on the streams, thereby protecting its
natural resources in perpetuity.

Supporting Attachments:
o Draft of Conservation Easement
o USFWS IPaC Report
o Map: Hydrographic Map
o  Study: Dunn and Jones (1979)
¢ Selected photos of plant and wildlife species observed on the property
o Map: Proximity of Property to Other Protected Areas
¢  Map: Proximity of Property to Nearest Municipality
¢ Map: Proximity of Property to Nearby Development

o County Parcel Information and Map
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V. Financial Criteria

Upstate Forever is a nationally accredited land trust with the National Land Trust Alliance. We
currently hold over 135 conservation easements in the Upstate protecting over 25,000 acres. Qur
stewardship endowment ensures that we have the finances to conduct annual stewardship visits in
perpetuity, and we conduct voluntary public audits to ensure that remains true year after year.

This project will not rely on any additional funding sources, relying only on the support of the
OCCB through a standard bargain sale transaction. Given the appraised value of the property, this
presents a unique opportunity for the County to invest in the protection of its natural resources.
Further, this project provides other economic benefits to the County through the various
ecosystem services ensured through the easement. Improved water guality, reduced flooding,
carbon sequestration, and reduced traffic and other infrastructure needs will reduce costs to the
County and its residents over time.

Supporting Attachments:
o Draft of Conservation Easement
e [RS Determination Letter
o Articles of Incorporation
o Excerpt from Most Recent Public Audit
o Budget for FY2021
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List of Attachments

o  QOconee County Conservation Bank Application

o Excerpt from Appraisal

o Map: Location of Property within Oconee County

e Map: Location of Property on USGS Topo

a  Plat of Survey

o List of Adjacent Landowners

o Example of Letter Mailed to Adjacent Landowners

o Copy of Mortgage Deed

o Draft of Conservation Easement

o USFWS [PaC Report

e Map: Hydrographic Map

e Study: Dunn and Jones (1979)

o Selected photos of plant and wildlife species observed on the property
e  Map: Proximity of Property to Other Protected Areas
¢ Map: Proximity of Property to Nearest Municipality
o  Map: Proximity of Property to Nearby Development
e County Parcel Information and Map

o[RS Determination Latter

¢ Articles of Incorporation

¢ Excerpt from Most Recent Public Audit

o Budget for FYz2021
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Oconee County Conservation Bank
Application for Funding

Oconee County, South Carolina

To be completed pursuant to the
OCCB Ordinance and OCCB Board Policies No. 0001 and 0003

Send Completed Application to:

Oconee County Conservation Bank Board
c/o Clerk to Council
via email to: ksmith@oconeesc.com

Application Deadlines: April 1, August 1, November 1

OCCBB Application for Funding v4 Page 1 of 14



SECTION I - General Property/Project Information

General Information

Property/Project Name: Taychoedah

Property Address or Description of Location: __ /0 Nimmons Bridge Rd,, Salem, SC 29676

Acquisition type: Fee Simple or __x Conservation Easement

Total monetary amount requested: $_ 17,999

Conservation Value of property? $_180,000

Attach a certified appraisal or an explanation of the basis for the Conservation Value. 51-A
|See excerpt from appraisal attached |

Landowner

Name Dorothy Heger and Geary Hughes

Mailing Address PO Box 636, Salem, SC 29676

Email Address 1 IINININGE

Cell Phone (J ) I
Work Phone ( )

Home Phone ( }

Eligible OCCB Recipient (“Applicant”) Seeking Funding

Name of Organization __Upstate Forever

Contact Name  Chris Starker

Contact Email Address  cstarker@upstateforever.org

Contact Cell Phone { )

Contact Work Phone (864 ) 203 -1948

Organization EIN _57 - 10070433
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Property Information
Parcel ID or TMS#:
Plat Reference (Plat Book/Page) S1-B1: _MapPlatB A26 MapPlatP 8
Deed Reference (Deed Book/Page) S1-B1: _2465/194

065 - 00 - 04 -004

Current Zoning Classification: _ Control Free
42.02 acres

Total Acres:
Total Acres Forested: _29.75 acres (78.7%)

Total Acres Cleared/Open/Pasture; _8.01 acres (21.2%)

Total Acres Wetlands: 1-0-acre palustrine freshwater forested/shrub wetland

Creeks and/or Rivers — Names, Length, Width:
East Branch of Cornhguse Creek, approximately 1/2 mile, 2-6 fest depending on location.

Property includes approximately 3-acre pond above the confluence of Cornhouse Creek with the east
branch. The pond is approximately 700’ long and 250’ across at its widest point.

Total Acres Farmed — List Farm Type, e.g. livestock, row crop: _a

Is project acreage part of larger parcel? If so, what is larger parcet acreage: No

Unlque charactenstlcs of property (may be submltted as part of Appllcant’s narrative):

(Shortia galacifolia) and provides suitable habltat for the propagatlon and enhancement of

this rare plant species. In addition, the property protects approximately 1/2-mile of stream
frontage of the east branch of Cornhouse Creek, which is a spring-fed tributary of Lake
“Keowee.

Show location of property on County Map S$7-B2 and show location on other pertinent
documents such as plat, USGS map, etc. S1-83.

See attached.

- County Location Map
- USGS Location Map
- Survey/Plat Photo
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Section Il - Mandatory Requirements/Submissions

1.  Applicant’s Requirements - by signing below the Applicant confirms that to the
best of the Applicant’s knowledge and belief all answers in this Application are accurate:

a. Applicant certifies that it notified all adjoining landowners within S days of
submission of the application that:

i,  The Applicant is applying for funding from the OCCB and
ii. The adjoining landowners have 30 days to submit comments to the OCCB
regarding the application. Attach a list of the adjoining landowners and

addresses. 52-A1 [See attached list plus example letter. |

X  yes no

Failure to meet the above requirement will require the application to be returned
to applicant for correction and resubmission.

b. Applicant agrees that OCCB funds may not be used for endowments, monitoring,
staffing, management, planning, or any costs not associated with the purchase.

X ves no

c. Applicant acknowledges that, if no appraisal is attached and the Applicant is
awarded a grant, a certified appraisal establishing the Fair Market Value of the
Conservation Value and Property must be submitted within 12 months of Oconee
County Council approval and that the award shall be 10% of the Conservation
Value in the Appraisal or that the OCCB awarded, whichever is less.

X yes no

d. If this is a fee simple acquisition project, Applicant agrees to be bound by the
Grant Agreement and the language required in OCCB Palicy No. 0003, Grant
Procedures in the deed. N/A

yes no

e. is this a small grant application as defined in OCCB Ordinance Section 2-
404(c)(3)d. and OCCB Policy No. 0003, Grant Procedures? To be a small grant
application the request must be at least $1 less than either $30,000 or 10% of the
Conservation Value, whichever is smaller.

X  yes no If no, Applicant agrees to submit a certified
environmental hazard assessment, S2-A5

%’ M.\ 29 March 2021

Signature of Applicant Date
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2. Landowner’s Requirements*: by signing below the Landowner confirms that to

the best of the Landowner’s knowledge and belief all answers in this Application are
accurate, in addition:

a. Is Landowner committed to placing a Conservation Easement on the property or to

conveying title to the property to the Applicant with OCCB deed restrictions if a grant of
OCCB funds is approved?

X Conservation
Y®® Easement

b. Landowner certifies that the Applicant notified Landowner in writing:

no

i.  that the property interest purchased with OCCB funds will result in a permanent
conveyance of such property interests from the Landowner to the Applicant, and

ii.  thatit may be in the Landowner’s best interests to retain independent legal counsel,
appraisals, and other professional advice.

¢. Does Landowner agree to allow inspection by the OCCB of the property and project
being presented for OCCB funding?

X ves no

d. Are there any existing liens, mortgages, or other encumbrances, such as easements,
restrictive covenants, etc., that currently exist on the property?

X ves no  'hereis a mortgage on the property, which will be
subordinate to the conservation easement.

If yes, attach a list of the encumbrances. S2-B4a. A copy of the mortgage deed is attached.

If this is an application for the funding of a Conservation Easement and there is a
mortgage, the Landowners must submit documentation showing that Applicant or
Landowner has notified each lender in writing that if OCCB funding is awarded, the
mortgage will be subordinate to the Conservation Easement. S2-B4b.

/Zf%ﬂ/%#,(/ 675/_—?.;: Lol ]
Signature yLaﬁdé nér Date

-

Sworn and subs

- \/
ibed this 2’ day of | B cH 202 |
~G1T Mo,
\“‘. 0_0-' ...... ‘,f? {,z
2 OTAR)

‘““\llllmm“‘
Notapy Public for » g * My Comm Exp *
My Commission expires: (¢ (@(.9"-4«7 2 i 10-06-2027
% R
2,50, ,Ua\_f.’-\s?

%,

Ut TH GARONS

ST

Y
A\

"'
72 A\
LTI L

* May be submitted as Landowner’s notarized affidavit.
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Section lil - Applicant and Project Information

1.  Applicant Information - Type of Organization seeking funding. Check one:

Oconee County
Municipality located in Oconee County

Oconee County agency or commission whose mission relates to land
conservation

X Public Charity having tax-exempt status under IRS Code of 1986

Federal, State, or local agency operating for natural protection, land
conservation, or historical preservation purposes

2. Entity that will be responsible for managing the land

Name Dorothy Heger and Geary Hughes

Mailing Address PO Box 636, Salem, SC 29678

Contact Name DPorothy Heger

Contact Email [ NNIGINGE

Cell Phone (NN
Work Phone ( )

3. Entity that will be responsible for enforcing conservation easement or
deed restrictions and grant agreement.

Name Upstate Forever

Mailing Address _ 507 Petligru Street, Greenville, SC 29601

Contact Name Chris Starker

Contact Emajl cstarker@upstateforever.org

Cell Phone { 864)203 - 1948

Work Phone ( 864)250 - 0500 x 115
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Applicant Information

a. How will you be able to complete the project and secure additional funding to
acquire the designated property interests? Affach additional sheet if necessary.
S3-D1

The Landowners have agreed to provide a stewardship endowment to cover long-term
costs associated with ensuring that the conservation values of the property remain intact
in perpetuity. No other costs or additional funding is needed to complete this project.

b. How many total acres of land have you conserved in:

25,817 gouth Carolina 8,583 Oconee County 863  Other
Polk County, NC

c. Briefly describe the lands your organization has preserved in this State and
County, include size, location, and method of preservation.

Most of the protected properties are private lands managed for hunting or timber, but several are
working farms, public recreation areas, or important habitat areas providing critical migration
corridors or protecting rare, threatened, or endangered species, including over 100 miles of rivers
and streams.

d. Explain how the Conservation Easement and/or deed restrictions on the
protected land will be enforced. Attach additional sheet if necessary. $3-D4

Upstate Forever is a nationally accredited land trust under the national Land Trust Alliance. We
steward our inventory of easements on an annual basis according LTA standards. If there are
unpermitted uses of the property either by the landowner or by outside parties, then corrective
action is pursued as stated in the easement language and according to LTA guidelines. Further,
Upstate Forever can apply to Terrafirma for legal remedy if litigation is required. A draft

Land Management Information conservation easement is attached.

a. Please describe the financial resources and qualifications of the managing entity.
Altach additional sheet if necessary. S3-E1
Upstate Forever is a 501(c)3 non-profit land trust and advocacy group. Although membership-
based, much of our budget is derived from contributions from major donors, charitable foundations,
and grants, including federal, state, and local programs. With aver twenty years of experience in
conservation, particularly in [and conservation through conservation easements, Upstate Forever is
one of the leading and most qualified land trusts working in the Upstate. See related attachments.
b. Does the Applicant or Landowner have a conservation land management plan for

this project? If so, attach the plan or a summary of the plan. If no, please
describe the uses to which the property will be put and how they will conserve
the property. 83-E2

yes X no |However, a draft conservation easement is attached.|
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Section IV - Conservation Criteria

Environmental Sensitivity

a. Does the property contain or adjoin wetlands?

A USFWS iPaC Report is attached, which
includes a NWI analysis of wetlands on site.

If yes, attach documentation, such as GIS using NW! or USFWS; regarding the
wellands, wetland delineation, or certification by USACOE or NRCS. S4-1a

X yes no

b. Does the property contain or adjoin a USGS Blue Line Stream or Lake?

X  vyes no [See attached map. |

If yes, provide a USGS topographic map showing such stream or lake in relation
to property. S4-1b

c. Does the property contain or adjoin Water Classified as:

N/A
(i) Outstanding Natural Resource Water

(i) Outstanding Resource Water
(iti) Trout Water

If yes, provide evidence of classification by SC DHEC. S4-1¢

d. Does the property currently contain threatened or endangered species?

X es no Shortia galacifolia is listed as imperiled in the State of
y SC, which has been identified on the property.

If yes, attach certification by SC DNR, NRCS, USFS or other qualified
professional providing evidence of such species or likelihood of existence on the

property. S4-1d [see attached scientific journal article by Dunn and Jones {1979) describing the range and
habitat conditions for Shortia galacifolia, as well as photo of species observed on site.

e. Does the property currently contain habitat suitable for threatened or endangered
species?

X  yes no

If yes, attach documentation by SC DNAR, NARCS, USFS or other qualified
professional providing evidence of the habilat suitability for specific species. 54-

1e See USFWS IPaC Report, which lists the known or expected range of endangered species, including
migratory birds, Also, see Dunn and Jones (1979)

f. Does the property currently contain native wildlife species or habitat suitable for
native wildlife species?

X  vyes no
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If yes, provide evidence (e.g. Statement from a qualified agency or professional,
efe.) of such species existence on the properly or of habitat suitability for such
species. 54-1f

|See attached selection of photos taken of wildlife observed on the property. I

g. Does the property contain special or concentrated biodiversity? f yes, please
provide evidence of the biodiversity on the properly, such as photographs,

SpeCfeS ”St, or ﬂar!’affve descripﬂon. 84'19 See aftached selection of photos taken of
wildlife observed on the property.

X vyes no

h. Does the property currently contain a unique geclogical feature?

yes X no

If yes, provide a description and evidence of geological feature(s). S4-1h

2, Does the property share a boundary with Protected Land?

yes X no

If yes, describe the Protected Land and present a legible map showing such
Protected Land in relation to the property. S4-2a

If yes, what percentage of a boundary is shared with such Protected Land?
1%-25% 26%-50% > 50% 100%

3. Does the property contain any of the following pre-historic or

historic features or designations? Check those in a— e that apply.

N/A
a. Listing on the National Historic Register? Provide a letter or other

evidence from the Department of the Interior demonstrating such listing. $4-3a
b. Eligible for listing on the National Historic Register? Provide a letter or

other evidence from the SC State Historic Preservation Office demonstrating
such eligibility. $4-3b
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C. Contains historic or pre-historic structures? Provide evidence in the form
of photographs and a description of the reason the sfruclure(s) are considered
historic or pre-historic. S4-3¢

d. Contains a site(s) of historic or pre-historic significance without a
structure? Provide evidence in the form of photographs and a description of the
reason the site(s) are considered historic or pre-historic. S4-3d

e. Location of an Historic Event? Provide a description and evidence of the
event. 54-3e

f. Is this an application for a solely cultural or historic site?

yes no

If yes, submit documentation describing the significance of the site and the
preservation plans; plans to restore the property, provide public access, and
provide signage related to the cultural or historical significance, etc. S4-3f

Does the property contain soils classified as Prime or Important by
the State of South Carolina?

yes X no

If yes, what percentage of the property contains soils classified as Prime or
important by the State of South Carolina?

30%-44% 45%-59% 60%-75% >75 %

If yes, provide a legible soil overlay map showing such Prime or imporiant soil types
upon the property. S4-4b
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8.

Is the property farmland as defined under one or both of following
criteria? N/A

a. Actively Farmed - Provide documentation that the property has been
farmed for the last five years, such as copies of filed IRS Forms Schedule F or
documentation demonstrating that the landowner has produced significant
agricultural products. S4-5a

b. Future Plans - Provide documentation explaining the extent to which the
proposal will keep the property in farmiand or wooded land. S4-5b

Is the property visible to the public from one of the following?

a. Public road? yes X no

b. Public land? yes X no

If yes, provide supporting documentation. S4-6
Does the property provide one of the following?

a. Scenic View from the property? yes X no

b. Maintain Scenic Nature of the County? yes X no

If yes, provide supporting documentation. S4-7

Does the proposal for the conservation project on the Property

allow for the following? See OCCB Policy No. 0003 for definitions.

a. Limited Access by the public to the properiy? yes X no

If yes, provide supporting documentation. 54-8a

b. Unlimited Access by the public to the property? yes X  no

If yes, provide supporting documentation. 54-8b

Location of Property.

a. Proximity to Protected Lands: _The property is located less than five miles from Devils Fork
State Park, and the McKinney Creek, Provide supporting documentation. S4-9a

Chapman Bridge, and Boones Creek Oconee Bell Preserves.
|See attached map showing proximity of property to nearby protected areas. I
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o C . i less than two miles
b. Proximity to municipality or community: The property is located less °

from the town of Salem. Provide supporting documentation. 54-9b

10. Is there a threat of development?

X  vyes no

If yes, provide documentation or a detailed narrative description of the threat. 54-10

A threat of development surrounds Upstate lakes, including Lake Keowee. There are several
subdivision development projects around the Lake, some of which are within very close
proximity to the project. See attached maps/narrative.

11. What is the approximate acreage of the property to be conserved?

42.02 Acres

Provide documentation to support the stated acreage, including survey(s), tax
information, deeds or other similar documentation. S4-11

12. What, if any, is the potential positive or negative impact on water
quality to wetlands or other water bodies not on the property?

Cornhouse Creek is a tributary of Lake Keowee, which is a drinking source for residents of several
counties, including Oconee, Pickens, and Greenville.

13. Attach a narrative description of the intended plans for the property,
including the specific requirements that will be in the Conservation
Easement or Deed, and how they will be accomplished. Inciude plans,

such as restoration plans, commitments for future public access, and stream buffers for the

property not already addressed in this Application. $4-13

A draft conservation easement is attached, which details the reserved and relinquished rights

as well as riparian buffer protections extending 200’ from the stream and pond. See narrative
for more detaiis.
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Section V - Financial Criteria

1.  Provide a narrative description to verify that the entity obligated to
enforce the Conservation Easement or deed restrictions has the financial
resources to enforce the easement or restrictions. /f Applicant fails to provide

sufficient information. the Board will not recommend Council award a_grant. S5-1
See attached IRS Determination Letter, Articles of Incorporation, excerpt from most recent Audit, and 2021 Budget.
E. What percent of Conservation Value is being requested from the OCCB?

a. Conservation Value  § 180,000
b. OCCB Request $ 17,999
10

¢. Percent % (b +ax100%)

3. Describe any committed, applied for, or potential matching funds and
known or predicted timeline for receipt of matching funds, including
landowner donation or a bargain sale by seller.

The Landowner intends to donate the remainder of the conservation value making this a bargain sale with the
Oconee County Conservation Bank and a sound conservation investment.

4. Describe partnerships, management agreements, management leases,
or other joint efforts that will help this project succeed.

This is a standard bargain sale conservation easement with a private landowner. There are no additional partnerships,

management agreements or leases, or other joint efforts included with this project. The only parties are the Landowner,
the Land Trust (Upstate Forever), and Oconee County {via the Oconee County Conservation Bank).

5. How does the proposal present a unique value opportunity in that it
protects land at a reasonable cost?

a.$ 428.34 Cost per acre of QCCB funds

b.$ 6,544.50 Fair market value per acre

c. 654 % (a+bx100= %)

6. Describe other ways that the project could provide economic benefits to

Oconee County.

Like many properties that are taken out of development and protected by a conservation easement, this
projects provides myriad economic benefits through the ecosystem services inherent in the property,
including: water quality benefits, reduced flooding, carbon sequestration, and reduced traffic and other
infrastructure needs (e.g., sewer & water). in addition, this property and the conservation easement pro-
tect the future ability to provide recreational opportunities for the future even though they are not presently
available.
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OCCB Application Attachment List (Each attachment must reference
section and question to which it applies.)

Check | Reference | Title Required
S1-A Certified appraisal or explanation of basis for Conservation Value X
S1-B1 Legal Description of the property Title work has bgen ordered.
S1-B2 Location on County Map X
S1-B3 Surveys, USGS maps, directions, county locator map, etc. X
S2-A1 Adjoining landowners notification: landowners and addresses list X
S2-A5 Certified environmental hazard assessment N/A
52-B4a List of liens, mortgages, or encumbrances, etc. X
S2-B4b Martgage lender notification: subordinate to CE Subordination has been order
S3-D1 Project Completion and additional funding plans N/A
S3-D4 Conservation Easement/deed restriction enforcement plan X
S3-E1 Qualification of Managing Entity X
S3-E2 Land Management Property Plan X
S4-1a Wetland certification X
S4-1b USGS Biue Line Stream or Lake documentation and map X
S4-1¢c SC DHEC Water Classification X
S4-1d Threatened or endangered species certification/evidence X
S4-1e Habitat suitability certification/evidence X
S4-1f Native wildlife species or habitat certification/evidence X
S4-1g Biological diversity evidence X
S4-1h Geological feature evidence X
S4-2a Protected Land Map relationship X
S4-3 a-e National Historic Register or Pre-historic structures/site evidence N/A
S4-3f Solely Cultural or Historic Site documentation N/A
S4-4b Soil overlay map of Prime or important soils types N/A
54-5 a-b Actively Farmed documentation or plans/proposal N/A
S4-6 Property visibility to public documentation N/A
S4-7 Scenic View documentation N/A
S4-8 a-b Limited or Unlimited Access to Property documentation N/A
S4-9 a-b Location of Property supporting documentation X
S54-10 Threat of development documentation or narrative X
S4-11 Property size documentation: surveys, tax or deeds information X
S4-13 Narrative of property plans X
85-1 Enforcement Party financial resources documentation X

OCCBB Application for Funding v4
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Appraisal of

Proposed Conservation Easement
42.02 Acre Tract
875 Nimmons Bridge Road
Salem, Oconee County, South Carolina 29676

Appraisal Report

Prepared for
Mr. Geary L. Hughes & Dorothy J. Heger
Post Office Box 636
Salem, South Carolina 29676

Dates of Inspection
February 24, 2021

Date of Valuation
February 24, 2021

Prepared by
Allen D. McCravy, MAI
Stone & Associates
1100A Rutherford Road
Greenville, SC 29609




STONE & ASSOCIATES

1100A RUTHERFORD ROAD * GREENVILLE, SC 28609
TEL. (864) 232-3051 = FAX (864) 232-3053 * E-MAIL amccravy@stoneandassoc.com

March 10, 2021

Mr. Geary L. Hughes & Dorothy J. Heger
Post Office Box 636
Salem, South Carolina 29676

RE: Proposed Conservation Easement
Vacant Land — 42.02 Acres
875 Nimmons Bridge Road
Salem, Oconee County, South Carolina 29676

Dear Mr. Hughes & Mrs. Heger:

In accordance with your request, | have personally inspected the above referenced tract and
have prepared an appraisal report with applicable exhibits and addenda, which explain and
demonstrate the process used in completing this assignment.

This is an appraisal report, which is intended to comply with the reporting requirements set forth
under Standards Rule 2-2 of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice for an
appraisal report. As such, it presents in-depth discussions of the data, reasoning, and analysis
that were used in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser's opinion of value. Additional
supporting documentation concerning the data, reasoning, and analysis is retained in the
appraiser’s file. The depth of discussion contained in this report is specific to the needs of the
client and for the intended use stated herein. The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized
use of this report.

The subject property includes a tract of land containing a total of approximately 42.02 acres, or
1,830,391 square feet of land area, according to information provided. The subject tract is
located off the western side of Nimmons Bridge Road, south of its intersection with Shallow
Ford Road. The subject property is within the community of Salem, in northern Oconee County,
South Carolina. The subject tract is further referenced on Oconee County Tax Maps as Parcel
Number 065-00-04-004. The subject property is improved with a single-family residence and
carport structure, which are not considered to be affected by the proposed easement and
therefore have been excluded from the valuation.

The subject property has a pending conservation easement that encumbers the entire subject
tract. A draft copy of the pending conservation easement is included in the addenda
section of this appraisal report (Grantee is Upstate Forever).
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In this assignment, the existence of hazardous waste material, which may or may not be
present on or in the property, was not observed by the appraiser. | have no knowledge of the
existence of such materials on or near the property. The appraiser, however is not qualified to
detect such substances. The presence of such material may have an effect on the value or use
of the property. It is assumed that there are no hazardous materials spills resulting from
underground storage tanks or other causes associated with the subject property. Full
compliance with all environmental laws is assumed.

The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate the as is market value of the fee simple estate of the
subject property prior to being encumbered by a conservation easement. it is also the purpose
to estimate the market value of the subject property being encumbered by conservation
easement restrictions; therefore, determining a value of the proposed conservation easement.
As is market value, market value, fee simple estate, and conservation easement are further
defined and qualified in the following appraisal report.

After analyzing the subject property and its market, and the various factors entering into the
appraisal analysis, including the assumptions and limiting conditions contained in the report, it is
my opinion that the as is market value of the fee simple estate of the subject property as of
February 24, 2021, is:

Pre-Easement {Land Only)

Two Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars
($275,000)

It is also my opinion that the as is market value of the subject property with the conservation
easement in place, as of February 24, 2021, is:

Post-Easement {Land Only)
Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars
($95,000)

As a result, it is my opinion that the market value of the conservation easement, as of
February 24, 2021, is:

Value of Easement
One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars
($180,000

It is my understanding that the intended use of this appraisal will be to establish the
value of the conservation easement that has been proposed for the subject tract. The
intended use of this appraisal report is for federal income tax purposes and/or planning,
and the Internal Revenue Service as well as the Oconee County Conservation Bank are
included as intended users.

This appraisal employs the hypothetical condition that the conservation easement is in
place (as of the date of valuation), in order to provide an after value.
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| wish to clearly emphasize that the detection of any such hazardous materials is beyond the
scope of this valuation analysis. Furthermore, it is assumed that the presence of any hazardous
materials, gases or toxic substances that would cause a loss in value is assumed not to exist on
the property. The appraiser does not report to be qualified engineers trained to detect such
substances and no responsibility is assumed by the appraiser relating to the presence of, or
impact from, any detected substances.

The value estimate assumes no impact on value because of "Section 404 - Wetlands" as
defined by the US Army Corp. of Engineers. The appraiser is not an expert in this field and
urges the client to seek advice of an expert to determine any potential impact of wetlands on the
above referenced property.

The appraisal analysis, opinions and conclusions were developed and this appraisal report has
been prepared in conformance with (and the use of this repart is subject to) all regulations
issued under Title Xl of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of
1989 (FIRREA) and the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP} 2020-
2021 Edition as promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of the Appraisal Foundation,

| certify that | have the experience and knowledge to competently complete an appraisal of this
type and have made other appraisals of similar properties in the past. | certify that the property,
which is the subject of this report, was inspected by Allen D. McCravy, MAI,

The employment of the appraiser was not conditional upon the appraiser producing a specified
value, or a value within a given range. Future employment prospects are not dependent upon
the appraiser producing a specified value. Employment of the appraiser and the paymenit of the
fee are not based on whether a loan application is approved or disapproved.

| appreciate the opportunity to be of service. If you have any questions, or reguire any
additional information, please feel free to contact me at (864) 232-3051.

Respectfully submitted,

Stone & Associates

Allen D. McCravy, MAI
State Certified General Rea
SC Certificate No. CG3617
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BOUWMAN GEORGE C & SALLY H
491 BRADLEYS DR
SALEM, SC 26676

HUGHES GEARY L & HEGER DOROTHY .
PO BOX636
SALEM, SC 26676

ROCHESTER JAMES REVEL
371 ROCKY RIDGE ROAD
SALEM, SC 296760000

BOUWMAN ROBERT E & RICHTER MARS GAGNON THERESA E & CLARK JODI L

489 BRADLEYS DR 160 HORSE HILL RD
SALEM, SC 29676 SALEM, SC 29676

LUCE MICHAEL C & WENDY R LUCE MICHAEL C

276 SHALLOW FORD RD 175 SHALLOW FORD RD
SALEM, SC 20676 SALEM, SC 29676
WOOD GARY T

PO BOX1

WEST UNION, SC 298960000



F UPSTATE
# | FOREVER

Protecting Land & Water | Advocacy | Balanced Growth

March 29, 2021

[Adjacent Landowner Name]
[Adjacent Landowner Address]
Salem, SC 29676

Dear [Adjacent Landowner Name],

I am excited to share news with you that your neighbor is applying to the Oconee County
Conservation Bank (OCCB) to preserve natural habitat along Cornhouse Creek in perpetuity.
Upstate Forever has prepared an application to the OCCB Board and we are in the process of
preserving this beautiful property for the landowner. Getting to know this area of Salem
more, we are very interested in helping other interested landowners to preserve their
property as well.

As you may know, many benefits exist to landowners and their community from maintaining
natural areas. One way to do this is by securing a conservation easement. Furthermore,
easements can help landowners reduce tax burdens from a wide range of instances. Some of
the landowners we have worked with enjoyed the decreased market value from the easement
so they could transfer ownership to their children without a large tax liability. Other
landowners have been successful in attracting grant funds to help them through the
easement process with little money of their own being used. We're here to help for those
considering this process.

We like to work with landowners that may find themselves in a myriad of status, but want to
save their land for future generations. The Oconee County Conservation Bank funding is
limited, but we look forward to helping landowners protect their property for future
generations.

If you are interested in protecting your land with a conservation easement, or would like to
learn more about the proposed OCCB application, please feel free to contact me at 864-203-
1948, or by email at estarker@upstateforever.org.

Sincerely,
Chris Starker
Land Conservation Manager

GREENVILLE (864) 250-0500 « 507 Pettigru Street, Greenville, SC 296801
SPARTANBURG (884) 327-0090 - 201 E. Broad St., Suite 1C, Spartanburg, SC 29308
WEB upstateforever.org
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1800 Parktway Place, Suite 820
Marietta, GA 30067
{770) 578-3600
LOAN #: 7166064486
[Space Atove This Line For Recording Osta)
MORTGAGE
[ 1009207-0000071208-1 |
MERS PHONE #: 1-888-879-6377
DEFINITIONS

words used in mulliple sections of this dacumani are defined below and ether words are defined in Sections 3, 11, 13,
18, 20 and 21. Certain rules regarding the usage of words used in this document are also provided in Section 16.

{A) “Security Instrument” maans this document, which is dated  January 18, 2017, together with
afl Ridars to tis document,

(B) "Borrower” is DOROTHY J HEGER AND GEARY L HUGHES, JOINT TENANTS

Burrower is the mortgagor under this Sacurity instrument.

{C) "MERS" i Morlgage Elacironic Registration Systems, Inc. MERS i5 a separate corperation that is acting salely as
a nominee for Lender and Lender’s successors and assigns, MERS is the mongagee under this Security Instrument.
MERS is organized and existing undar the laws of Delaware, and has an address and talephone number of P.O. Box
2028, Flint, Michigan 48501-2026, tel. {888) B79-MERS.

{D) "Lender” is Amerls Bank.

Lenderis aCorporation, organized and existing under the faws of
Lender's address is 1800 Parkway Place, Suite

Georgla.
820, Marietta, GA 30067

(E) “Note” means the promissory note signed by Borrower and dated January 18, 2017. The Note
states that Borrower owes Lender it
.'.."..I..‘.i.-...l..-. )
plus interest. Borrower has promised to pay this debt in regular Pariodic Payments and to pay the m fult not later
than February 1, 2047,

{F) "Propesty™ means the property that is desciibad below under Whe heading “Transfer of Rights in tha Praperty.”

{G} "Loan" means the debt svidenced by the Nole. plus Interesl, any prepaymen! charges and late charges due under

the Note, and all sums due under this Security Instrument, plus inlorest.
(H) "Riders™ means all Riders to this Security tnstrument that are executed by Borrower, The fellowing Riders are to be

executed by Borrowar {check box as applicable]:

[J Adjustable Rate Rider [ Gondominium Rider (€] Second Home Rider
O Balloon Rider O Pilanned Unit Development Rider O Oher(s) [specify)
{0 14 Family Rider O Biweekly Payment Rider

[ vA. Rider

() “Applicable Law" means all controlling appticable federal, etate and local statutes, regulations, ordinances and
administrative rules and orders (that have the effect of 1aw) as well as all appicable final, nen-appealable judicial

opinians.

SOUTH CARCUINA-Single Famiy-Fannia MaefFraddie Mac UNIFGRM INSTRUMENT Form 3041 1101
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LOAN #: 7166054486
{#) "Community Association Dues, Fees, and Assessments” means all dues, fees, assassments and other charges
that are imposed on Boemower or the Praperty by a condominium association, homeowners association or simiar
organization.
¥} "Electronic Funds Transfer” maans any transier of funds, other than a transaction originated by check, draft, or
simitar paper instrument, which is initiated through an elactronic tarminal, telaphonic instrument, computer, or magretic
tape so as to arder. instruct, or authorize a financial institution to debH or credit an account. Such term includes, butis
ot limited to, paint-of-sale transfers, automated teller machine transaclions, transfers initiated by telephone, wire
transfers, and automaled clearinghouse transfers.
{L} “Escrow ems” means those itams thal are described in Secticn 3.
(M) “Miscellanecus Praceeds™ means any compensaticn, satflement. award of damages, or proceeds paid by any
third party {other than insurance proceeds paid under the caverages described in Section 5) for: (i} damage lo, or
destruction of. the Property; (i) condemnation or ather taking of all o any part of the Properly; {ilf) conveyance in tieu
of candemnation; ¢ (iv) misrepresentations of, or gmissions as 1o, the value and/or condition of the Property.
(N} “"Mortgaga Insurance™ means insurance protecting Lender against the nonpayment of, or default on, tha Laan.
(O) “Pericdic Payment" means the regularly scheduled amount dus for (i) principal and interest under tha Note, plus
{il) any amounts under Section 3 of this Security Instrument.
(P} "RESPA” means the Real Estate Settiement Procedures Act (12 U.5.C. §2601 et seq.) and its implementing
requlation, Regulatien X {12 C.F.R. Part 1024), as they might be amanded from time to time, or any additional or
successorlegislation or regulation that govems the same subject matter. As used in this Security Instrument, “RESPA”
refers to all requiremants and restrictions thal are imposed in regard 0 a “federally related morigage loan” even if the
Loan does not qualify as a "federally related morigage foan™ under RESPA.
(Q) “Successor In Interest of Borrower” maans any party that has 1aken titte to the Property, whether or not that party
has assumed Borrower's obligations under the Note andfor this Security instrument,

TRANSFER OF RIGHTS IN THE PROPERTY

This Security Instrument secures to Lendar: (i) the repayment ofthe Loan, and all renewals, extensions and madifications
ofthe Note; and (Ti) the performance of Borrowet’s covenants and agreemente under this Security Instrument and tha Nate.
For this purpose, Bomower daes hereby morigage, grant and convey to MERS {solely as nomines for Lender and Lendar's
successors and assigns) and lo the successors and assigns of MERS the following desciibed properly located in the
County [Type of Recording Jurisdiction]of  Oconga

[Mams of Rocording Jurisdiction].

SEE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF AS "EXHIBIT A™.

APN #: (G50004094

which currently has the addrass of 875 Nimmons Bridge Road, Salem,
[Sireet] (Ciy)
South Carcling 29676 {*Property Address”):
[2ip Code)

TO HAVE AND TQ HOLD this property unto MERS (sclely as nominee for Lender and Lander's successors and
assigns) and to the successors and assigns of MERS, forever, together with all the improvements now or hereafter
grected on the property. and all sasernents, appurtenancas, and fixturas now or keraafter & part of the praperty. All
replacements and additions shall alsa be covered by this Security Instrument. Al of the foregoing is referred to in this
Sacurity Instrumant as the "*Property.” Borrower understands and agrees that MERS holds only legal liffe to the interests
granted by Borrower in this Security Instrument, but, if necassary to comply with law ¢r custom, MERS (as nominee for
Lender and Lander's successors and assigns) has Ihe right: to exescise any or all of thosa infecests, including. but not
limited to, tha righi to foreclose and sell the Property; and to take any action requirad of Lender including., but not limited
to, raleasing and canceling this Security Instrument.

BORROWER COVENANTS that Borrower is lawfully seised of the estate hereby conveyed and has the right ko grant
and convey the Property and that the Properly is unencumbered, excepl for encumbfances of recond. Bamrower wamanis
and will defend generally the titfe to the Property against all claims and demands, subject to any encumbrancas of record.

THIS SECURITY INSTRUMENT combines uniform covenants for naticnal use and non-uniferm covenants with
fimited variations by Jurisdiction to conatitute a uniform securily instrument covaring real properly.

UNIFORM GOVENANTS. Borrower and Lender covenant and agree as follows:

1. Payment of Principal, Interes), Escrow items, Prepayment Charges, and Lale Chargaes. Borrowar shall pay
when due the principal of, and intarest on, the debt evidenced by the Nota and any prepayment charges and lata charges
dua under the Nate. Borrawer shall also pay funds for Escrow flems pursuant to Saction 3. Payments due under the
Note and this Security Instrument shall be made in U.5. currency. However, if any check or ether instrument received

$OUTH CARGLINA--Sngle Famiy—-Fannie Mae/Freddia Mac UNIFORM INSTRUMENT Porm 3041 1104
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LOAN it: 7166064486
by Lender as payment under ihe Nole or this Security Insirument is retumed 1o Lender unpaid, Lender may require that
any or all subsequent payments die under the Note and this Security tnstrument be mada in one or morm of the foliwtng
forms, as selected by Lender: (a} cash; (b) money order; {¢} certifled check, bank check, rreasurer's check or cashier's
check, provided any such theck is drawn upon an instilution whose deposits are Insured by a federal agency.
instrusnantalily, or entity; or {d) Elecironic Funds Transfer.

Payments are deemed raceived by Lender when received ai the locatien designated in the Note or al such other
lecation as may be designated by Lender in accordance with the nollce provisions in Seclion 15. Lender may retum any
payment or partial payment if the payment or parlial payments are insufficiant to bring tha Loan current. Lender may
accept any payment or partial payment insufficient to bring the Loan current, without waiver of ary rights hereunder or
prejudice to its rights to refuse such payment or partial paymants in the future, put Lender is not obligated to apply such
payments at the time such payments ara aceepted. Il each Pariodic Payment s applied as of its scheduled due date,
then Lender need nat pay intaresi on unapplied funds, Lender may hold such unapglied funds until Borrower makes
payment to bring the Laan curent. It Borrower does not da so within a raasonatle period of time, Lendar shall either
apply such funds or relum them to Borrower. If not applied earfier, such funds will be applied to the outstanding principal
balance under the Note immediately pror to foreclosure. No offsat o ciaim which Barrower might have now of in the
future against Lender shall relieve Borower from making payments due under ihe Note and this Security Instrument
or performing the covenants and agreements sacured by this Security lnstrument,

2. Application of Paymems or Proceeds. Excapt as otherwise described in this Section 2, all payments accepted
and epplied by Lender shall be apptied in tha foltowing otder of pricrity: (a} interest due under the Note: {b) principal
due under the Note; (¢) amounts due under Sectian 3. Such payments shall be applied to each Periodic Paymaent in the
arder in which it bacame due. Any remaining amounis shall be applied first to late charges, second to any other amounts
due under this Security Instrument, and then to raduce the principal balance of Ihe Note.

if Lander receives a payment from Barrawer for a delinquent Periodic Payment which includes a sufficient amount
to pay any lata charge due, the paymeni may be applied to the delinquent payment and the late charge. if more than
one Periodic Payment is outstanding, Lender may apply any payment recaived from Borrower ta the repayment of the
Pariodic Payments if, and to the extent that, each payment can be paid in full. To the extent thal any excess exists after
the payment is applied to the full paymant of one or more Peripdic Payments, such excess may be applied to any late
charges due, Valuntary prepayments shall be applied firsL to any prepayment charges and then as describadin iha Note.

Any application of payments, insurance proceeds, of Miscellaneous Procaeds to principal due under the Note shall
not extend or postpone the due date, or change the amount, of the Periodlc Payments.

3. Funds for Escrow items. Borrower shall pay fo Lender on the day Perlodic Payments are due under the Nole,
until the Note is paid in full, a sum {the “Funds™} to provide for payment of amounts due for; {3} laxes and assessmenis
and other items which can attain priority over this Securlty Instrument as a len or encumbrance on the Property; (b)
teasehold payments ar ground renls on the Property, if any: {c) premiums for any and all insurance raquired by Lender
under Saction 5; and (d} Mortgage Insurance premiums, if any, or any sums payable by Borrower to Lender in keu of
the payment of Mortgage Insurance premiyms in accordance with the provisions of Secticn 10, These Items are called
“Escrow ltems.” At ariginalion or at any time dusing the term of the Loan, Lender may require thal Community Assaciation
Dues, Fees, and Assessments, if any. be escrowed by Borrower, and such dues, fees and assessmeants shall be an
Escrow ltam. Borrower shall pramptly fumish to Lender all notices of amounts to be paid under this Section. Barrower
shall pay Lendar the Funds for Escrow ltems unfass Lender waives Borrower's obligation to pay the Funds for any or
all Escrow ltems. Lander may waive Borrowar's obligation to pay to Lender Funds for any ar all Escrow Items at any lime.
Any such waivar may only be in writing. In the event of such waiver, Borrower shall pay directly, when and where payable,
the amaunts due for any Escrow ltems for which payment ef Funds has been waived by Lender and, if Lender requires,
shall furnish 1o Lender receipts evidencing such paymant within such time pericd as Lender may require, Bomower's
ohtigation to make such payments and lo provide receipts shall tor all purposes be deemed to be a covenant and
agreement contained in this Security Instrument, as the phrase “covenant and agreement” is used in Section 9. If
Borrowar is abligated te pay Escrow ltems directly, pursuant to a waiver, and Bormower fails to pay the amaunt dus for
an Escrow tem. Lender may exercise its rights under Section 9 and pay such amount and Borrower shall then be
obfigated under Section 9 to repay to Lender any such amount. Lender may revoke the waiver as to any or all Escrow
Items at any time by a notice given in accerdanca with Section 15 and, upan such revocation, Borrower shall pay to
Lender all Funds, and in such amounts, that are then required under this Section 3.

Leander may, &l any time, calect and hold Funds in an amount (a) sufficient ta permit Lender to apply the Funds at
the time specified under RESPA, and (b) rrot to excoed the maximum ameunt a lender can require yunder RESPA. Lender
shall estimate the amount of Funds dua on the basis of current data and veascnable eslimates of expanditures of future
Escrow llems or otherwise in accerdance with Applicabls Law.

The Funds shall be held in an institution whosa deposits are insured by a federal agency. instrumentality, or entity
{including Lender. if Lender is an institution whose depasits are 5o insured) of in any Federal Home Loan Bank. Lender
shall apply the Funds to pay the Escraw items no later than the time spaclfied under RESPA. Lender shall not charge
Borrower for holding and applying the Funds, gnnuaiy analyzing the escrow account, of verifying the Escrow ltems,
urjess Lender pays Borrower inlerest an the Funds and Applicable Law permits Lender (o make such a charge. Unless
an agreement is made in writing or Appficable Law requires interest to be paid on tha Funds. Lender shall nol be required
to pay Borrower any interast or eamings on the Funds. Borrower and Lendar can agree in writing. however. that interast
shall be paid on the Funds, Lender shali give to Borrower, wilhoul charge, an annual accouniing of the Funds as required
by RESPA,

if there is a surplus of Funds held in escrow, as defined under RESPA, Lender shall account 1o Bomowaer for the
excess funds in accordance with RESPA. If there is a shortage of Funds held in escrow, as defined under RESPA, Lender
shall notify Bomrower as required by RESPA, and Borrower shall pay to Lender the amount necassary (o make up the
shortage in zecordance with RESPA, but in na mare than 12 monthly payments. If there is a deficiency of Funds held
in escrow, as dafined under RESPA, Lender shall natify Borrower as required by RESPA, and Borrawer shall pay to
Lander the amount necessary to make up the deficiency in accordance with RESPA. but In no more than 12 monthly
payments.

SOUTH CARDLINA-Single Famity-Fannie MaefFroddia Mo: UNIFORM INSTRUMENT Form 3041 101
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LOAN #: 7166064426

Upon payment in full of all sums secured by this Security Instrument, Lendar shall prompity refund lo Borvower any
Funds heid by Lendar.

4. Charges; Liens. Borrower shall pay all taxes, assessments, chaiges, fings, and impositions attributable to the
Property which can aitain priority over this Sacurity Inslrument, leasehold paymenls ar ground rents on the Proparly,
if any, and Communily Association Dues, Fees, and Assassmans, if any. To the extant that these items ara Escraw llems,
Bomower shal pay them in the manner provided in Section 3.

Bomrower shall promplly discharge any lien which has priority over this Security Instryment uniess Bormower: {8}
agrees in writing 1o the payment of the cbiigation secured by the lian in a manner accaplable to Lender, but only 8o leng
as Borrower is performing such agreament; {b) contests the lien in good faith by, or dafends against enforcement of the
lian in, fega! proceedings which in Lender's opinicn operate to prevent the enforcemant of the Hen while those
proceedings are pending, bul only until such proceedings are concluded; or (c) secures from the halder of the lign an
agreemant salisfactory fo Lender subordinating the lian to this Security Instrument. If Lender determines that any part
of the Property is subject to a lien which can atlain priority over this Security Instrument. Lender may give Bofrower a
notice identifying the ien. Within 10 days of the dale an which that notice is given, Borrower shall salisfy the lien or take
ane of more of the actions set forth above in this Section 4.

Lender may require Borrower to pay a one-fime charge for a real estale tax verification and/ers reporting service used
by Lender in connaction with this Loan,

5. Property Insurance. Borrower shall keep ihe improvemenis now existing of hereafler erected on the Praperty
Insured mgainst foss by fire, hazards included within \he term “extended covarage,” and any other hazards Ingiuding,
but not limitad to, earthquakes and floads, for which Lender requires insurance. This insuranca shall be maintained in
the amounts {including deductible levels) and for the periods that Lender requires, What Lender requires pursuant to
the preceding sentences can change during the term of the Loan, The insuranca carrier providing the insurance shall
be chosen by Borrower subject to Lender's right to disapprove Barrower's choica, which right shall na! be exercised
unreasonably. Lender may require Bosrower to pay, in connection with this Loan, either: (a) 3 one-time charge for floed
zone delermination, certification and tracking services; or {b) a one-time charge for Rood zene detarmination and
cartification services and subsequeni charges each lime remappings or simitar changes occur which reasonably might
alfect such determination or certification. Borrower shall alsa be responsible for the payment of any feas imposed by
ihe Federal Emergency Managemeni Agency in connection with the reviaw of any flgod zone detemmination resulting
from an objection by Borrower.

If Barrower fails to maintain any of the coverages described above, Lender may obtain insurance coverage, al
Lender's gption and Horrower's axpense, Lendar is under no obligation to purchase any parlicular type or amount of
caverage. Tharefora, such coverage shall cover Lender, but might or might not pratact Borrower, Borrawer's aquity in
the Property, or the contents of the Property, against any risk, hazard ar llablily and might provide grealer or lesser
covarage than was previously in effect. Borrawer acknowledges that the cast of the insurance coverage so cbiained
might significantly exceed the cost of insurance thal Borrower cauld have obtained. Any amounts disbursed by Lendar
under (his Section 5 shall become additional debt of Barrower sacured by this Security Instrumen. These amounts shall
baar interest 2l the Note rate from the date of disbursement and shall be payable, with such interest, upon nolice from
Lender to Bofrower requesting payment.

All insurance policles required by Lender and renewals of such policies shall be subject to Lendar's right to
disapprove such policies, shall include a standard morgage clause. and shall name Lender as mortgagee and/or as

* an additional loss payee. Lender shall have the right to hold tha policies and renewal certificates. If Lender requires,
Borrower shall promplly give to Lender all receipis of paid premiums and renewal notices. If Borrower oblaing any form
of insurance covarage, nol olherwise required by Lender, for damage to, or destruction of, the Propesty, such policy shall
Include a standard mortgage clause and shall name Lender as mortgagee and/or as an additional loss payee.

in the event of loss, Barrower shall give pramp! notice to tha Insurance carfior and Lander. Lender may make proof
of 1oss if not made promptly by Borrowar. Unless Lender and Borawer olharwise agree in wrillng, any insurance
procaeds, whether or nat the undedying insurance was required hy Lender, shall be applied to restoration or repair af
the Property, if the restaration of repair is economically feasible and Lender's security Is not lessened. QGuring such repalr
and restoration period, Lender shall have the right to hotd such insurance praceads until .ender has had an opportunity
to inspect such Property fo ensure the work has been complated ta Lender's satisfaction, provided that such inspection
shall be undertakan promptly. Lender may disburse proceeds for the repairs and resloration in a gingle payment or in
a sefios of progress payments as the work is completed. Unless an agreement is made in writing or Applicahle Law
requires interest to be paid on such inaurance proceads, Lendar shall not be required to pay Borrower any intarest or
aamings on such procaeds. Fees for public adjusters, of other third parties, retained by Borrower shall nol be paid out
of the insurance proceeds and shall be the sole obligation of Barrower. If the restoration or rapair is not sconomically
faasible or Lender's security would be tessened, the insurance proceeds ghall be applied to the sums secured by this
Securily Instumant, whether or nat then due. with the excess, if any, paid to Bomower. Such insurance proceeds shall
be appliad in the order provided for in Secticn 2.

if Borrower abandans the Proparty, Lender may fils, negotiate and sattle any available insurance claim and related
matiers. If Borrower does not respond within 30 days to a notice from Lender that the insurance carrier has offerad to
sotile a daim, then Lendar may negotiate and setile the claim. The 30-day pericd will begin when the nalica is given.
In efther event, or if Lender acquires the Property under Section 22 or otherwise, Borrower hereby assigns to Lender
{a} Borrowar's rights to any insurance proceeds in an amount nat lo axcaed the amaunts unpaid under the Note er this
Security Instrument, and (b) any other of Borrower's rights {ather than the right to any refund of unearned premiums
paid by Bowrower) under all insurance policies covering the Property, insofar as auch rights are appiicable lo the
coverage of the Property. Lender may use the insurance proceeds ailner to ropair or resiore the Property or to pay
amounts unpaid under the Note or this Security Instrument. whether or nol than dus.

6. Occupancy. Borrower shall occupy, establish, and use the Property as Borrower's principal residencae within
60 days after the execution of this Sacurity lnstrument and shall continue o occupy the Property as Borrower's principal
sestdence for at least ona year after the date of occupancy, unless Lender otherwise agreas in writing. which consent
shall not be unreasanably withheld, or unless extenuating circumstances exist which are beyond Borrowar's control,
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7. Preservation, Maintenance and Protection of the Property; Inspections. Borrower shall not destroy,
damage or Impair the Propesty, allow the Property to deteriorate or commit waste on the Proparty, Whether of not
Borrower is residing in the Property, Borrower shall maintain the Property In order fo prevent the Property from
deteriorating or decreasing in value due (o its condition. Unless it ls determined pursuant lo Saction 5 that repair er
rastoration is not economically faasible, Borrower shall prompfly repair the Property if damaged to avaid further
detaricration or damage. ifinsurance or condemnation proceeds are paid in connaction with damage to, orthe taking
of, the Property, Borrower shall be respensible tor sepairing or restoring the Propardy only if Lendar has relaased
pracaeds for such purposes. Lender may disburse proceeds for ihe repairs and restoration In a single payment or in
a serios of progress payments as the work is complated. If the insuranca or condemnation proceeds are not sufficient
to repair of rastore the Property, Borrower is not retievad of Borrower's obligatien for the completion of such repair of
restoration.

Lender or its agent may make reasonable entries upon and inspections of the Praperty. It it has reasonable cause.
Lander may inspect the interior of the improvements on the Property. Lender shall give Borrower notice at the time of
or prior lo such an interior inspection specifying such reasonable cause.

8. Borrower's Loan Application. Borrower shall be in default if, during the Loan application process. Borrower
or any persons or entities acting at the direction of Borrawer cr with Borrower's knowledge or consent gave matarially
false, mistaading. or inaccurate informaticn or staternants to Landar {or talled to provide Lender with material information}
in connection with the Loan. Material representations include, but are not limited to, represantations concerning
Borrawer's occupancy of the Property as Borrower's principz! rasidence.

9. Protection of Lender's Interest in the Property and Rights Under this Security Instrument. If (a) Barrawer
fails to perform the covenants and agreements conlained In this Security Instrument, {b) there is a legal proceeding that
might significantly affect Lendar's inlerast in the Property andior rights under this Security Instrurent {such as a
proceeding in bankruptcy, probate. for condemnation or farfeilure, for enforoement of a tien which may attain priority
over this Security Instrument or to enforce laws or regulations}, or (¢) Borrower has abandoned tha Property, then Lender
ray do and pay for whatever is reasonable or appropriale to protect Lender's Interest in the Property and rights undar
this Security tnstrument, inchuding profecting and/or assessing the value of the Property, and securing andfor repairing
the Property. Lender's actions can include, but are nol limited to: (3) paying any sums sacuned by a lien which has priority
aver this Sacurity Instrument; {b) appearing in court; and (c} paying reasanable atlomneys' fees to protact its interestin
the Property andfor rights under this Security Instrument, including its secured position In a bankrupicy proceeding.
Securing the Property includes, but is not limited to, entering the Praperty to make repairs, change locks, replace or
board up deors and windows, drain water from pipes, eliminate bu itding or other code violalions or dangerous
conditions, and have utilities turned on or off. Alihough Lender may lake action under this Section 9, Lender dees nal
have to do so and is not under any duty or obligation 1o do so. Itis agreed that Lender incurs no liabllity for not taking
any or al) actions authorized under this Section 9.

Any amounts disbursed by Lender under this Seclion ¢ ahall become additiona) debt of Besrower secured by this
Security Instrument. These amounts shall bear interest at the Note rale from the date of disbursement and shall be
payabte, with such intarest, upan notico from Lender la Borrower requesting payment.

f this Security instrument is on a leasehcld, Borrawer shall comply with 3!l tha provisions of the lease. Borrower shall
nat sumender the leasehald estale and interests hareln corwayed or lerminale or cancel the ground fease, Borrewer shall
not, without the express writen consen! of Lender, alter or amend the ground leasa. If Borrower acquires fee title to the
Propenty. the leasehald and the fee titte shall not merge unlass Lendar agrees to the marger in writing.

10. Mortgage Insurance. If Lendars required Morigage Insurance as a canditicn of making the Loan, Borrower shalt
pay the premiums required to maintain the Morigage Insurance in effecl. If, for any reason, the Morgage Insurance
coverage requirted by Lender ceases to ba available from the morigage insurer that previously provided such insurance
and Borrower was required to make soparately designated payments loward the pramiums for Mortgage nsurance,
Borrower shall pay the premiums required to obtain coverage substantially equivalent to the Mortgage Insurance
previously in effact, sl a cost substantially equivalent to the coat to Borrower of the Marigage Insurance previously in
effect, from an altemate merigage insurer selected by Landar. tf substantially equivalent Martgage Insurance coverage
is not available, Borrower shall cantinue to pay to Lender the amount of the separately designated payments that were
due when the insurance coverage ceased to ba in eflecl. Lender will accept, use and retaln these payments as a non-
refundable loss neserve in isu of Morigage Insurance, Such loss reserve shall be non-refundable, notwithstanding the
fact Ihat the Loan is ullimalaty paid In full, and Lender shall riot be required to pay Berrower any interest or eamings ¢n
such loss rasarve. Lander can no longer require loss reserve paymenis it Morigage \nsurance coverage (in tha amount
and for {he pariod that Lender requires) provided by an insurer selecied by Lender again bacomes available, is oblained,
and Lender requiras saparalely designated payments toward the premiums for Mortgage insurance. If Lander required
Martgage Insurance as a condition of making the Loan and Bortower was roquired to make separately designatod
payments toward the premiums for Morigage Insurance, Borrower shall pay the premiums required to maintain
Martgage insurance In effect, or to provide a non-refundabls loss resenve, until Lender's requirement for Mortgaga
Insurance ends in accordance with any written agreemant between Borrower and Lender providing far such termination
or until termination is required by Applicabla Law. Nolhing in this Section 10 affecls Borrawer’s ghligation to pay interest
al the rate provided in the Nole.

Mortgage Insurance reimburses Lender (or any entily that purchasas the Nole) for certain losses it may incur if
Bomower does not repay the Loan as agraed. Borrower is not a party to the Mortgage Insurance.

Mortgage insurers evaluate their total risk on all such insurance in force from time to time, and may enter into
agreements with other parties thal share or modify their risk. or reduce losses, Thase agraemants are an tarms and
conditions that are satisfactary to the morigage insurer and the other party (or parties) to these agreements. These
agreamenis may require the mortgage insurar {o meke payments using any source of funds that the mortgage insurer
may have available (which may include funds ebtained from Mortgage Insurance premiums).

As a result of these agreements, Lander, any pucchaser of the Notae, another insurar, any rainsurer, any other entity,
or any affiliate of any of the foregoing. may receive (diractly or indirectly) amounts that derive from {or might be
characterized as) a portion of Borrower's payments for Mortgage Insurance, in exchange for sharing or modifying the
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mortgage insures's risk, of reducing losses. If such agreement provides that an affitiate of Lender takes a share of the
insurer's risk in exchange for a share of the pramiums paid la the insurer, the arrangement Is often termed “caplive
reinsurance.” Further:

(a) Any such agreements will not affect the amoums that Borrower has agreed to pay for Mortgags
Insurance, or any other terms of tha Loan, Such agreements will not increase the amount Borrower will owe for
Mortgage Insurance, and they will not entitle Barrawer to any refund.

(b} Any such agreements will not affect tha rights Borrower has - if 2ny - with respect to the Morigage
Insurance under ithe Homeowners Protection Act of 1998 or any other law. These rights may include the right to
receive cenain disclosures, to raquest and abtain cancetlation of the Morigage Insurance, to have the Morigage
tnsurance terminated automatically, andfor to recelve a refund of zny Mortgage tnsurance premiums that were
unearned at the ime of such cancellation or termination.

11. Assignment of Miscellaneous Proceeds; Forfeiture. All Miscellanasus Proceeds are hereby assigned to and
shall be paid to Lender,

If tha Property is damaged, such Miscellanecus Procaeds shall be applied to restoration or repair of the Property,
if the restoration or repalr is economically feasible and Lender’s security is not lessened. During such repair and
rastoration period, Lender shafl have the right 1o held such Miscellaneous Proceeds until Lender hag had an opportunity
to inspect such Property to ensura the work has been completed to Lender’s satlsfaction, provided that such inspection
shall be undertaken promptly. Lendar may pay for the repairs and restoration in a single disbursement orin a series of
progross payments as the work is completed. Unless an agraament is made in writing or Applicable Law requires interest
io be pald on such Miscellaneous Preceeds, Lender shall not be required to pay Borrower any intarest or aamings on
such Miscellanaous Proceads. If the restoration or repair is not economically feasible or Lander's sacurity would be
lassened, the Miscellansaus Proceeds shall be applied to the sums secured by this Security Instrument, whether or not
then due, wilh the excess, if 2ny, paid ta Borrower. Such Miscellaneous Proceeds shall be applied in the order provided
for in Section 2.

In the event of a total laking, destruction, ortass in value of the Propesty, the Miscallaneous Proceeds shallbe applied
10 tha sums secured by this Security Instrumenl, whether or not then due, with the excess, if any, paid to Borrower,

In the event of a partial taking, destruction, or loss in value of the Property in which the fair smarket valua of ihe Propesty
immediately hefore the parfial 1aking, destruction. or loss in value is equal to or greater than lhe amount of the sums
secured by this Security Instrument immediately befara the partial laking, destruction, or toss in value, untess Barrower
and Lender atherwise agres in wiiting, the sums secured by this Securify Instrument shall be reduced by the amount
of tha Miscellaneous Proceeds muliiptied by the follawing fraction: (a) the total amount of the sums secured immadiately
befara the partial taking, destruction. or loss in value divided by (b) the fair market value of the Property immediataly
bafare the partial taking, destruction, or foss in value. Any balance shall ba paid to Borrower,

tn the event of a partial taking, destruction, or loss in value of the Praparty in which the fair marka! value of the Property
immediately befare the partial taking. destruction, or loss in value Is less than the amount of the sums secured
immediataly before the pastial taking, destruction, or loss in value, unless Borrowar and Lender olherwise agree in
wriling, the Miscellaneous Proceeds shall be applied to the sums secured by this Security Instrument whether or not
the sums are then due.

If the Propenty is abandoned by Bamower, or If, after notice by Lender to Borrower that the Opposing Pany (as defined
in the next sentence} offers to make an award to sette a claim for damages. Bomower falls 0 respond to Lender within
30 days after the date the notice is given, Lender is gutherized lo collact and apply the Miscellaneous Proceeds eithar
to restoration ar repair of the Property or to tha sums secured by this Security Instrument, whether or not then due.
“Opposing Party” means the third parly that owes Borrower Miscolianeous Preceeds or the party againslt whom
Bomower has a right of action in regard to Miscellaneous Praceeds.

Bomower shall ba in default if any action or proceeding, whether civil or criminal, is begun that, in Lender's [udgment,
could result in forfeiture of the Property or other material impairment of Lender’s interes! in the Proparty or rights under
this Security Instrument. Bosrower can cure such a default and, if aceateration has occurred, reinstate as provided In
Saction 19, by causing the action or proceeding to be dismissed with a ruling that, in Lender's judgment, preciudes
forfeiture of the Property ar other material impairment of Lendar’s interast in the Proparty or rights under this Sacurity
Instrument. The proceeds of any award or claim for damagas that are atiribuiable to the impainment of Lender's interast
in the Property are hereby assigned and shall be pald to Lender.

All Miscallanaous Proceeds that are not applied to restoration or repair of the Property shafll be applied in the crder
provided for in Section 2.

12. Barrower Not Released; Forbearance By Lender Not a Waiver, Extension of the tima for payment or
modification of amortization of the sums secured by this Security Instrumentl granted by Lender to Borrower of any
Successor in interest of Borrower shall nol operate to release the Hability of Barower of any Successors in Interest of
Bomower. Lender shall not be required o commence proceedings against any Successar in Interes! of Bomrower of to
rafuse to extend time for payment or otherwise modify amortization of the sums secured by Ihis Security Instrument by
reason of any demand made by the original Barrowar or any Successors in Interest of Barrower, Any forbearance by
Lender In exercising any right or remedy including. withcul timitation, Lender's acceptance of payments from third
parsens, antities or Successors in ntereat of Barrower orin amounts less than the gmount than dus, shal not be a waiver
of or precluda the exercise of any tight or remedy.

13. Joint and Several Liabllity; Co-signers; Successors and Assigns Bound, Borowar covenants and agrees
that Berrowar’s obligations and liability shall be joint and several. However, any Bomrower who co-signs this Security
Instrument but does not execule the Nate (a “co-signer™: (a) Is co-signing this Security Instrument only to morlgage,
gram and canvey the co-signer’s interest in the Property under the terms of this Sacurity Instrument; (b) is not personally
obligaled to pay the sums secured by this Security Instrument; and {cj agrees that Lender and any other Borrower can
agree ta axtend, modify, forbear or make any accommodations with regard to the terms of this Security Instrument or
tha Note without the co-signer’s consent.

Subject to the provisions of Section 18, any Successor in Inlarest of Borrower who assumes Borrower's obligations
under this Security Instrument in writing, and is approved by Lender, shall abtain all of Borrower's rights and bonefits
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under this Security Instrument, Borrower shall not be relaased from Borrower's obligations and Tiabifity under this
Secufity Instrumenl unless Lender agrees to such retease In writing. The covenants and agreements of this Securnity
instrument shall bind (excapt as provided in Section 20} and benafi the successors and assigns of Lender.

14. Loan Charges. Lender may charge Bomawer feas for services performed in connection with Bomower's dofault,
for the purpose of protecting Lender's inferest in the Property and rights under this Security Instrument, including, but
niot imitad to, attarnays’ fees, property inspection and valuation f2es. (n regard to any other fees, the absence of express
authority in this Security Instrument 10 chasge a specific fes 1o Barrower shall not be construed as a prohibiticn on the
charging of such fee. Lander may not charge fess that are expressly protiibited by this Security Instrument or by
Applicable Law.

If the Loan is subject to a law which sets maximum loan charges, and that law is finally interpreted so that the interest
ar olher loan charges collected or lo be collected in connection with the Loan exceed the pemitled limits, then: (a}
any such toan charge shall be reduced by the amount necessary to reduce the charge to the permitied limit; and {1)
any sums already collected from Borrower which exceedad pemitted fimits will be rafunded to Barrower. Lender may
choose to maka this refund by reducing the printipsl owed under the Note or by making a direct payment to Borrower.
If a refund reducas principal, the reduction will be treated as a partia) prepayment withoul any prepaymen| charge
(whether or not a prepayment charge is provided for undar the Note). Borrower's acceptance of any such refund made
by direct payment to Borrowar will constitute a waiver of any right of actlon Borrower might have arising oul of such
overcharge.

15. Notices. All notices given by Borrower or Lender in connection with this Security Instrument must ba in writing.
Any notics to Borrower in connection with this Security instrument shail be deemed to have bean glven o Bomower when
mailed by first class mall or when actually delivered to Borrewar's notice addrass if sent by other means. Nolice to any
one Borrower shall constitute nofice to all Berrowers uniess Applicable Law expressly requires otherwise. The notice
address shallbe the Properly Address unless Barfower has designated a substitute notice addrass by notice to Lender.
@omower shall promptly notify Lender of Bomower's change of address. I Lender specifias a procedure for reporting
Borrewar's change of addrass, then Borrower shall only reporl a change of address through thal specified procedure.
There may ba enly one designated notice address under this Security Instrument at any ane time. Any natice to Lender
shall be given by delivering it or by mailing it by first class mall to Lender's address stated herein unless Lander has
designated another address by notice to Bormowaer. Any nolice in connection with this Securily Instrument shail not be
daamed to have been given to Lender until actually received by Lender. If any notice required by this Sacurity instrumenl
is alsu required under Applicable Law, tha Applicable Law requiremant will salisfy the corresponding requirement undef
this Security Instrument.

16. Governing Law; Severability; Rules of Construction. This Security Instrument shail be governed by federal
law and the law of the jurisdiction in which the Property is located. All righls and chligations contained in this Security
Instryment are subject 1o any requirements and imitations of Applicable Law, Applicable Law might explicitly or implicitly
allow Ine parties lo agree by contract or it might be silent, but such silenca shall nat be construad as a prehibition against
agreemant by confract, In the event Lhat any provision or clause of this Security Instrument or the Nate conflicis with
Applicable Law, such conflict shall not affect ather provisions of this Secufity Instrument or the Note which can be given
effect withaut the canflicling provision.

As used in this Securily Instrument: {a} words of the masculine gender shall mean and inciude corespending neuter
words of words of the faminine gender: {b) words in the singular shall mean and incude the plural and vice versa; and
(c) the word "may” gives sole discration without any ebligation to take any action.

17. Berrower's Capy. Borrower shall be given ane capy of the Note and of this Sacurity (nstrument.

18. Transfer of the Proparty or a Beneficial Interost in Borrower. As used in this Section 18, “interast in the
Proparty” means any legal or beneficial interest in the Property, including. but nol imited to, those beneficial interests
transferrad in a bond for deed, cantract for deed, installment sales contract or esciow agreemant, the intent of which
is the transfar of Etla by Borrower at a future date o a purchaser,

If all or any part of the Property or any Interes! in the Properly is sold or transferred {or If Borrower is not a natural
person and a benoficial interest in Borrower is sold or transferred) without Lender’s prior wrilten consent, Lender may
requite immediate payment In full of all sums secured by this Security Instrument, However, this option shall nol be
exarcised by Lender If such exercise is prohibited by Applicable Law,

If Lander axercises this option, Lender shall give Borrower notice of acceloration. The notlce shall provide a pariod
of nat less than 30 days from the date the nelice IS given in accordance with Saction 15 within which Barrowar must pay
all sums secured by this Security Instrument., if Barsower fails to pay thase sums prior to the expiration of this peried,
Lender may inveke any femedies permitted by this Security tnstrument without furiher notice or demand en Bormower.

19, Borrower's Right to Reinstate After Accelaration. if Borrower meets carain conditions, Borrower shall have
the right 1o have enforcement of this Security Instrument discontinued at any time prior to the earlies! of: (a) five days
before sate of the Property pursuant lo Section 22 of this Security Instrument; {b) such other pericd as Applicable Law
might specify for the termination of Borrower's fight lo reinstate; of (c} entry of a judgment enforcing this Security
(nstrument. Those conditions are that Barrawer: (a} pays Lender ail sums which then would be due under this Sacurity
instrument and the Note as if no acceleration had cceurred; {b) cures any default of any other covenants ar agreemants;
{c) pays afl axpenses incurred in enforcing this Sacurity Instrument, including. but notlimited 1o, reasonable attorneys’
fees, properly inspection and valuation fees, and other fees incurred for the purpose of protecting Lender’s inlerest in
the Praperly and rights under this Security Instrumant; and (d) takes such action as Lender may reasonably require to
assure that Lender's interest in the Praperty and rights under this Securty Instrument. and Borrower's obligalion to pay
the sums sacured by this Securily Instrument, shall continue unchanged, Lender may require that Bomower pay such
refnstatement sums and axpenses in one or more of the following forms, as selected by Lender: (a) cash: (b) monay
order: ()} cetified check, bank check, traasurer's check or cashiar's chack, provided any such check is drawn upon
an institution whosa deposits are insured by a federal agency, instrumentality o antily; or (d) Elecironic Funds Transfer,
Upon reinstatement by Borrower, this Security Instrument and obligations secured hereby shall remain fulty effective
as if no acceleration had occurred. However, this right to reinstate shal§ not apply in the case of acceleration under
Saction 18.
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20. Sale of Note; Change of Loan Servicer; Notice of Grievance. The Note or a partial interest in the Nate
(togethar with this Security Instrument) ¢an b2 sold one or mare timas without prior nelice to Barrower. A sale might
resutt in & changa in the entity (known as the "Loan Servicer’) thal collecls Pertodic Paymenis due under the Note and
this Security Instrument and performs other morigage loan setvicing obligations under the Note, this Security
tnstrumant, and Applicable Law. There also might ba one ar mase changes of the Loan Servicer unrelated to a sale of
the Note. If there is a change of the Loan Servicer, Borrower will be given written nolice of the change which will state
the name and addrass of the new Loan Servicer, the address to which payments should be made and any ather
infermation RESPA requires in connaction with a notice of transfer of servicing. If the Note Is sald and theresfler the Loan
is servicad by a Loan Servicer other than the purchaser of the Note, the martgage loan servicing obligations to Borrawer
will ramain with the Loan Servicer or be transfamred to a succassar Loan Servicer and are not assumed by the Note
purchaser unless atherwise provided by the Nale purchaser.

Noither Bemmower nar Lender may commence, join, of be jeined to any judicial action (as either an individuat litigant
or the member of a class) that arises fram the other parly's actions pursuant to this Security Insirument ar that alleges
that the athar party has breached any provision of, or any duty owed by reason of. this Securily Instrument, until such
Borrowaer 0r Lender has notifiad the other party (with such natice given in compliance with the requirements of Section
15) of such alleged breach and afforded the other party hereto a reasonable period after tha glving of such notice to take
corrective action, If Applicable Law provides a time period which must elapse before cerlain action can be taken, that
time period will be deamed to be reasenable for purposes of this paragraph. The notice of acceleration and opparlunity
10 cure given to Borrower pursuant to Section 22 and the notice of acceleralion given lo Borrower pursuanl o Saction
18 shall be deemed to satisty the notice and oppartunity to take cemrective action provisions of this Section 20

21. Hazardous Substances. As used in this Seclion 21: (a) "Hazardous Substances” are those substancas dafined
as toxic o hazardous substances. peliutants, or wastes by Environmantal Law and the following substances: gasaline,
kergsane, other flammable or toxic petrateum products, toxic pesticides and herbicides, volaiiie solvents, materiats
containing asbestos or farmaldehyde, and radioactiva materials; (b) “Environmental Law™ means federal laws and laws
of the jurisdiction whera the Property is located that relate to health, safety or environmental pratection; (¢}
“Envirenmental Claanup” includes any response action. remedial action, or removal action, as defined in Environmental
Law; and {d) an “Environmental Condition” means a condition that can cause, contribute ta, or otherwise trigger an
Environmantal Cleanup.

Borrower shall not cause or parmit the presence, use, disposal, starage, or release of any Hazardous Subslances,
or thraalen o release any Hazardous Substances. on or In the Property. Borrower shall not do, nar allow anyone else
ta do, anything affecting the Property (s} that is in violation of any Envirgnmental Law, {b) which creates an Emironmental
Condilian, ar (c) which, due to the presence, use, or release of a Hazardous Substance, creates a condition that
adversely affects the value of the Property. The preceding two senlencas shall rot apply 1o the presence, use. or storage
anthe Preperty of small quantities of Hazardous Substances that are generally recognized 1o be appropriale to normal
cesidantial usas and to maintenance of the Property (including, but nat limited to, hazardous substances in consumer
products).

Borrawer shall promptly give Lender writtan notice of (a) any investigation. claim, demand, lawsuit or other action
by any governmental or ragulatery agency or private party involving the Property and any Hazardous Substance or
Environmental Law of which Berrower has actual knowiedge, (b) any Environmental Condition. including but notlimited
to, any spilling, leaking. discharge, release or threat of release of any Hazardous Substance, and () any condition
caused by the presence, use or release of a Hazardous Substance which adversely affects the vatue of the Property.
If Borrower learns, or is notified by any governmental or ragulatory authorily, or any peivate party, that any ramoval or
other ramediation of any Hazardous Substance affecting the Proparty is necessary, Borrower shall prompily take all
necassary remedial actions in accordance with Environmental Law. Nothing herein shafl create any obligation on Lender
for an Envircnmental Cleanup.

NON-UNIFORM COVENANTS. Barrower and Lender further cavenant and agree as follows:

22. Acceleration; Remadies. Lender shall give notice to Borrower priof to acceleration following Bomower's
breach of any cavenant or agreement in this Security tnstrument (bt not prior to acceleration under Section 18
untess Applicable Law provides otherwise). The notice shall specify: (a) the default; (b) the action required to
cure the default; [¢) a date, not fess than 30 days from the date the notice is given to Borrower, by which the defaut
must be cured; and {d} that failure 1o cure tho default on or bafore the date spacified In the notice may vesultin
acceleration of the sums secured by this Security Instrument, foreclosure by judicial proceeding and salsofthe
Property. The notice shall further infarm Borrower of theright o relnstate after acceleration and tha rightto assern
in the foreclosure proceeding the non-existance of a default o any other defense of Borrower to acceleration
and forectosure. [f tha default s not cured on or bafore the date specified in the notica, Lender atits option may
require immediate payment in full of ail sums secured by this Security Instrumant without fusther demand and
may foreclose this Security Instrument by judicial proceeding. Lendes shall be entitled to coflect all expenses
incurred in pursuing the remedies provided in this Section 22, including, but nottimited to, reascnable attorneys’
fees and costs of titie evidence, all of which shall be additional sums secured by this Security Instument.

23. Relaase. Upen paymant of all sums sacured by this Securlty tnstrument, this Securily Instrument shall become
null and void. Lendsr shall ralease this Security Instrument. Borrower shall pay any recordaticn costs. Lender may
charge Batrower a fee for releasing this Security Instrument, but only if the fee is paid to a third party for services rendered
and ihe charging of the fee is permitted under Applicable Law.

24. Homestead Waiver. Bomower waives all rights of homestead exemption in the Property to the exient allowed
by Applicable Law.

25, Waijver of Appraisal Rights. The laws of South Carclina provide thal in any real eslale foreclosura proceeding
a defendant against whom a persanal judgment is taken o« asked may within 30 days after the sale of the mortgaged
property apply to the court for an order of appraisal. The slatutery appraisal vatue as approvad by the court would be
substituted for the high bid and may decrease the amount of any deficiency owing in conpaction with the transaction.
70 THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY WAIVES AND RELINQUISHES THE STATUTORY
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LOAN #: 7166064486
APPRAISAL RIGHTS WHICH MEANS THE HIGH BID AT THE JUDICIAL FORECLOSURE SALE WILL BE APPLIED TO
THE DEBT REGARDLESS OF ANY APPRAISED VALUE OF THE MORTGAGED PROPERTY. This waiver shall not apply
so long as he Property is used as a dwelling place as defined in § 12-37-250 of the South Carglina Code of Laws.
26. Future Advances. Tha lien of this Security Instrument shall secure the axisting indebtedness under the Note
and any fulure advances made under this Security Instrument up to 150% of the original principal amounl of the Nole
plus interest therean. attorneys” fees and court costs.

BY SIGNING BELOW, Batrower accepts and agrees to the terms and covenants contained in this Security
Instrument and :.’ Ridar axecuted by Barrower and recorded with it.

Signed, oo A7 d delivered in the presenca of:

/-/r-..?g_/_sz(Sean

/1% z:j, Q(Z {Seal)
f DATE

State of

county of RE@ W ) e

Tha foregoing Instrument was acknowledgad before me this JANUARY 18, 2017 {date) by DOROTHY J
HEGER AND GEARY L HUGHES {name of persaon acknowledged).

Wiy, <
\\“ 4,
s\\"\ 332200"4,, Sighature of Person Taking Atknowledgement

- * > i
Y *‘mm'ﬁ g ?@mag W 5‘2‘2&5
=y L ’% 3.-6 - Printed Name of Person Taking Acknowledgement
2o ~ §i3% ‘ .
':,""' ‘-‘:& Yo ¢ A 3 ~

5"6“\' - Tilla or Rank

""1"6‘)' \\<‘°§

%! Caro’ = - - >
LA Wy commiss coZmis?i—?ﬂ e:ﬁug S

Lendar: Ameris Bonk

NMLS ID: 408099

Loan Originator: Charlie Asking
NMLS 1D: 448353
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EXHIBIT “A"

Al that certain piece, parcei or lot of land, with all improvements therean, situate, lying and being in the State of
South Carolina, County of Oconee, being shown as containing 50.74 acres, more of less, as shown and more
fully described on a survey for Allen Taylor & Jimmy W. Blalock, prepared by Appalachian Surveying Company,
(nc. dated June 17, 1986 and recorded in the office of the ROD for Oconee County on August 25, 1988 in Plat
Book A26 at Page 8. Reference to said plat is hereby made for a more comptete description of metes and bounds
thereof.

ALSO: ALL that certain easement and right of way for ingress and egress over that strip of land lying and being
situate in the State of South Carolina, County of Oconee, containing 0.10 acres, more or less, and known as Tract
A for ingress and egress from the existing paved roadway to the aforementioned property as shown on plat
recorded in Plat Book P-52 at Page 441, and more fuily described in instrument recorded in Deed Book 432 at
Page 133, records of Oconee County, South Carofina. This easement is subject to the reservation by Clayton
Doyle Jones, Jr. and his heirs and assigns of the right to use, cross and have access to said easement.

LESS HOWEVER: All those certain pieces, parcels or lats of land previously conveyed by George H. Bouwman

and Eleanore H. Bouwman to Robert Bouwman and Clark Bouwman as recorded on November 30, 1992 in Deed
Book 1060 at Pages 337 and 339.

This being the property conveyed to Geary L. Hughes and Dorothy J. Heger by deed of Richard Kip Merck dated

and recorded simultaneously herewith. Se,e dé 6& b K 233( F%' 3 Ifs
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LOAN #: 7166054486
MIN: 1009207-0000071209-1

SECOND HOME RIDER

THIS SECOND HOME RIDER is made this 18th  day of January, 2017 and
is incorporated into and shall be deemed to amend an suﬂ)lement the Morigage.
Deed of Trust, or Security Deed (the *Security Instrument’) of the same date given ed‘
the undersigned (the "Borrower,” whether there are one or more persons undersign

to secure Borrower's Note to  Amerls Bank, a Gorporation

{the “Lender’)
of the same date and covering the Property described in the Security Instrument (the
“Property”), which is located at: 875 Nimmons Bridge Road, Salem, SC 28676.

In addition to the covenants and agreements made in the Security Instrument,
Borrower and Lender further covenant and agree that Seclions 6 and 8 of the Security
Instrument are deleted and are reglaoed by the following:

6. Occupancy. Borrower shall eccupy, and shall only use, the Property as
Borower's second home. Bomower shallkeepthe Prope available for Bormower's
exclugive use and enjoyment at ail imes, and shall not subject the Property to any
timesharing or other shared ownership arrangement or to any rental pool or
agreement that requires Borrower either to rent the Property or give a management
firm or any other n any control over ihe ccoupancy of use of the Property.

8. Borrowers Loan Application. Bomrower shall be in default #, duri the
Loan application process, Borrower or any persons of entities acting at the
direction of orrower or with Borrower's knawledge or consent gave materially
false, misleading, or inaccurate infarmation or stalements to Lender (or failed to
provide Lender with material information) in connection with the Loan, Material
representations include, but are not limited 1o, representations concerning
Borrower's, ﬁan of the Property as Borower's second home.

5 BELOW, Borrower accepts and agrees to the terms and covenanls
Is Secong.Home Rider.

4.7
M [ S5 8/7 (sea)
DATE

' 444, /(K;'LM ;/fﬁ%?m? L
J

GEARY L HUGHES

I;Q';TE SECOND HOME RIDER-Single Femiy—Fannie MasiFroddio Mac UREFORM INSTRUMENT
Form 3990 V01
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Return to:

Upstate Forever
Land Trust

507 Pettigru Street
Greenville, SC 29601

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) CONSERVATION EASEMENT
COUNTY OF OCONEE ) (Includes Transfer Fee Lien,
Allocation, and Notice
Requirements)

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms, conditions
and restrictions herein contained and as an irrevocable gift, and in the

consideration of the sum of $ provided by the Oconee County
Conservation Bank and other good and valuable consideration, this
CONSERVATION EASEMENT entered into this _____ day of

2021 by and between Geary L. Hughes and Dorothy J. Heger, mtlzens
and residents of Oconee County, South Carolina (hereinafter referred to as
“Grantor”), and UPSTATE FOREVER, a nonprofit corporation organized
and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina (hereinafter
referred to as “Grantee”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain real
property, more particularly described on Exhibit 1, attached hereto and
hereinafter referred to as the "Protected Property";

WHEREAS, it is the purpose and intention of the Grantor and
Grantee by this Conservation Easement to protect certain conservation
values on the Protected Property (the “Conservation Values”) including
without limitation the following:

A, Land area preserved for outdoor recreation by, or the
education of, the general public;

B. Significant natural areas containing relatively natural habitat
of fish, wildlife, and/or plants associated with a mesic
hardwood forest, including riparian frontage on approximately
72-mile on the east side of the east branch of Cornhouse
Creek, a tributary of Lake Keowee, and a freshwater forested

|
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shrub wetland, containing habitatd suitable for propagation
of Oconee Bells, a federally endangered species;

€. Agricultural and forest land in close proximity to other
conserved property, such as Boones Creek Preserve,
McKinney Creek Preserve, and Chapman Bridge Preserve, and
Public Lands, such as Devils Fork State Park;

WHEREAS, the Conservation Values are of great importance to
Grantor and Grantee and the people of Oconee County and the State of
South Carolina;

WHEREAS, Grantor intends that the Conservation Values of the
Protected Property be preserved and maintained by allowing only limited
and carefully controlled activities thereon, in accordance with the terms
and conditions provided herein;

WHEREAS, in the view of Grantor and Grantee, the Conservation
Values of the Protected Property meet one or more of the “Conservation
Purposes” set forth in Section 170(h)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (hereinafter called the "Code");

WHEREAS, the preservation of open space (including farm and
forest land) is recognized in the following governmental conservation
policies:

A. The Farmland Protection Policy Act, P.L. 97-98, 7 U.S.C. Section
4201, et seq., whose purpose is "to minimize the extent to which
Federal programs and policies contribute to the unnecessary and
irreversible conversion of farmland to nonagricultural uses, and
to ensure that Federal programs are administered in a manner
that, to the extent practicable, will be compatible with State, unit
of local government, and private programs and policies to protect
farmland;"

B. South Carolina’s right-to-farm law, as codified in S.C. Code
Sections 46-45-10 to -70, which states in part that “The policy of
the State is to conserve, protect, and encourage the development
and improvement of its agricultural land and facilities for the
production of food and other agricultural products”;

C. The Conservation Bank Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 48-59-10, et seq.,
declares that “protection of open space by acquisition of interests
in real property from willing sellers is essential to ensure that the
State continues to enjoy the benefits of wildlife habitats,
forestlands, farmlands, parks, historical sites, and healthy
streams, rivers, bays, and estuaries; for recreational purposes,

2
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for scientific study, for aesthetic appreciation, for protection of
critical water resources, to maintain the state's position as an
attractive location for visitors and new industry, and to preserve
the opportunities of future generations to access and benefit from
the existence of the state's outstanding natural and historical
sites”;

D. The S.C. Conservation Easement Act of 1991, S.C. Code Ann. §
27-8-10, et seq., has a purpose of “ensuring the availability of
real property for agricultural, forest, recreational, educational or
open space use”,

E. South Carolina’s preferential tax laws for agricultural land, as
found in S.C. Code Sections 12-43-220 to -260, as amended,
provide for a preferential tax rate for agricultural land in order
for such lands to remain in productive agricultural uses; and

F. The North American Wetlands Conservation Act, P.L. 101-233,
16 U.S.C. Section 4401, et seq., whose purposes include the
protection of “wetland ecosystems and habitats associated with
wetland ecosystems and other fish and wildlife in North America”
and sustaining “an abundance of waterfow]l and other wetland
associated migratory birds consistent with the goals of the North
American Waterfowl Management Plan” and similar plans;

WHEREAS, Grantee is a non-profit corporation having tax-exempt
status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, has been established as a
public charity for the purpose of preserving and conserving natural
habitats, environmentally sensitive areas and open space, and for other
charitable, scientific, and educational purposes, and meets the
requirements of a "qualified organization” under Section 170(h)(3) of the
Code;

WHEREAS, Sections 27-8-20 and 27-8-30 of the South Carclina
Code of Laws permit the granting of conservation easements for
recreational, ecological, environmental, educational, and open-space uses;

WHEREAS, the Conservation Values as described above are
documented in a comprehensive Baseline Report, consisting of
descriptions, maps, and photographs, that documents the current
condition and conservation values of the property at the time a
conservation easement is granted;

WHEREAS, the Baseline Report is on file at Grantee’s office and is
incorporated herein by reference;

3
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WHEREAS, the parties agree that the Baseline Report provides,
collectively, an accurate representation of the Protected Property at the
time of this grant and is intended to serve as an objective point of reference
from which to monitor compliance with the terms of this Conservation
Easement; and

WHEREAS, Grantee agrees to enforce the terms of this Conservation
Easement to ensure the preservation and protection of the Conservation
Values of the Protected Property in perpetuity for the benefit of Grantee
and its successors and assigns;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the
mutual covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions herein contained,
Grantor, intending to be legally bound and intending for this Conservation
Easement to remain in effect in perpetuity, agrees on behalf of him /herself,
their heirs, successors, and assigns as follows:

1. Definitions. For the purposes of this Conservation
Easement, Grantor and Grantee agree that, in addition to terms defined
or abbreviated elsewhere herein, the following terms that appear
throughout this Conservation Easement shall be defined as follows:

Agricultural Activities: Activities directly related to the production,
harvesting, and/or storage of plant and/or animal products on the
Protected Property, including, but not limited to, the means of production,
and/or the improvement and maintenance of lands for the production of
crops, animal husbandry, floriculture, and horticulture in a manner that
preserves the long-term productivity of the soil. This includes the keeping
of horses, mules or donkeys for the grazing of land.

Agricultural Structure: Any structure designed to be used or currently
used in conjunction with permitted Agricultural Activities, not including
any structure used as a dwelling for human beings.

Ancillary Structures: Any related or auxiliary structure customarily used
as an accessory to a Residence, such as garages or sheds, not including
any structure used as a dwelling for human beings.

Approval: The prior written consent of the Grantee to allow Grantor to
undertake an activity relating to certain rights described in Section 4 and
as further characterized in Section 5.

Commercial Recreation: The provision of recreation-related products or
services by private (or public) enterprise for a fee.

Commercial Use/Activity: Any use or activity making or intending to
make a profit. Limited Commercial Activities: activities of limited

4
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scope and impact making or intending to make a profit, are sometimes
permissible under the terms of a Conservation Easement when
stipulated.

Equestrian Activities: Activities directly related to horseback riding or
the raising or keeping of horses for the purpose of horseback riding.
Equestrian Structures: Any structure or facility designed to be used or
currently used in conjunction with permitted Equestrian Activities, not
including any structure used as a dwelling for human beings. These include,
but are not limited to, barns, riding arenas, stables, tack rooms, run-in
sheds, and storage sheds.

Forest Management: The production, improvement, and maintenance of
forest lands for timber production and commercial harvesting, wildlife
management, aesthetics or any other purpose. Forest Management
includes silvicultural practices, which are wused to control the
establishment, growth, composition, health, quality and utilization of
forestlands for multiple-use purposes and include, but are not limited to,
harvesting, thinning, reforestation, competition control, prescribed fire or
fire breaks.

Forest Management Plan: A written plan, subject to periodic updates,
created by a Registered Forester, to guide all Forest Management
practices on the Protected Property.

Impervious Surface: A human-made surface area that either prevents or
significantly retards the entry of surface water and stormwater into the
soil or into a water body. Impervious surfaces can include, but are not
limited to, roof tops, walkways, patios and decking, enclosed and
unenclosed porches, paved driveways, paved parking lots, covered storage
areas, concrete or asphalt paving, docks, boardwalks, swimming pools, or
other surfaces which similarly impede the natural infiltration of surface
and stormwater runoff. Impervious Surface specifically excludes ground
surfaces covered with sand, gravel, shell sand, crushed stone, or other
similar permeable materials.

Impoundments: Any dam, weir or other structure that can raise the water
level of a water body above its natural level.

Natural Areas: An area of unique scenic, historic, geologic or ecological
value and of sufficient size and character so as to allow its maintenance
in a natural condition by the operation of physical and biological
processes, usually without direct human intervention.

Ordinary High Water Mark: According to the Army Corps of Engineers:
“That line on the shore established by the fluctuations of water and
indicated by physical characteristics such as a clear, natural line
impressed on the bank, shelving, changes in the character of soil,
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destruction of terrestrial vegetation, the presence of litter and debris, or
other appropriate means that consider the characteristics of the
surrounding areas”.

Passive Recreation: Recreational use by the general public that requires
minimal development or facilities. Examples include hiking and biking
and generally occur in a relatively natural environment.

Residence: Any structure that could be used for human habitation and
which contains sleeping quarters, sanitary facilities, and cooking facilities.

Riparian Buffer: Any vegetated areas within 200 feet and adjacent to all
rivers, streams, waterways, ponds, lakes and impoundments on the
Protected Property that protects and improves water quality, provides
bank stabilization, and creates aquatic and wildlife habitat. Riparian
Buffers are subject to specific restrictions and protections further
described in Section 4.

Subdivided Tract: A legally divided, transferable parcel of land. A
transferable parcel of land separate and distinct from the original parcel{s)
comprising the Protected Property, which is created from said original
parcel(s) after the date of this Easement; provided, however, any
Subdivided Tract will continue to be a portion of the Protected Property.

Subdividing: The process of legally dividing the original legal parcels of
land that comprised the Protected Property at the time this Easement was
executed in order to create additional legal, transferable parcels of land.

Wetlands: Those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or
ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that
under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation
typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions.

2. Primary Purposes. The primary purposes of this
Conservation Easement are to ensure that the Protected Property remains
predominately in its natural state in perpetuity and to protect its
Conservation Values in perpetuity (hereinafter the “Primary Purposes”).

3. Reserved Rights. Grantor reserves to him/herself, and to
their personal representative, heirs, successors, and assigns, all the
rights, uses and activities inherent in fee simple ownership of the Protected
Property (collectively, the “Reserved Rights”), subject to the specific
restrictions and limitations of Section 4, which are included to accomplish
the Primary Purposes. All Reserved Rights apply to the Protected Property
in its entirety, except where specifically modified herein. In addition, the
exercise of all Reserved Rights shall be in full accordance with all
applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations, as well as in

6
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accordance with the Primary Purposes and terms of this Conservation
Easement.

4, Restrictions on Uses of the Protected Property.

The provisions in this Section 4 set forth Grantor’s responsibilities
with regard to acts and uses on, over, or under the Protected Property.

As of the date of this Conservation Easement, there are three
existing structures, including a residence, a garage, and shed on the
Protected Property, more particularly described in the baseline report, all
of which are permitted to be maintained, utilized, removed and replaced
according to the terms and conditions more specifically described below.

Except for the following uses and activities specifically authorized
subject to the conditions below, Grantors agree that there shall be no other
building or development of any residential, commercial or industrial use
or activity of any nature undertaken or allowed on the Protected Property
or any portion thereof:

A. Residences and Structures. Grantor shall have the following
rights regarding residences and structures on the Protected Property:

(1} Maintenance of Existing Structures: To maintain, repair,
and improve the existing Residence, garage, and shed, and
all existing patios, decks, and other impervious surfaces,
which are more particularly described in the Baseline
Report;

(2) Removal, Replacement or Expansion of Existing
Residence(s): To remove, replace, or expand the existing
single family Residence, provided:

{if The replacement Residence shall occupy a footprint of
no more than 2,000 square feet;

(iif The replacement Residence shall not exceed two
stories in height excluding underground basements;

(i) The replacement Residence may include a basement;

{iv)] The replacement Residence shall occupy the same
location as the existing residence;

{v) Collectively, existing or new decks, patios, and other
impervious surfaces associated with the existing or
replacement Residence shall not exceed 600 square
feet in footprint; and

(vi) Grantor obtains Grantee’s written Approval of
Grantor’s plan for the location and construction of
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removal, replacement or expansion of the existing
single family Residence before any work begins.

(3) Removal, Replacement or Expansion of Existing Ancillary
Structures: To remove, replace, or expand the existing
ancillary structure(s), provided:

(i)

(i1}

(i)

collectively, existing and new ancillary structures
associated with an existing residence, shall not exceed
a total of footprint of 1,400 square feet, and shall not
exceed two stories in height;

the replacement ancillary structures shall occupy the
same location as the existing ancillary structures,
except the existing shed may be relocated, provided:

a) the new location is within 100 feet of the
existing Residence or replacement Residence, or
b) the new location is within one of the

“building envelope” areas described in Section A{4}{v}
below, and further described on Exhibit 2;

Grantor obtains Grantee’s written Approval of
Grantor’s plan for the replacement or expansion of any
existing structure that occupies a footprint over 1,000
square feet before any work begins.

(4) New Structures: To construct, maintain, repair, improve
and replace up to one (1) new single family Residence,
provided that the impervious surface associated with the
new Residence satisfies the following:

(1)
(i)
(i)

(iv)

v)

The new Residence shall occupy a footprint of no more
than 2,000 square feet;

The new Residence shall not exceed two stories in
height excluding underground basements;

The new Residence may include a basement;

No new ancillary structures associated with the new
Residence shall be constructed, with the exception of
a replacement shed as described in Section A(3) above;
The new Residence shall be constructed, subject to the
conditions described herein, in one of three (3)
separate permitted “building envelope” areas, which
building envelope areas shall each touch and include
the three (3} locational “Pins”, as such Pins are shown
and described on Exhibit 2, which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference. Once the one (1)
envelope is chosen for the new single family
Residence, the other two will be deemed extinguished
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and no longer available for consideration as a
permissible building envelope area. Further, and
without limiting the foregoing, the permitted building
envelope areas shall not exceed three (3) acre(s) for the
building envelope corresponding to “Pin A”, three (3)
acre(s) for the building envelope corresponding to “Pin
B” and three (3) acre(s) for the building envelope
corresponding to “Pin C”. Further, and without
limiting the foregoing, the relevant building envelopes
described herein, while being required to touch and
contain the relevant Pins described above, shall also
be in the shape of either a perfect circle or perfect
square and the center of any such building envelope
shape shall be no further than fifty (S0} feet from the
associated Pin. The final location of the three building
envelope areas, as permitted herein, shall be subject
to the advanced Approval by the Grantee, which
Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

{(vi} Collectively, new decks, patios, and other impervious
surfaces associated with the new Residence shall not
exceed 600 square feet in footprint;

{vii) Grantor obtains Grantee’s written Approval of
Grantor’s plan for the location, site preparation and
construction of the new Residence before any work
begins; and

(viii) Grantor obtains Grantee’s written Approval of
Grantor’s plan for the location, construction, and
expansion of any ancillary structure before any work

begins.

{5) Dwelling Restriction: Other than the permitted Residential
structures, no other structure on the Protected Property
shall be used as a temporary or permanent dwelling for
human beings.

B. Subdividing. The Protected Property shall not be subdivided.

C. Commercial Activities. Except with the prior written
Approval of Grantee, there shall be no commercial uses, activities, or
structures. For purposes of this limitation, commercial uses do not
include: recreational or lease based hunting or fishing, leasing of
Residential structures for Residential usage, or leasing of the Protected
Property for agricultural uses.

D. Commercial Recreation. No commercial recreational
activities of any kind shall be allowed on the Protected Property, provided
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Grantor shall have the right to lease the Protected Property for hunting
and fishing in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

E. Signs. There shall be no construction or placing of signs,
billboards, or any type of advertising devices or materials on the Protected
Property except for:

(1) directional signs required by law;

{2} “no trespassing,” “no hunting,” or similar signs;

(3) signs relating to the sale of the Protected Property;

(4) signs indicating the name or ownership of the farm or
home, not to exceed twelve square feet; and

{S) signs to indicate the Conservation Values of the Protected

Property.

F. Protection of Riparian Buffers. Grantor shall not remove or
cut any trees or otherwise alter or disturb any area of the Protected
Property that is within 200 feet of the Ordinary High Water Mark of
Cornhouse Creek or any other river, stream, waterway, pond, lake or
impoundment with the limited exceptions of:

(1) removing trees that are dead;

(2) removing trees that are substantially damaged or
threatened by natural causes {e.g. — insect, disease, etc.)
when it is necessary to maintain the ecological health of
the affected forest community;

{3) removing trees that pose a significant and immediate
hazard to life or property;

(4) cutting, removing, or eradicating any plant which is
recognized by state or federal natural resource authorities
to be a non-indigenous species;

(5} except as allowed in Sections 4(J) and (K);

(6) for roads, bridges, and trails constructed, maintained or
restored in accordance with Section 4(M); or

(7) performing ecological enhancements in accordance with a
professionally prepared plan and following written
Approval by Grantee.

G. Utility Systems. Utility systems, including, without
limitation, water, sewer, septic tanks, propane tanks, electrical power
(including geothermal, solar and wind power), and communication lines
and related facilities that are reasonably required to directly serve the
structures and uses allowed under Section 4(A) and (J) hereof may be
located on Protected Property.
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H. Protection of Forest Landscape. Grantor shall not harvest
or cut any of trees with the following exceptions:

{1) to remove trees that are dead;

(2) to remove trees that are substantially damaged or
threatened by natural causes (e.g. — insect, disease, etc.)
when it is necessary to maintain the ecological health of
the affected forest community;

(3) to remove trees that pose a significant and immediate
hazard to life or property;

(4) to cut, remove, or eradicate any plant which is recognized
by state or federal natural resource authorities to be a non-
indigenous species;

(5) to cut and remove trees after obtaining Grantee’s prior
written Approval, when necessary to perform other
activities otherwise permitted by this Conservation
Easement (e.g. — ¢clearing a site for a permitted building).

Agricultural Activities and Structures. Grantor shall not undertake
any agricultural or equestrian activities or uses.

I. Ponds and Wetland Impoundments. Grantor shall have the
right to operate and maintain the current pond and impoundment on the
Protected Property, which are more particularly described in the Baseline
Report. This right shall include the right to remove trees and vegetation
on and within the dam and impoundments.

J. Docks. Grantor shall have the right to remove, maintain and
replace the current dock on the pond, which is more particularly described
in the Baseline Report.

K. Open Fields and Fences. Grantor shall have the right to
maintain the cutrent fences on the Protected Property, which are more
particularly described in the Baseline Report, and to add additional
fencing, provided such additional fencing does not impair the Conservation
Values of the Protected Property.

Grantor shall have the right to maintain current open fields on the
Protected Property, which are more particularly described in the Baseline
Report. Grantor shall not establish any additional open field sites.

M. Roads, Bridges, Trails, and Boardwalks. Grantor shall
have the right to maintain the existing roads, bridges, and trails on the
Protected Property, which are more particularly described in the Baseline
Report. New roads, bridges, trails, and boardwalks may be constructed on
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the Protected Property subject to compliance with all of the following
conditions:

(1) The roads and bridges are needed in order to provide
access to the uses or activities permitted under Section 4
(A), (H}, (I) or (J) hereof;

(2) Roads within the Riparian Buffer area, subject to Section
4(F), shall be limited to the smallest area necessary to
provide reasonable access to the uses and activities
permitted under Section 4{M)(1).

(3) Grantee shall approve in writing a plan for the location and
construction of any road to be located within a Riparian
Buffer, subject to Section 4(F}, before any work begins;

{4) Grantee shall approve in writing a plan for the location and
construction of any road to be built with the use of heavy
equipment before any work begins;

(5) Grantee shall approve in writing a plan for the location and
construction of any bridges before any work begins,
including foot bridges and boardwalks;

(6) All construction shall be done in accordance with
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations;

(7) Trails and boardwalks constructed within the Riparian
Buffer area described in Section 4(F} shall be no wider than
four feet;

(8) Roads and trails on the Protected Property shall not be
paved; and

(9) Grantor shall undertake all reasonable measures to avoid
or minimize adverse ecological impacts on the
Conservation Values of the Protected Property.

N. Ditches and Wells. Existing manmade ditches may be
maintained or replaced. New ditches may be installed for permitted uses.
Wells may be installed, maintained and replaced as needed.

O. Motor Vehicles. Grantor shall ensure that use of tractors, all-
terrain-vehicles (ATVs), and other vehicles do not have a significant
negative impact on the Conservation Values. In fulfillment of the Primary
Purposes, Grantee shall have the right to prohibit or restrict vehicular use
and to require restoration where appropriate.

P. Participation in Certain Government Programs. For
activities and uses that are expressly permitted by this Conservation
Easement, Grantor shall have the right to participate in, and receive the
benefits of, federal, state or local government programs relating to
wetlands conservation or mitigation, stream bank mitigation, carbon
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offsets or sequestration, greenhouse gas credits, plant and wildlife habitat
enhancement, or other natural resource credits or initiatives.

Q. No Transferable Rights. Neither the Protected Property nor
any portion of it shall be included as part of the gross area of other property
not subject to this Conservation Easement for the purpose of determining
density, lot coverage, or open space requirements under otherwise
applicable laws, regulations or ordinances controlling land use and
building density. No development rights that have been encumbered or
extinguished by this Conservation Easement may be transferred to any
other lands pursuant to a transferable development rights program,
clustered development arrangement or otherwise; provided, however, that
with the prior written approval of Grantee, this Section 4(Q) shall not
preclude such transfer of development rights resulting from the
destruction or demolition of any permitted residential building on the
Protected Property.

R. Archaeological Artifacts and Features. Prior to disturbing
archaeological features or commencing any archaeological digs on the
Protected Property, Grantor shall give at least thirty days prior written
notice to Grantee of such activities. Any archaeological site shall, upon
completion of any disturbance or excavation, be returned to, or as close as
possible to, its previous state, unless the site is to be maintained in an
excavated condition for interpretive purposes related to education.

S. No Other Disturbances. On the Protected Property, except
as may be reasonably required in connection with any of the uses and
activities expressly permitted by this Conservation Easement and except
for the installation, use and maintenance of erosion control measures in
full compliance with applicable laws and regulations, there shall be no
filling, excavating, dredging, draining, diking, mining (on or below the
surface) or drilling; no removal of topsoil, sand, gravel, rock, minerals or
other materials; no dumping of trash, garbage, or any other material; and
no alteration of the topography of the land in any manner.

T. Other Uses and Activities. Any use of the Protected Property
and any activity thereon that contravenes the Primary Purposes of this
Conservation Easement are prohibited.

S. Rights of Grantee. Grantor hereby conveys the following
rights to the Grantee:

A. Right of Visual Access. To have visual access to the
Protected Property for the purposes of monitoring and enforcement of this
Conservation Easement, provided that such right shall not be construed
to permit general public access over or upon the Protected Property.
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B. Right of Inspection. Grantee and its agents, contractors and
representatives shall have the right, in a reasonable manner and at
reasonable times, to enter the Protected Property for the purpose of
inspecting it to determine compliance with the provisions of this
Conservation Easement. Grantee shall not inspect the Protected Property
more than two times per year unless Grantee is invited to do so by Grantor
or unless Grantee determines, or has reason to believe, that a violation of
this Conservation Easement has occurred, could occur, or is occurring. In
such events, Grantee shall have the right to enter upon the Protected
Property without notice.

C. Right to Prevent Inconsistent Uses. To prevent Grantor and
/ or third parties from conducting any activity or use inconsistent with the
Primary Purposes and terms of this Conservation Easement.

D. Right to Require Restoration. To require Grantor and/or
third parties to restore such Conservation Values that may be damaged by
any uses or activities prohibited by, or inconsistent with the Primary
Purposes of, this Conservation Easement.

E. Right of Approval; Constructive Denial. For activities or
uses that are expressly permitted by the terms of this Conservation
Easement subject to Grantee’s Approval, the Grantor’s request for
Approval shall be in writing and shall describe the nature, scope, design,
location, timetable, and any other material aspect of the proposed activity
or use in sufficient detail to permit the Grantee to make an informed
determination regarding Approval or denial of the request. Such a request
shall be delivered to the Grantee at least sixty {60) days prior to the
anticipated start date of such activity or use. The Grantee agrees to use
reasonable diligence to respond in writing to such a request within sixty
{(60) days of delivery of said request. Unless otherwise specified, Approval
or denial shall be subject to Grantee’s sole discretion and shall be based
on whether the activity or use is consistent with the conservation purposes
of this Conservation Easement. Approval for an activity or use may be
granted with conditions. The Grantee’s failure to respond to such a request
within the sixty (60) day period shall be deemed a constructive denial of
the request for Approval. Because a constructive denial is not a decision
by the Grantee based on the merits of the Grantor’s request, it is not final
or binding on the Grantee and the Grantor can resubmit the same or
similar request for Approval.

F. Right of Discretionary Consent. If, owing to unforeseen
circumstances, any of the uses or activities prohibited under this
Conservation Easement are deemed by both Grantor and Grantee to be
necessary to maintain or enhance the Conservation Values, Grantee may,
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in its sole discretion, give permission for such activities for a specified
period of time, subject to such limitations as it deems necessary or
desirable, and provided that:

(1) The activities will not affect the qualification of this
Conservation Easement as a “qualified conservation
easement” under any applicable laws, including §§170(h}
and 2031(c} of the Code or any provision of the S.C,
Conservation Easement Act;

(2) The activities will not adversely affect the tax exempt status
of Grantee under any applicable laws, including §501{c){3)
of the Code and Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder;

(3) The activities will not adversely affect the Conservation
Values of the Protected Property;

(4} Neither the Grantee nor Grantor shall have the right or
power to agree to any uses or activities that would resuit
in the termination of this Conservation Easement; and

(5) Grantee reserves the right to deny a request by Grantor for
discretionary consent without liability.

Discretionary consent pursuant to this provision is distinct from
Grantee approval, where such may be required herein, and from
amendment pursuant to Section 20 of this Conservation Easement.

6. Notice of Third Party Activities. Grantor shall keep Grantee
reasonably informed as to activities being conducted on the Protected
Property which are within the scope of this Conservation Easement and as
to the identity of any third parties who are conducting or managing such
activities (for example agricultural leasing). Grantor shall ensure that all
third parties who are conducting activities relating to the Conservation
Values and/or the permitted uses of the Protected Property are fully and
properly informed as to the restrictions and covenants contained within
this Conservation Easement which relate to such uses, including without
limitation, the provisions of this Section and Sections 1 through 5.

7. Representation of Title. Grantor represents and warrants
that he/she owns valid, fee simple absolute title to the Protected Property
and has the right to grant and convey this Conservation Easement and
that the Protected Property is free and clear of any and all encumbrances,
except easements of record, prescriptive easements, and mortgages or
liens that have been subordinated to this Conservation Easement.

15
2021.01.06_CE_HughesHeger_ DRAFT vl



8. Additional Representations and Warranties. Grantor
further represents and warrants the following:

A. Hazardous or Harmful Substances. No substance defined,
listed or otherwise classified pursuant to any federal, state, or local law,
regulation, or requirement as hazardous, toxic, polluting, or otherwise
contaminating to the air, water, or soil, or in any way harmful or
threatening to human health or the environment exists or has been
released, generated, treated, stored, used, disposed of, deposited,
abandoned, or transported in, on, from or across the Protected Property in
a manner not in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and requirements except as disclosed in writing by Grantee to
Grantor.

B. Underground Storage Tanks. There are not now any
underground storage tanks located on the Protected Property, whether
presently in service or closed, abandoned, or decommissioned, and no
underground storage tanks have been removed from the Protected
Property in a manner not in compliance with applicable federal, state, and
local laws, regulations, and requirements.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. Grantor and the
Protected Property are in compliance with all federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and requirements applicable to the Protected Property and its
use.

D. Litigation. There is no pending or threatened litigation in any
way affecting, involving, or relating to the Protected Property.

E. Proceedings or Investigations. No civil or criminal
proceedings or investigations have been instigated at any time or are now
pending, and no notices, claims, demands, or orders have been received,
arising out of any violation or alleged violation of or failure to comply with
any federal, state, or local law, regulation, or requirement applicable to the
Protected Property or its use, nor do there exist any facts or circumstances
that Grantor might reasonably expect to form the basis for any such
proceedings, investigations, notices, claims, demands, or orders.

F. Mineral Rights. There are no outstanding surface or
subsurface mineral rights associated with the Protected Property.

9, Grantee’s Remedies. If Grantee determines that a violation
of this Conservation Easement has occurred, is occurring or is threatened,
Grantee shall give written notice to Grantor of such violation and demand
corrective action to cease or cure the violation and where such violation
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involves injury to the Protected Property resulting from any use or activity
inconsistent with the purposes of this Conservation Easement, to restore
the Protected Property so injured. If Grantor fails to cease or cure the
violation within thirty days after receipt of Grantee’s notice or, if the
circumstances are such that the violation cannot be cured within the thirty
day period, Grantor does not begin curing such violation within the thirty
day period, or if Grantor fails to continue diligently to cure the violation
until finally cured, Grantee may bring an action at law or in equity in a
court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this Conservation
Easement. In such action, Grantee may seek a temporary or permanent
injunction, damages for viclation of this Conservation Easement, including
damages for the loss of the Conservation Values of the Protected Property,
and an order requiring Grantor to restore the Protected Property to the
condition that existed at the time of this grant.

If Grantee, in its sole discretion, determines that a violation of this
Conservation Easement has occurred, is occurring, or is threatened, and
that circumstances require immediate action to prevent or mitigate
significant damage to the Conservation Values of the Protected Property,
Grantee may pursue its remedies under this Section 9 without prior notice
to Grantor and without waiting for the thirty day period provided for cure
to expire.

Grantor agrees that Grantee’s remedies for violation of this
Conservation Easement are inadequate and that Grantee shall be entitled
to the injunctive relief described in this Section 9, both prohibitive and
mandatory, in addition to such other relief to which Grantee may be
entitled, including specific performance of this Conservation Easement,
without the necessity of proving either actual damages or the inadequacy
of otherwise available legal remedies. Grantee’s remedies described in this
Section shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to all remedies now
or hereafter existing at law or in equity.

All costs incurred by Grantee in enforcing this Conservation
Easement against Grantor, including, without limitation, costs of suit and
attorneys’ fees, costs of Grantee’s staff (measured at twice the amount of
their salaries}, and any costs of restoration necessitated by Grantor’s
violation of this Conservation Easement shall be borne solely by Grantor.

All costs incurred by Grantee in defending any claim, demand or
lawsuit made or instituted by Grantor to modify or terminate this
Conservation Easement, including, without limitation, court costs, costs
of Grantee’s staff (measured at twice the amount of their salaries), and
attorneys’ fees, shall be borne solely by Grantor.
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Enforcement of this Conservation Easement shall be at the
discretion of Grantee, and any forbearance by Grantee to exercise its rights
hereunder in the event of any breach of any provision hereof by Grantor
shall not be deemed or construed to be a waiver by Grantee of such
provision or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision
of this Conservation Easement or of any of Grantee’s rights hereunder. No
delay or omission by Grantee in the exercise of any right or remedy upon
any breach by Grantor shall impair such right or remedy or be construed
as a waiver. No third party shall have any right to enforce any provision of
this Conservation Easement.

Nothing herein shall be construed to entitle Grantee to bring any
action against Grantor for any injury to or change in the Protected Property
resulting from causes beyond Grantor’s reasonable control, including,
without limitation, fire, floods, storms or unauthorized wrongful acts of
third persons. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grantor and Grantee fully
reserve their respective rights to pursue a claim or action against a third
party for damages to the Protected Property caused by trespass, nuisance,
vandalism and other activities.

10. Costs and Liabilities. Grantor retains all responsibilities and
shall bear all costs and liabilities of any kind relating to the ownership,
operation, upkeep, and maintenance of the Protected Property, including
maintenance of adequate comprehensive general liability insurance
coverage. Grantor shall keep the Protected Property free of any liens
arising out of any work performed for, materials furnished to, or
obligations incurred by Grantor.

11. Remediation. If at any time there occurs, or has occurred, a
release in, on or about the Protected Property of any substance now or
hereafter defined, listed or otherwise classified pursuant to any federal,
state, or local law, regulation, or requirement as hazardous, toxic,
polluting, or otherwise contaminating to the air, water, or soil, or in any
way harmful or threatening to human health or the environment, in a
manner not in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and requirements, Grantor agrees to take all steps necessary
to assure the containment and remediation of such release, including any
cleanup that may be required.

12. Taxes. Grantor shall pay before delinquency all taxes,
assessments, fees, and charges of whatever description levied on or
assessed against the Protected Property by competent authority. In the
event Grantor fails to pay property taxes on time, Grantee shall have the
right, but not the obligation, to pay such taxes and to receive from Grantor
an immediate reimbursement of the amount of its payment and if such
reimbursement is not made, to file a lien against the Protected Property,
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which lien shall be subordinate to this Conservation Easement. Any such
lien may be enforced and/or foreclosed in accordance with the laws of the
State of South Carolina.

13. Subsequent Liens. No provision of this Conservation
Easement should be construed as impairing the ability of Grantor to use
the Protected Property as collateral for subsequent borrowing. Any
mortgage or lien arising from such a borrowing shall be subject and
subordinate to this Conservation Easement.

14. Hold Harmless. Grantor agrees to release, hold harmless,
defend and indemnify the Grantee and its members, officers, directors,
employees, agents and contractors and their respective heirs, successors
and assigns (the “Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all
liabilities including, but not limited to, injury, losses, damages, judgments,
penalties costs, expenses and fees (including reasonable attorney’s fees),
causes of action, claims, demands or judgments arising from or in any way
connected to any injury, including death, to any person or physical
damage to any part of the Protected Property, resulting from any act,
omission, condition, or other matter related to or occurring on or about
the Protected Property, regardless of cause, unless due to the gross
negligence or willful act of any of the Indemnified Parties.

15. Fair Market Value of Conservation Easement. This
Conservation Easement constitutes a real property interest immediately
vested in Grantee, which the parties stipulate to have a fair market value
determined by multiplying the fair market value of the Protected Property
unencumbered by the Conservation Easement by the ratio of the value of
the Conservation Easement at the time of this grant to the value of the
Protected Property, without deduction for the value of the Conservation
Easement, at the time of this grant. The values at the time of this grant
shall be those values used to calculate the deduction for federal income
tax purposes allowable by reason of this grant, pursuant to Section 170(h)
of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. For the purposes of this
provision, the ratio of the value of the Conservation Easement to the value
of the Protected Property unencumbered by the Conservation Easement is
____ percent (##%).

16. Condemnation. If all or any part of the Protected Property is
taken through the exercise or threat of exercise, of eminent domain,
Grantor and Grantee shall each take appropriate actions at the time of
such taking to recover the full value of the taking and all direct and
incidental damages resulting from the taking. The amount of the proceeds
to which Grantee shall be entitled, after the satisfaction of prior claims,
from the condemnation or involuntary conversion of all or any portion of
the Protected Property shall be determined, unless otherwise provided by
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South Carolina law at the time, in accordance with Section 15 of this
Conservation Easement. Grantee shall use all proceeds that it receives in
a manner consistent with the Primary Purposes of this Conservation
Easement. Grantor and Grantee may consent to condemnation to avoid
unnecessary costs of judicial proceedings, provided that the Primary
Purposes are upheld to the maximum extent possible, and alsc provided
that the proceeds from any condemnation are distributed pursuant to this
Section 16.

17. Assignment. This Conservation Easement is assignable, but
Grantee may assign its rights and obligations under this Conservation
Easement only to an organization which is a qualified organization at the
time of transfer under Section 170{h) of the Internal Revenue Code, as
amended (or any successor provision then applicable), and the applicable
regulations promulgated thereunder, and which is authorized to acquire
and hold conservation easements under South Carolina law. An express
condition of such assignment is that the assignee organization shall have
the commitment, ability and resources to meet its responsibilities and
obligations under this Conservation Easement and to take the necessary
steps to protect the Conservation Values of the Protected Property.

If Grantee shall cease to exist or to be a qualified organization
under Section 170{h) of the Internal Revenue Code, or if Grantee is unable
or unwilling to carry out its obligations under this Conservation Easement,
then The Nature Conservancy shall have the first option to serve as holder
of this Conservation Easement. If The Nature Conservancy is not qualified
or declines to serve as holder, then the rights and obligations under this
Conservation Easement shall vest in such other qualified organization as
a court of competent jurisdiction shall direct pursuant to applicable law.

18. Notice of Subsequent Transfers. Grantor agrees to incorporate
the provisions of this Conservation Easement in any deed or other legal
instrument by which Grantor divests themselves of any interest in all or a
portion of the Protected Property, including, without limitation, a leasehold
interest. Grantor further agrees to give written notice to Grantee of
the transfer of any interest at least twenty days prior to the date
thereof. The failure of Grantor to perform any act required by this Section
shall not impair the validity of this Conservation Easement or limit its
enforceability in any way.

19. Transfer Fee. There shall be assessed by Grantee a transfer
fee equal to one percent of the sales price or other consideration paid in
connection with the sale or transfer of any interest in the Protected
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Property, directly or indirectly (including the transfer of shares,
membership, or other ownership interests in a corporation, limited liability
company, partnerships or other entity which owns the Protected Property),
other than condemnation or the sale of timber or timber rights, which
transfer fee shall be paid to Grantee at the time of the sale or transfer.
This sum shall be placed in Grantee’s stewardship fund, or such similarly
named successor fund, to support Grantee’s efforts to uphold its duties
and responsibilities under this Conservation Easement as well as on
Grantee’s other protected properties.

Grantee may require Grantor and/or any subsequent purchaser to
provide reasonable written proof of the applicable sales price, such as
closing statements, contracts of sale, copies of deeds and other such
relevant evidence.

In the event of non-payment of such transfer fee, Grantee shall have
the right to file a lien for such unpaid transfer fee which shall be a lien on
the Protected Property but which lien shall be subordinate to this
Conservation Easement. Any such lien may be enforced and/or foreclosed
in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina.

Any transfer subsequent to the conveyance of this Easement: a)
without consideration, b} to a spouse, a lineal descendant, a spouse of a
lineal descendent of Grantor (collectively, “Immediate Family Members”},
c) to an entity at least 50% of the equity interest of which is owned by
Grantor or an Immediate Family Member, d) to a trust whose presumptive
beneficiaries are Grantor or an Immediate Family Member, or e) to a
charitable organization which is tax exempt under 501(c}(3), shall be
exempt from the assessment of such transfer fee. If Grantor is a
corporation, limited liability company, partnerships or other entity, it shall
notify Grantee upon transfer of shares, membership, or other ownership
interests in Grantor.

An exchange of properties pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal
Revenue Code, or similar statute, shall be deemed to be for consideration
based on the market value of the property received at the time of such
transfer. Market value shall be determined by agreement of Grantor and
Grantee, or in the absence of such agreement by an MAI appraiser selected
by Grantee, whose appraisal fee shall be paid by Grantee.

20. Limitations on Amendment. If Grantor desires to add real
property subject to the restrictions set forth in this Conservation Easement
to the Protected Property, or if unforeseen circumstances arise under
which an amendment to this Conservation Easement would be necessary
to maintain or enhance the Conservation Values through the clarification
of ambiguities created by the unforeseen circumstances, Grantor and

21
2021.01.06_CE_HughesHeger DRAFT vl



Grt'-mtce may amend this Conservation Easement by a mutually acceptable
written agreement, provided that the amendment:

A. shall be consistent with the Primary Purposes of this
Conservation Easement, as set forth in Section 1 hereof;

B. shall not impair the Conservation Values of the Protected
Property;

C. shall not adversely affect the eligibility of this Conservation
Easement as a “qualified conservation easement” under any
applicable laws, including Section 170(h} and 2031(c) of the
Code; and

D. shall not adversely affect the status of Grantee as a tax-
exempt organization under Section 501(¢)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code or as a qualified organization under Section
170(h}{3) of the Code.

Any such amendment shall be executed by Grantor and Grantee and
recorded in the appropriate public office of the county or counties in which
the Protected Property is located. Nothing in this Section 20 shall be
construed as requiring Grantor or Grantee to enter into any discussions
or negotiations regarding any amendment of this Conservation Easement
or to agree to any such amendment.

21. Change of Circumstances. If circumstances arise in the
future which render the Primary Purposes of this Conservation Easement,
as set forth in Section 1 hereof, impossible to accomplish, this
Conservation Easement can only be terminated or extinguished, whether
in whole or in part, by judicial proceedings in a court of competent
jurisdiction, and Grantee shall be a party to such proceedings. The fact
that any use of the Protected Property that is expressly prohibited by this
Conservation Easement, or any other use that is inconsistent with the
Primary Purposes of this Conservation Easement, as set forth in Section
1, may become more economically valuable than permitted uses, or that
neighboring properties may in the future be put to uses that are not
permitted hereunder, has been fully and carefully considered by Grantor
in granting this Conservation Easement. It is the intent of both Grantor
and Grantee that any such changes shall not constitute circumstances
justifying the termination or extinguishment of this Conservation
Easement pursuant to this Section 21. In addition, the inability or
difficulty of carrying on any or all of the permitted uses, or the
unprofitability of doing so, shall not impair the validity or enforceability of
this Conservation Easement or be considered grounds for its termination
or extinguishment pursuant to this Section 21.

22. Notice. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or
communication that either party desires or is required to give to the other
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party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class
mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

To Grantor: Geary Hughes and Dorothy Heger
875 Nimmons Bridge Road
Salem, South Carolina 29676

To Grantee: Scott Park (or successor)
Land Conservation Director
Upstate Forever
507 Pettigru Street
Greenville, South Carolina 29601

Grantor and Grantee may designate additional or different persons and/or
addresses by written notice either served personally or sent by first class
mail, postage prepaid.

23. Severability. If any provision of this Conservation Easement
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void and
unenforceable, all remaining terms shall remain valid and binding.

24. Captions. The captions in this Conservation Easement have
been inserted solely for convenience of reference and are not a part of this
Conservation Easement and shall have no effect upon its enforcement,
construction or interpretation.

25. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The introductory
paragraphs, or recitals, and the Exhibits identified in this Conservation
Easement are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof.

26. Recordation. This instrument shall be recorded in a timely
fashion in the Office of the Register of Deeds/RMC for County,
South Carolina, and may be re-recorded by Grantee at any time as may be
required to preserve its rights in this Conservation Easement.

27. Controlling Law. The interpretation and performance of this
Conservation Easement shall be governed by the laws of South Carolina.

28. Liberal Construction. Any general rule of construction to the
contrary notwithstanding, this Conservation Easement shall be liberally
construed in favor of the Primary Purposes. If any provision in this
instrument is found to be ambiguous, an interpretation consistent with
the Primary Purposes that would render the provision valid should be
favored over any interpretation that would render it invalid.

29. Counterparts. The parties may execute this Conservation
Easement in two or more counterparts, which shall, in the aggregate, be
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signed by all parties; each counterpart shall be deemed an original
instrument as against any party who has signed. In the event of any
disparity between the counterparts produced, the recorded counterpart
shall be controlling.

30. Binding Effect. The burdens of this Conservation Easement
shall run with the Protected Property in perpetuity and shall be
enforceable against Grantor and their heirs, successors and assigns and
all future owners of the Protected Property and all persons or entities
having any interest therein, in perpetuity. The benefits of this
Conservation Easement shall inure to Grantee and its successors and

assigns in perpetuity.

{Signature pages follow}
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SIGNATURE PAGE FOR CONSERVATION EASEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has set his hand(s) to this
Easement as of the day and year first above written. [or, if being signed in

advance: “as of this __ day of L2082
WITNESSES: GRANTOR:
[ENTITY NAME]
By:
Its:

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged this __ day of :
20___ before me the undersigned Notary, and I do hereby certify that the
above named Grantor(s) [by and through its authorized ]
personally appeared before me and acknowledged the due execution of the
foregoing instrument.

(Signature of Notary)
Notary Public for the State of South Carolina

My commission expires:
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SIGNATURE PAGE FOR CONSERVATION EASEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantee has caused the execution of this
Easement as of the day and year first above written.

WITNESSES: GRANTEE:
Upstate Forever

By:
Scott Park
Land Conservation Director

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged this __ day of )
20___ before me the undersigned Notary, and I do hereby certify that the
above named duly authorized representative of the Grantee personally
appeared before me and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing
instrument.

(Signature of Notary)
Notary Public for the State of South Carolina

My commission expires:
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EXHIBIT 1

Legal description of Property
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EXHIBIT 2

Residential Pin Locations and Building Envelope Areas
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IPaC U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service

|PaC resource list

This report is an automatically generated list of species and other resources such as critical habitat
(collectively referred to as trust resources) under the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service's (USFWS)
jurisdiction that are known or expected to be on or near the project area referenced below. The list
may also include trust resources that occur outside of the project area, but that could potentially be
directly or indirectly affected by activities in the project area. However, determining the likelihood
and extent of effects a project may have on trust resources typically requires gathering additional
site-specific (e.g., vegetation/species surveys) and project-specific (e.g., magnitude and timing of
proposed activities) information.

Below is a summary of the project information you provided and contact information for the USFWS
office(s) with jurisdiction in the defined project area. Please read the introduction to each section
that follows (Endangered Species, Migratory Birds, USFWS Facilities, and NWI Wetlands) for
additional information applicable to the trust resources addressed in that section.

Location

Oconee County, South Carolina

Local office

South Carolina Ecological Services

L (843) 727-4707
I8 (843)727-4218

176 Croghan Spur Road, Suite 200
Charleston, SC 29407-7558

http://www.fws.gov/charleston/

https://ecos.fws.goviipac/location/VJY CEJMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAI4/resources 1/9
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Endangered species

This resource list is for informational purposes only and does not constitute an analysis of
project level impacts.

The primary information used to generate this list is the known or expected range of each species.
Additional areas of influence (AOI) for species are also considered. An AOI includes areas outside of
the species range if the species could be indirectly affected by activities in that area (e.g., placing a
dam upstream of a fish population even if that fish does not occur at the dam site, may indirectly
impact the species by reducing or eliminating water flow downstream). Because species can move,
and site conditions can change, the species on this list are not guaranteed to be found on or near
the project area. To fully determine any potential effects to species, additional site-specific and
project-specific information is often required.

Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act requires Federal agencies to "request of the Secretary
information whether any species which is listed or proposed to be listed may be presentin the area
of such proposed action" for any project that is conducted, permitted, funded, or licensed by any
Federal agency. A letter from the local office and a species list which fulfills this requirement can
only be obtained by requesting an official species list from either the Regulatory Review section in
IPaC (see directions below) or from the local field office directly.

For project evaluations that require USFWS concurrence/review, please return to the IPaC website
and request an official species list by doing the following:

1. Draw the project location and click CONTINUE.
2. Click DEFINE PROJECT.

3. Log in (if directed to do so).

4. Provide a name and description for your project.
5. Click REQUEST SPECIES LIST.

Listed species! and their critical habitats are managed by the Ecological Services Program of the U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and the fisheries division of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA Fisheries?).

Species and critical habitats under the sole responsibility of NOAA Fisheries are not shown on this
list. Please contact NOAA Fisheries for species under their jurisdiction.

1. Species listed under the Endangered Species Act are threatened or endangered; IPaC also shows
species that are candidates, or proposed, for listing. See the listing status page for more
information. IPaC only shows species that are regulated by USFWS (see FAQ).

2. NOAA Fisheries, also known as the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), is an office of the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration within the Department of Commerce.

The following species are potentially affected by activities in this location:

Mammals
NAME STATUS

https:/fecos. fws. gov/ipac/location/VJY CEBJMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAl4/resources 2/9
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Northern Long-eared Bat Myotis septentrionalis Threatened
Wherever found
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/9045

Flowering Plants

NAME STATUS

Persistent Trillium Trillilum persistens Endangered
Wherever found
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.

Small Whorled Pogonia Isotria medeoloides Threatened
Wherever found
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/1890

Smooth Coneflower Echinacea laevigata Endangered
Wherever found
No critical habitat has been designated for this species.
https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/species/3473

Critical habitats

Potential effects to critical habitat(s) in this location must be analyzed along with the endangered
species themselves.

THERE ARE NO CRITICAL HABITATS AT THIS LOCATION,

Migratory birds

Certain birds are protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act! and the Bald and Golden Eagle
Protection Act2.

Any person or organization who plans or conducts activities that may result in impacts to migratory
birds, eagles, and their habitats should follow appropriate regulations and consider implementing
appropriate conservation measures, as described below.

1. The Migratory Birds Treaty Act of 1918.
2. The Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act of 1940.

Additional information can be found using the following links:

https://ecos.fws.goviipac/location/\VVJY CEJMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAI4/resources a9
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e Birds of Conservation Concern http://www.fws.gov/birds/management/managed-species/
birds-of-conservation-concern.php

e Measures for avoiding and minimizing impacts to birds
http://www.fws.gov/birds/management/project-assessment-tools-and-guidance/
conservation-measures.php

¢ Nationwide conservation measures for birds
http://www.fws.gov/migratorybirds/pdf/management/nationwidestandardconservationmeasures.pdf

The birds listed below are birds of particular concern either because they occur on the USFWS Birds
of Conservation Concern (BCC) list or warrant special attention in your project location. To learn
more about the levels of concern for birds on your list and how this list is generated, see the FAQ
below. This is not a list of every bird you may find in this location, nor a guarantee that every bird on
this list will be found in your project area. To see exact locations of where birders and the general
public have sighted birds in and around your project area, visit the E-bird data mapping tool (Tip:
enter your location, desired date range and a species on your list). For projects that occur off the
Atlantic Coast, additional maps and models detailing the relative occurrence and abundance of bird
species on your list are available. Links to additional information about Atlantic Coast birds, and
other important information about your migratory bird list, including how to properly interpret and
use your migratory bird report, can be found below.

For guidance on when to schedule activities or implement avoidance and minimization measures to
reduce impacts to migratory birds on your list, click on the PROBABILITY OF PRESENCE SUMMARY at
the top of your list to see when these birds are most likely to be present and breeding in your
project area.

NAME BREEDING SEASON (IF A
BREEDING SEASON IS INDICATED
FOR A BIRD ON YOUR LIST, THE
BIRD MAY BREED IN YOUR
PROJECT AREA SOMETIME WITHIN
THE TIMEFRAME SPECIFIED,
WHICH IS A VERY LIBERAL
ESTIMATE OF THE DATES INSIDE
WHICH THE BIRD BREEDS
ACROSS ITS ENTIRE RANGE,
"BREEDS ELSEWHERE" INDICATES
THAT THE BIRD DOES NOT LIKELY
BREED IN YOUR PROJECT AREA)

Red-headed Woodpecker Melanerpes erythrocephalus Breeds May 10 to Sep 10
This is a Bird of Conservation Concern (BCC) throughout its range in
the continental USA and Alaska.

Probability of Presence Summary

The graphs below provide our best understanding of when birds of concern are most likely to be
present in your project area. This information can be used to tailor and schedule your project
activities to avoid or minimize impacts to birds. Please make sure you read and understand the FAQ

hitps://ecos.fws.govl/ipac/location/\VVJYCE6JMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAIl4/resources 4/9
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"Proper Interpretation and Use of Your Migratory Bird Report" before using or attempting to
interpret this report.

Probability of Presence ()

Each green bar represents the bird's relative probability of presence in the 10km grid cell(s) your
project overlaps during a particular week of the year. (A year is represented as 12 4-week months.)
Ataller bar indicates a higher probability of species presence. The survey effort (see below) can be
used to establish a level of confidence in the presence score. One can have higher confidence in the
presence score if the corresponding survey effort is also high.

How is the probability of presence score calculated? The calculation is done in three steps:

1. The probability of presence for each week is calculated as the number of survey events in the
week where the species was detected divided by the total number of survey events for that
week. For example, if in week 12 there were 20 survey events and the Spotted Towhee was
found in 5 of them, the probability of presence of the Spotted Towhee in week 12 is 0.25.

2. To properly present the pattern of presence across the year, the relative probability of presence
is calculated. This is the probability of presence divided by the maximum probability of presence
across all weeks. For example, imagine the probability of presence in week 20 for the Spotted
Towhee is 0.05, and that the probability of presence at week 12 (0.25) is the maximum of any
week of the year. The relative probability of presence on week 12 is 0.25/0.25 = 1; at week 20 it is
0.05/0.25 =0.2.

3. The relative probability of presence calculated in the previous step undergoes a statistical
conversion so that all possible values fall between 0 and 10, inclusive. This is the probability of
presence score.

To see a bar's probability of presence score, simply hover your mouse cursor over the bar.

Breeding Season ( )
Yellow bars denote a very liberal estimate of the time-frame inside which the bird breeds across its
entire range. If there are no yellow bars shown for a bird, it does not breed in your project area.

Survey Effort (/)

Vertical black lines superimposed on probability of presence bars indicate the number of surveys
performed for that species in the 10km grid cell(s) your project area overlaps. The number of
surveys is expressed as a range, for example, 33 to 64 surveys.

To see a bar's survey effort range, simply hover your mouse cursor over the bar.

No Data (-)
A week is marked as having no data if there were no survey events for that week.

Survey Timeframe

Surveys from only the last 10 years are used in order to ensure delivery of currently relevant
information. The exception to this is areas off the Atlantic coast, where bird returns are based on all
years of available data, since data in these areas is currently much more sparse.

probability of presence breeding season | survey effort —no data

SPECIES JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP ocT NOV DEC

hitps:/lecos.fws.gov/ipac/location/VJYCEJMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAI4/resources 5/9
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Red-headed
Woodpecker
BCC Rangewide
(CON) (This is a
Bird of '
Conservation
Concern (BCC)

contingn_t_al USA
and Alaska.)

Tell me more about conservation measures | can implement to avoid or minimize impacts to migratory birds.

Nationwide Conservation Measures describes measures that can help avoid and minimize impacts to all birds at
any location year round. Implementation of these measures is particularly important when birds are most likely to
occur in the project area. When birds may be breeding in the area, identifying the locations of any active nests and
avoiding their destruction is a very helpful impact minimization measure. To see when birds are most likely to
occur and be breeding in your project area, view the Probability of Presence Summary. Additional measures or
permits may be advisable depending on the type of activity you are conducting and the type of infrastructure or
bird species present on your project site.

What does IPaC use to generate the migratory birds potentially occurring in my specified location?

The Migratory Bird Resource List is comprised of USFWS Birds of Conservation Concern (BCC) and other species
that may warrant special attention in your project location.

The migratory bird list generated for your project is derived from data provided by the Avian Knowledge Network
(AKN). The AKN data is based on a growing collection of survey, banding, and citizen science datasets and is
queried and filtered to return a list of those birds reported as occurring in the 10km grid cell(s) which your project
intersects, and that have been identified as warranting special attention because they are a BCC species in that
area, an eagle (Eagle Act requirements may apply), or a species that has a particular vulnerability to offshore
activities or development.

Again, the Migratory Bird Resource list includes only a subset of birds that may occur in your project area. It is not
representative of all birds that may occur in your project area. To get a list of all birds potentially present in your
project area, please visit the AKN Phenology Toal,

What does IPaC use to generate the probability of presence graphs for the migratory birds potentially
occurring in my specified location?

The probability of presence graphs associated with your migratory bird list are based on data provided by the
Avian Knowledge Network (AKN). This data is derived from a growing collection of survey, banding, and citizen
science datasets .

Probability of presence data is continuously being updated as new and better information becomes available. To
learn more about how the probability of presence graphs are produced and how to interpret them, go the
Probability of Presence Summary and then click on the "Tell me about these graphs" link.

How do | know if a bird is breeding, wintering, migrating or present year-round in my project area?

To see what part of a particular bird's range your project area falls within (i.e. breeding, wintering, migrating or
year-round), you may refer to the following resources: The Cornell Lab of Ornithology All About Birds Bird Guide, or
(if you are unsuccessful in locating the bird of interest there), the Cornell Lab of Ornithology Neotropical Birds
guide, If a bird on your migratory bird species list has a breeding season associated with it, if that bird does occur
in your project area, there may be nests present at some point within the timeframe specified. If "Breeds
elsewhere" is indicated, then the bird likely does not breed in your project area.

https://ecos. fws_ govl/ipac/locationVJYCEJMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAl4/resources 6/9



3/31/2021 IPaC: Explore Location resources
What are the levels of concern for migratory birds?

Migratory birds delivered through IPaC fall into the following distinct categories of concern:

1. "BCC Rangewide" birds are Birds of Conservation Concern (BCC) that are of concern throughout their range
anywhere within the USA (including Hawaii, the Pacific Islands, Puerto Rico, and the Virgin Islands);

2. "BCC - BCR" birds are BCCs that are of concern only in particular Bird Conservation Regions (BCRs) in the
continental USA; and

3. "Non-BCC - Vulnerable" birds are not BCC species in your project area, but appear on your list either because of
the Eagle Act requirements (for eagles) or (for non-eagles) potential susceptibilities in offshore areas from
certain types of development or activities (e.g. offshore energy development or langline fishing).

Although it is important to try to avoid and minimize impacts to all birds, efforts should be made, in particular, to
avoid and minimize impacts to the birds on this list, especially eagles and BCC species of rangewide concern. For
more information on conservation measures you can implement to help avoid and minimize migratory bird
impacts and requirements for eagles, please see the FAQs for these topics.

Details about birds that are potentially affected by offshore projects

For additional details about the relative occurrence and abundance of both individual bird species and groups of
bird species within your project area off the Atlantic Coast, please visit the Northeast Ocean Data Portal. The Portal
also offers data and information about other taxa besides birds that may be helpful to you in your project review.
Alternately, you may download the bird model results files underlying the portal maps through the NOAA NCCOS
Integrative Statistical Modeling and Predictive Mapping of Marine Bird Distributions and Abundance on the Atlantic
Outer Continental Shelf project webpage.

Bird tracking data can also provide additional details about occurrence and habitat use throughout the year,
including migration. Models relying on survey data may notinclude this information. For additional information on
marine bird tracking data, see the Diving Bird Study and the nanotag studies or contact Caleb Spiegel or Pam
Loring.

What if | have eagles on my list?

If your project has the potential to disturb or kill eagles, you may need to obtain a permit to avoid violating the
Eagle Act should such impacts occur.

Proper Interpretation and Use of Your Migratory Bird Report

The migratory bird list generated is not a list of all birds in your project area, only a subset of birds of priority
concern. To learn more about how your list is generated, and see options for identifying what other birds may be
in your project area, please see the FAQ "What does IPaC use to generate the migratory birds potentially occurring
in my specified location". Please be aware this report provides the "probability of presence" of birds within the 10
km grid cell(s) that overlap your project; not your exact project footprint. On the graphs provided, please also look
carefully at the survey effort (indicated by the black vertical bar) and for the existence of the "no data" indicator (a
red horizontal bar). A high survey effort is the key component. If the survey effort is high, then the probability of
presence score can be viewed as more dependable. In contrast, a low survey effort bar or no data bar means a lack
of data and, therefore, a lack of certainty about presence of the species. This list is not perfect; it is simply a starting
point for identifying what birds of concern have the potential to be in your project area, when they might be there,
and if they might be breeding (which means nests might be present). The list helps you know what to look for to
confirm presence, and helps guide you in knowing when to implement conservation measures to avoid or
minimize potential impacts from your project activities, should presence be confirmed. To learn more about
conservation measures, visit the FAQ "Tell me about conservation measures | can implement to avoid or minimize
impacts to migratory birds" at the bottom of your migratory bird trust resources page.

https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/location/VJY CEJMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAI4/resources 719
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Facilities

National Wildlife Refuge lands

Any activity proposed on lands managed by the National Wildlife Refuge system must undergo a
'‘Compatibility Determination' conducted by the Refuge. Please contact the individual Refuges to
discuss any questions or concerns.

THERE ARE NO REFUGE LANDS AT THIS LOCATION.

Fish hatcheries

THERE ARE NO FISH HATCHERIES AT THIS LOCATION.

Wetlands in the National Wetlands Inventory

Impacts to NWI wetlands and other aquatic habitats may be subject to regulation under Section 404
of the Clean Water Act, or other State/Federal statutes.

For more information please contact the Regulatory Program of the local U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers District.

Please note that the NWI data being shown may be out of date. We are currently working to update
our NWI data set. We recommend you verify these results with a site visit to determine the actual
extent of wetlands on site.

This location overlaps the following wetlands:
FRESHWATER FORESTED/SHRUB WETLAND
PFO1A

FRESHWATER POND
PUBHh

RIVERINE
R5UBH

A full description for each wetland code can be found at the National Wetlands Inventory website

Data limitations

The Service's objective of mapping wetlands and deepwater habitats is to produce reconnaissance level
information on the location, type and size of these resources. The maps are prepared from the analysis of high
altitude imagery. Wetlands are identified based on vegetation, visible hydrology and geography. A margin of error

hitps://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/location/VJYCBJMAHRHINMUFL73RBAPAI4/resources 8/9
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is inherent in the use of imagery; thus, detailed on-the-ground inspection of any particular site may result in
revision of the wetland boundaries or classification established through image analysis.

The accuracy of image interpretation depends on the quality of the imagery, the experience of the image analysts,
the amount and quality of the collateral data and the amount of ground truth verification work conducted.
Metadata should be consuited to determine the date of the source imagery used and any mapping problems.

Wetlands or other mapped features may have changed since the date of the imagery or field work. There may be
occasional differences in polygon boundaries or classifications between the information depicted on the map and
the actual conditions on site,

Data exclusions

Certain wetland habitats are excluded from the National mapping program because of the limitations of aerial
imagery as the primary data source used to detect wetlands. These habitats include seagrasses or submerged
aquatic vegetation that are found in the intertidal and subtidal zones of estuaries and nearshore coastal waters.
Some deepwater reef communities (coral or tuberficid worm reefs) have also been excluded from the mventory
These habitats, because of their depth, go undetected by aerial imagery.

Data precautions

Federal, state, and local regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over wetlands may defirie and.describe wetlands in a
different manner than that used in this inventory. There is no attempt, in either the designi or products of this
inventary, to define the limits of proprietary jurisdiction of any Federal, §taté;._ or: l_ocal_gbve'rnment or to establish
the geagraphical scope of the regulatory programs of government _ag@héi,es. Per§0ﬁ§ intending to engage in
activities involving modifications within or adjacent to wetland areas shou“ll'd seéek the advice of appropriate federal,
state, or local agencies concerning specified agency regulatmy programs and proprietary jurisdictions that may
affect such activities.

hitps:ifecos.fws.govfipac/ocation/VJY CEJMAHRHINMUFL7 3RBAPAI4/resources 9/8



\WI: PFO1A

Type: Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Size: 0.977 acres

P

FO

System Palustrine : The Palustrine System includes all nontidal wetlands dominated by trees, shrubs,
persistent emergents, emergent mosses or lichens, and all such wetlands that occur in tidal areas where
salinity due to ocean-derived salts is below 0.5 ppt. It also includes wetlands lacking such vegetation, but
with all of the following four characteristics: (1) area less than 8 ha (20 acres); (2) active wave-formed or
bedrock shoreline features lacking; (3) water depth in the deepest part of basin less than 2.5 m (8.2 ft) at
low water; and (4) salinity due to ocean-derived salts less than 0.5 ppt.

Class Forested : Characterized by woody vegetation that is 6 m tall or taller.

Subclass Broad-Leaved Deciduous : Woody angiosperms (trees or shrubs) with relatively wide, flat leaves
that are shed during the cold or dry season; e.g., black ash (Fraxinus nigra).

Class Temporary Flooded : Surface water is present for brief periods (from a few days to a few weeks)
during the growing season, but the water table usually lies well below the ground surface for the most of
the season.
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Geographical Distribution of Shortia gelacifolia in
Oconee and Pickens Counties, South Carelina

B. ALLEN Dunn Anb STEVER M. JonEs
Departatent of Farestry, Clemson Universiry. Clemson, SC 29611

Abstract

Shartin gafacifeliv is an evergreen ground specics endemic to the mountain
regions of Geargia and North and South Carolina. The species is classified as
endangered, and its tabitat has been severely impacted by hydroelectric devel-
opmenl. The study reviews the known stations of the species, cvaluales human
impacts on its distribution. und reporis the results of surveys undertaken by the
authurs to lecate new stalions.

Introduction

1n 1787 Andre Michaux collecied the first specimen of Shortia gefucifolin (Fig.
1y at the confluence of the Hursepasture and Toxaway rivers in South Carolina.
The specimen was later identified by Asa Gray and named tn honor of his friend
and coReague, Charles W. Short of Kenlucky. Since Gray's rediscovesy, Shor-
sia's disteibution has been of imterest to batantsis. Today Shorria is considered
to be endangered and has been placed on the United States Department of in-
werivr. Fish and Witdlife Service's list of endangered and threatened species. The
habitat of Skartie has been henvily impacted by agriculiure and construction.
and many of its siations have been lost. Because of the severily of these impacts
and the need 1o update distribution data on Shorifu. the following study was
undertaken. The objectives of the study are 1o delermine the distribution of Shor-
tia galacifolia in Pickens and Ocence counties, Scuth Carolina, and to assess
human impacts on its disiribution.

Methadelogy

The stusdy was initiated by reviewing distribulion reports and studying herbar-
ium records. The investigations of other researchers. such as Crandall {1936).
Davies {1955), Duncan ¢l al. (1950}, and Prince (1947}, were reviewed, On Lhe
basis of this infarmalion 2 map was preparcd illustrating the known distribution
of Shortia.

The second phase of the siudy concerned the identification of human impacts
on the disteibution of Shorsia. Analysis indicated that the hydroetectsic develop-
ments of Lake Keowcee and Lake Jocassee were the most destructive impacts on
the habitat of the species. Lake Keowes is an 18,372 acre impoundment on the
Kcowee River. and Lake Jocassee is a 7,565 acre impoundment on the White-
water. Horsepasture, and Toxaway rivers. The area covered by these impound-
iments was evaluated in terms of the known stations of Shorfia and was carto-
graphically plolted.

1B, Aitza Dunn is Associate Professer 2nd Steven M. Jones is Research Foresler,
»n
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Fie. 1. Shoetio galacifolio,

The final phase of the study concerned o field reconnaissance conducted from
March 1976 to February 1977 of those portions of Oconee and Pickens counties
where Shortia habitat exists. At the completion of the reconnaissance, located
stations were plotted on a map. This map illustrates the newly found stations, as
well as the location of known stations, and the area inundated by Lakes Keowee
and Jocassee,

Known Stations

A summary is given below of the location of known Shartia stations for Oconee
and Pickens counties from the work of previous investigators and herbarium
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records. P. A. Davies {(1955) reporied on the disigibution of Shorsin and sum-
marized the location of Known staticns as follows: In 1886 C. S. Sargent and his
guide, F. E. Boynton of Highlands, North Carolina, located a Shortin slation
niear the confluence of the Horsepasture and Toxaway rvers in Ocones County.
Hoynton reiurned to the area a month later and found large quantities of the
species on Bearcamp Creek. In 1889 Boynlon locuted Jarge quantities of Shortia
at the junction of the Whitewater River ani Devils Fork Creek and in the lower
Jucassee Valley. [n 2arly 1890, T. G. Harbison found large quantities of Shortia
on the Horsepasture River between its junction with the Toxaway River ond
Bearcamp Creek.

While investigating herbarium records 1o be used as a basis for identifying the
distribution of Shertia, C. F. Jenkins found that specimens had been collected
elong the banks of the Whitewater River. in the Jocassee Valley. and northwest
of Salem. W. C. Coker prepared a distsibution map of Shorfia and listed two
Jocations on the east side of the Keowae River below the entrance of Big Eastates
Creek in Pickens County and four stations above the entrance of Big Eastawe
Creek, sixleen stations o the upper source of Litile River, and several stalions
along the Whitewates River in Oconee County.

1n 1911 A, B. Massey located a station of Lhe Keowee River below the entrance
of Lifle River. C. F. Moore and B. C. Qlncy [ocated a station near lhe mouth
of Laurel Fork Creek, and stations on the Keowee and Whitewater rivers. In
1944 A. E. Prince. J. A. Berly. and O. L. Cartwright identified a station in the
area where Devils Fark Creek enters the Whitewater River, and Prince fonnd
stations above the confluence of tbe Whitewater and Toxaway rivers. A. R.
Morganr localed @ slation zbove the junction of Whitewater ard Thompson rivers.
A station was found by W, H. Duncan aleng a iibutary of the Middle Fork Creek
in Deonee County.

Davies (1955) conducted an extensive search for Shorria and fouad stalions
frum the confluence of ihe Thompson and Whitewater rivers to the North Carolina
state houndary; efong Wright and Devils Fork creeks: in the tributary streams
along Little. Foxaway, ond Horsepasture rivers; along Bearcamp. Mill, and Lau-
rel Fork creeks and Jackies Branch: al the mouth of Cobb Creek: and along Bear
Creek.,

In May 1946 A. E. Prince (1947) reporied a slation on a soad along the White-
water River near Jocassee and a station a1 the confluence of the Whitewater and
Toxaway rivers. In maps prepared by C. F. Moore (1977}, stalions were located
along the Kcowee, Whilewater, Toxaway, and Horsepasture rivers: Canc. Devils
Fork, Devils Hole, Lauret Fork. Cobb, Mifl. Coley, Wright, and Bewrcamp
croeks: and Dammo and Jackies branches. Moore also reported i station on
dry ridge between Wright and Milk creeks at an elevation of approximately 1,700
feet. The herbarium records of Furman University contain three specimens which
were collected on the Whitewater River two miles west of Jocassee, en Devils
Fork Creek one mile west of its confiuence with 1the Whitewater River. and on
the Horsepasture River. The University of Georgia’s herbarium contains speci-
meas collecled in a woody ravine near Jocassee. on a tributary of Middle Fark
Creek approximately four miles from Salem. on the Whitewnter River near Jo-
cassce. and one mile west of the confluence of Devils Fork Creck a1 the White-
water River (Ceile, 1976), The herbarium of the University of Nerth Carolina
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contains four stations along the Whitewater River; two stations on he lower
Devils Fork Creek: a station near the confluence of Whitewater and Thompson
rivers, on the north side of Wright's Creck, and along a small stream between
ridges and about one-half mile behind Smelizer Schoolhouse near Salem {Massey,
1977). Clemson University’s herbarium cantains a specimen collected on the
Whitewaler River. Records from the University of South Carolina's herbarium
show three specimens collected from Jocassee in Oconee County (Aulbach, 1977),
The South Carolina Wildlife and Marine Resources Departmem mainkins a file
on the location of endangered planis. Their files congain five locations For Shortiu,
all of which have been previously mentioned (Kohlsaar, 1976).
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The known stations of Shertiz have been carographically plotted (Fig. 2).
iltustrating the known distribution of the species in Ocanee and Pickens counlies
prior to 1970, Over the years extensive searches for Shortia have been condueted:
Asa Gray and his colleagues searched 38 years without locating it. Their scarch
generated great interest in the species, and further imerest inceeased in 1877 when
G. M. Hyams discovered a stalion on the Catawba River in North Carolim which
wis 100 small to meel the demands of scientists,

Habitat Impacts

The primary impact to the habiln of Shorsin gulacifolin has been ol con-
struetion. cultivation. grazing. and hydroelectric development. Al of 1hese im-
pacts have affected the overdll abundance of the species, but none has been as
exlensive as hydroelectric development. The construction of Lakes Keowee and
Jocussee has impacted more stations than any other single factor, This has oc-
curred because of the habilat characeeristics of Shorrin which are mesic lower
slopes of northerty aspect. ravines, and along stream banks in deep, moist, acid
toam soils wiere shade is predominant. Stations have been reported where the
species was growing on dry hillsides, but these are rare. One known station is
tucated on a high ridge between Wright and Mill creeks in Oconee County. The
habilat characterstics of Shortiu make it extremely vulnerable to inundation
projects.

Lakes Keowee and Jocassee are reservoirs built by Duke Power Compasny.
Lake Kcowee initialiy reached cormal poot level in 1970: the lake has a shoreline
of 300 miles nnd occupies an arca of (8,372 acres. The lake inundated the Keowee
River from & point one-half mile north of Highway 183 to the Jocassee Dam. 11
inundated the lower portions of Kelly, Mile, Crow, Fall, Little Cedar, Cedar,
Boones. Eastatee, McKinzeys, and Cane creeks: Wheiner, Caney, and Betty
branches: and aumerous olher unnamed streams. The ake also inundated a por-
tioe af the Little River from Sonth Carolina Highway F30 1o a poinl unc-fourth
mile below the confluence of Stamp Creek and Davis Hranch. This section of the
lake inundated portians of Cane. Croaked, Dodgens, Von Hollen, Big, Whet-
stone, Stamp, and Cornhouse creeks: Freoge, Barkshed, Neal. Long, Wilson.
and Beamos branches; and numerous other vanamed streans.

Lake Jocassee was Alled in 1971, and il covers 7,563 acres. The lake inundated
the upper postion of the Keowee River and the lower portion of the Toxaway.
Whitewater, Horsepasture, and Thompsen rivers, The lake also inundated por-
tions of Bad, Devils Fork. Coley, Wright. Devils Hate, Laurel Fork. Milt. Bear-
camp, Bear, Cobb, Rock, and Toxaway creeks: Jackies Branch: and numercus
other unnamed streams.

Shartia has been found between the elevations of 600 and L700 feet, and 1he
clevations of Lukes Keowee and Jocassce are 800 and 1.H00 feet, respectively.
These lakes were built in Shortie's center of distsibution. and have inundated
many previcusly known stations.

In order 10 evaluate the amonnt of Sherrin lost becanse of insndation by Lakes
Keowee and Jocassee, mileage estimales of stream course length were mide by
using USGS topalogicat 7%-minute quadrangle maps and a Hamilton Map Meu-
surer. The evaluation showed that 43.5 miles of Shortiu stream bank habital wis
keown to exist in Oconee and Pickens counties before 1970, Afier completion of
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Fi6. 3. Impact of Lakes Keowee aml Jocassee vn the previously knuwn distribus of Sharig
relecifolia.

the bydroeleciric projecis. I6 miles femained: this was a 63 per cent habilal
reduction. Reconnaissance located an additional 12 miles of Shortin habitat 2long
stream courses. Based upon present knowledge, this indicates n loss of approx-
mately 50 per cent. This estimate is conservative because it does not alfow for
ibundance. Past investigations have reported the greatest abundance of Shortig
nthe now inundates) Jocassee Valley. Inall probability, the amount of the specics
"5t to date in these two counties is between 55 aud 65 per cent.
Fig. 3 ilustrates the areas inundated by Lakes Keowee and Jocassee, The
locassee Valley, the type locnlity of the species (Davies, 1955), was one of the
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most significant areas inundated. This map shows the siations that have been
lost, and the major impact the lakes have had on the previously knawa distri-
bation of Shortia.

Present Distribution

1n order to mose accurately delermine Shoriia™s present distribution, many of
the previously recorded stations were located again. The southermmost is ke
Massey station on the south side of the Keowee River below the entrance of
Little River. Due 1o inundation, Skortia's sbundance had been reduced from six
patches, as described by Wade in 1932 (Davies, 1955), te two 2 x 6 palches
growing ten feet apart at an elevation of 680 foet. The patch is growing within &
spring seepage on 2 windihrown yellow-poplar (Lirfodendron tlipifera) root 5ys-
tem only ten Feet from Lake Hartwell. The immediate area has been heavily
disturbed. but is only 20 feet from a relatively undisturbed hemlock (Tsuga con-
adensis), beech (Fagus grandifolia), and thododendron (Ritedudendron maxi-
mum) commaenity. Plants were small but healthy, ard several new individuats
were abserved.

Anather southerly station was relocaled about ore-guarter mile behind Smel1-
zer's Schoolouse on Smeltzes Creek, The healihy and expanding 3' % 6' patch
was growing ai the foot of a slope on a sandy bank of the creek at an elevation
of 980 fest. Doghobble {Leucothoe axilluris) was an associate ia the heavily
disturbed hardwood stand.

Dravies® (1955) description of “*muny scattered patehes on the midde and easi-
ern sources of Little River' was too general. Therefore, thesc streams as well as
western sources were searched. Some of the locations were undoubtedly vistied
by Davies while others are new stations. Shortia was found in abundance on all
middle and eastern tributasies above §,.000 {ect; however, nane was found on the
western tributaries. A previously recorded station four miles nortbwest of Salem
represents the westeramost station in South Carolina. but it could not be rete-
cated. In the upper sections of these iwibutaries where ravines are dJeep and
narrow with steep, well-protected lower slopes, Sforria is associated with hem-
lock. white pine (Pinus strobus), and rhododendron. In the lower sections, below
1,100 feet, where fiood plains are much wider and slopes more exposed. Shortia
may be Found growing in the alluvial flats under a hardwoad vverstory and in
association with mountain kaurel {Kalmia latifolia) and doghobble,

The Whitewater and Thompson rivers were searched from Lake Jocassee 1o
the North Carolina s1ate boundary: however. no Shortin was fourd. The great
abundance of Shortia hut existed slong these rivers was tost when 1he Jocassee
basin was inundated. Shorti was nat found on the remaining small section of
Bearcamp Creek between Lake Jocassee and the Morth Carolinz siaie boundary.
On the remaining portien of Bad, Devils Hole. and Lavrel Fork crecks, the
stations observed by Davies {1955) still exist. 11 is ¢easonable to assume that
Shortia is still present, as reported by Davies, on sections of aumeraus streams
which have escaped inundation in the Jocassee Valley.

A new station. where Shortia was most abundant. was locited on lower How-
ard Creek. 1. }. Sevic of Duke Power Company showed the authors a patch
nearly one-half acre in size. Additional searches fourd several acres of Shartia
in nearly contintious large patches from above the entrance of Lodgepole Creek
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to Lake Jocassee and on Corbin Creek. The stations in Boones, McKinneys, and
upper Cane Creek drainages were of special interest since they were the first
stalions located in these areas.

In many insiances, Shoriia's response to kuman and naneral impacts was ob-
served. Along a western tributary of Burgess Creek Shorsia was abundant im-
mediately above and below a heavily grazed pasture, but was absent along the
stream within the pasture,
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Davies {1955) siates that plants fawnd in the most favorable habitats have large
leaves with lang petioles. [n the authors® scarch. the largest individuals were seen
on Bad Creek in an area which was heavily logged approximately eight years
ago. One leal measured 9.8 centimeters wide by 9.3 centimeters long, with a
petiole of 15.0 centimeters: this specimen was hwger than described by Radford
et al. {1964}, In spite of the heavy disturbance. Shortia was abundant and vig-
orous.

Heavy wind damage in 1974 on the upper sources of Burgess Creek apparenily
hais not adversely affected the Shortia populution. However, leaves which were
exposed 1o full sunlight had x seddish color,

It is interesting 10 note that, although suitable conditions are present, Shoriia
fres nover been reported in the nearby Cheohee Creek drainage. Reconnaissance
in these accas during the study failed to Jocate any new statfons. A similar siw-
ation exisls in the east. Shorda has never been found on the wibutaries of the
Enslatoe River, although the western sources of the river are less than (wo miles
(rom stations on Lanrel Fork Creek. Fig. 4 illustrates the newly located stations
for Shortie. as well as previously knowa stutions and the area inundated by Lakes
Keowee and Jocassee.

Efforts 10 relocate the source of a reparted Greenvitle County station (Radford
et al.. 1964} from herbasia records were nol successhul, Personal communication
with A, E. Radierd and C. R. Bell (1977} also failed to locote the source of 1his
stalipn. Despile extensive searching, C. L. Rogers (1976} of Furman University
has never seen Shkortia in Greenville County. C. F. Monre (1977) showed the
authors the Jocation of a Greenville County stsion: however, after examination
of the station, s concurrence with Moore, we concluded that the station is prob-
ably a planting.

Shortin has been reported as occurring along the Chattooga River by Dumond
(19703 However, an inguiry with the U.S. Forest Service at the Stumphouse
Ranger Station an the Sumter National Forest revealed the Chatioega River pop-
ulation was planted by Forest Service personnel,

Conclusion

Shortia galacifolia is an evergreen ground species that is erdemic to the moun-
lain regions of Georgin. North Caroling, and South Carolina, The species has »
limited distribution in 1his area and is found in colonies growing along stream
banks and in well-shaded, moist coves. It primarily spreads by stolons and flowers
in March and April. The center of distribution for the species appears to be in
the area of the confluence of the Horsepasture and Toxaway rivers, with its
greatest abundance being found in the Jocassee Valley. The range of the specics
extends from below the confluence of the LitUe and Keowee rivers in the south:
to Reed Creek in Rabun County, Georgia in the west; to Swain and Burke coun-
ties, Nerth Carolina in the north; and into Lawrel Fork Creek in Pickens County,
South Carolina in the east.

Many previously identified stations of Shortiv buve heen inundated by Lakes
Keowee and Jocassee. and one of the most important habilat areas lost has been
the Jocassee Valley. The amount of Shartia inundated is estimated 1o be 60 per
cent. Another area of interest that has been inundaled is the confiuence of the
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Horsepastore and Toxaway rivers, for it is balieved it was here Andre Michauy
collccted the type specimen of Shortin galacifolia in 1787

In compliance with the Endangered Species Act of 1973, the Secretary of the
Smithsonian Instilution formulated a list of plant species that were threatened and
endangered, Shortig was given the status of endangered, and 1his status has been
canirmied by the United Siates Depariment of Interior, Fish and Wildtife Service
which has the federal mandate for administering the endangered species program.
Since Shortia is an endangered species, it Is imperative that the distribution of
the species be thoroughly undersicod and monitored. For one of the foundations
upon which a program of habitat management is based is the distribulion char-
acleristics of a species,
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m gPublic.net Oconee County, SC

Parcel Information

Parcel ID
Neighborhood
Property Address
Legal Description

065-00-04-004

3300100 - Keowee Twp Salem FD
B75 NIMMONS BRIDGE RD
KEOWEE TOWNSHIP SALEM DIST

Matie: Mot to he used on lega

locuments.)

Acres 4202
Class
Tax District SALEM (District 02)
Exemptions Legal Residence
Agricultural Use
View Map
Owner
HUGHES GEARY L & HEGER DOROTHY J
POBOX 636
SALEM, SC 29676
Land
Land Use Acres Square Footage
F‘_Far_m_Market 4‘1_.02 1.?86_,33‘1
R - Residential 3§ 43,560
Residential Improvement Information
Style 1 Family [Detached)
Heated Square Feet 2457
Interior Walls Finished
Exterior Walls Cement Fiber (Hardy Plank)
Foundation Crawlspace
Attic Square Feet 8]
Basement Square Feet 0
Year Built 2001
Raoof Type Asphalt Shingles
Heating Type Cent Ht/AC-Ht Pmp
Number Of Bedrooms 2
Number Of Full Bathrooms 3
Number Of Half Bathrooms O
Value £214,670
Condition Average
Accessory Information
Description
Equipment Shed:Steel\no Slab

Valuation

Assessed Year

Land Value
Improvement Value
Accessory Value
Tota-_l Value- ti\-"l.a;k-et}
Land Value
Improvement Value
Accessary Value
Total Value (Capped)

Year Built
2004

Frontage Depth
0 0
0 Q

Dimensions/Units
8x12/0

Calculation Method

Acres
Acres

Identical Units
(4]

2021
$144,9460
$214,670

5740
$362,370

$0
50
$0
$0



Sales

Sale Date
5/13/2019

1/23/2017
3/30/2011
2/9/2011
2/3/1999
9/10/1998
7/3/1996

5/14/1991

Sketches

Deed Book /
Page

2465194

Flat Book /
Page
2238315

182713

1818176

101583

996 95

873302

65452

Sale
Price

50
$355,000
$£245,000
$265,000
$140,000

$0

31

$60.000

Reason
9: Other Not Valid

0: Valid Arms-length sale
tran

0: Valid Arms-length sale
tran

NULL

(5] Vaiiﬂ Arms-length sale
tran
0: Valid Arms-length sale
tran
0: Valid Arms-length sale
tran
0: Valid Arms-length sale
tran

Gran tor
HUGHES GEARY L & HEGER

DOROTHY J
MERCK RICHARD K

MERCK RICHARD KIP

ﬁouwmm GEORGE H & ELEANORE
NIMMONS BRIDGE 2 LIMITED PARTN
CURRY E DRAKE JR

CURRY ADAW

BLALOCK JIMMY W

e g (1)

L

SR
[P o

o

Grantee

HUGHES GEARY L & HEGER
DOROTHY J

HUGHES GEARY L & HEGER
DOROTHY J.

MERCK RICHARD K
MERCK RICHARD KIP

BOUWMAN GEORGE H & ELEANORE
H

* NIMMONS BRIDGE 2 LIMITED PARTN

CURRY E DRAKE JR

CURRY ADAW

PR




Recent Sales In Area
Sale date range:

From: == =

04/01/2018

To:

[ 04/01/2021

[ Sales by Ne:’ghburhooﬂ
f—
1500 ‘

L Feet b

[ Sales by Distance ]

Generate Owner List by Radius

pistame:

100 ‘
) Show All Owners

L Fiih \:J (7] Show Parcel ID on Label
Use Address From: Skip Labels

® owner O Property 0

rSelEi:t export file format:
Address labels (5160) v}

International mailing labels that exceed 5 lines are not supported on the Address labels
(5140) For Intérnational addresses, please use the klsx. csv or tab download formats

Download

No data available for the following modules: Commercial Improvement Information, Mobile Homes.

anty makes every effort to produce the most accurate information possible. Ne warranties, expressed or implied. are provided for Developed by

i its use or interpretation, The assessment information is from the last certified taxroll. All data is subject to change before the " Scmelder
aext certified taxroll, GEOSPATIAL
User Privacy Policy
GDPR Privacy Motice

Version 23114

Last Data Upload: 3/31/2021. 9:28:37 PM




9 qPublic.net Oconee County, SC

_.f"(\w. 2
_é“f_— 3 B
Legend
[J Parcels
= Landhook
~= Roads
Parcel ID 065-00-04-004 Alternate 3111 Owner HUGHES GEARY L & HEGER Last2Sales
Sec/Twp/Rng n/a ID Address DOROTHY J Date Price Reason Qual
Property 875 NIMMONS Class n/a PO BOX 636 5/13/201%9 O 9 u
Address BRIDGERD Acreage 4202 SALEM, SC 29676 1/23/2017 $355000 n/a Q
District 02
Brief

=z KEOWEE TOWNSHIP SALEM DIST
Tax Description

{Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 4/1/2021
Last Data Uploaded: 3/31/2021 9:28:37 PM

Developed bvc, Schneider

GEOSPATIAL



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
P. 0. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

MAY 13 2003

DEFARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Employer Identification Number:
e; 57-1070433
DLN:
17053088824083
UP§TATE FOREVER Contact Person:
PO BCX 2308 GARY L. BOTKINS IDH 31463
GREENVILLE, SC 29602-0000

Contact Telephone Number:
{877) 829-5500
Our Letter Dated:
December 19558
Addendum aApplies:
no

Dear Applicant:

This modifies our letter of the above date in which we stated that you

would be treated as an organization that is not a private foundation until the
expiration of your advance ruling period.

Your exempt status under section 501{a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described in section SOl(c) (3) is still in effect.

information you submitted, we have determined that you are not a private
foundation within the meaning of section 509(a} of the Code because you are an
organization of the type descyxibed in section 509(a) (1) and 170(b) (1) {A) {vi}.

Based on the

Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless the
Internal Revenue Service publishes notice to the contrary,

However, if vyou
lose your section 509(a) (1) status,

a grantor or contributor may not rely on
this determination if he or she was in part responsible for, or was aware of,

the act or failure to act, or the substantial or material change on the part of
the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or she

acquired knowledge that the Internal Revenue Service had given notice that you
would ne longer be classified as a section 509{a) (1} organization.

You are redquired to make your annual information return, Form 990 or
Form 990-EZ, available for public inspecticon for three years after the later
of the due date of the return or the date the return is filed. You are also
required to mazke available for public inspection your exemption application,
any suppcrting documents, and your exemption letter. Copies of these
documents are also required to be provided teo any individual upon written or in
person request without charge other than reasonable fees for copying and
postage. You may fulfill this reguirement by placing these documents on the
Internet. Penalties may be imposed for failure to comply with these
requirements. Additicnal information is available in Publication 557,

Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, or you may call our toll free
number shown above.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the addendum enclosed is an integral part of this lagrer.

Lether 10540 DO/,



UPSTATE FOREVER
Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your private
foundation status, please keep it in your permanent records.

if you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and
telepliche number -are shown above.

Sincerely yours,

o~ Q@W"“ —

Lois G. L
Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Tetizy 100 1IN0



’ mmeOFmTE R
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA FILED
SECRETARY OF STATE

1998
NONPROFIT CORPORATION w StP2d -

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT 17]8(s[rojt1j12{1 (2|3 |4 1618

Pursuant to the provisions of § 33-3
Carolina Code, as amended, the applicant 4
of State these articles of amendment .

1-1005 of the 1976 South
elivers to the Secretary

1. The name of the nonprofit corporation is
Upstate Forever

2. Specify (a) the text of every amendment adopted, and (b) list
when each amendment was adopted:

(a) Exhibt A, _attached hece 1o

Cd

—(b) September Is, 19ag

3. [V{ By checking this paragraph #3 the applicant represents
that ({a) approval of the amendment by the members was not
required, and (b) that the amendment was approved by a
sufficient vote of the . board or directors or  the
incorporators. (Do pot check this paragraph #3 if member vote
was required or if the required vote of directors or
incorporators was hot obtained.)

4, If the approval of the members wag required to adopt the
amendment (s), provide the following information:

(a) Designation (Classes of Membership)

{b} Number of memberships outstanding

(¢) Number of votes entitled to be. cast by each class
entitled to vote separately an the amendment:

e —— e

(d) Nunber of votes of each class indisputably voting on the
amendment '

CERTIFIED TO BE ATAUE AND CORRECT COPY

£ TAXEK ERNIA AND COMPARED WITH THE
ORIGINAL ON FILE N THIS OFFICE
{e) Complete one of the following as appropriate;

Stp211998




EXHIBIT A
UPSTATE FOREVER
AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, religious,
educational, and/or scientific purposes, including, for such pavrposes, the .
waking of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or correspending
section of any fatare federal tax code, :

No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the
benefit of, or be distributable to, its members, trustees, officers, or other
private persons, except that the Corporntion shall be suthorized and
empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to
make payments and distributions in fartherance of the purposes set forth in
the purpose clause hereof,

No substantial part of the activities of the Corporntion shall be the
carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legisiation,
and the organization shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the
publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaigu on behalf of
any candidate for public office. .

Notwithstanding any other provision of this docament, the
Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be
carried on (a) by an organkzation exempt from federal income tax under
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of
any future federal tax code, or (b) by an organization, contributiens to which
are deductible under section 170(¢)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code,or -
corresponding section of any future federal tax code.
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Greene Finney,L.Lp

I RTIFILELD IPUBL \ PN T

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Upstate Forever
Greenville, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Upstate Forever (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of
activities. functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Upstate Forever as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Greene Finney, LLP
Mauldin, South Carolina
March 18, 2020

— - GREENEFINNEY.COM INFOuUGREENEFINNEY COM - - —

MAULDIN. §C CHARLESTON, 5C SPARTANBURG. SC ASHEVILLE, NC

864.232.5204 843.735.5805 564.232.5204 B828.771.0847




UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR DECEMBER 31, 2018)

ASSETS

Cash

Marketable Securities

Investments

Deposits

Accounts Receivable

Long-Term Accounts Receivable, net
Campaign Pledge Receivables
Long-Term Pledge Campaign Receivables, net
Prepaid Expenses

Other Current Assets

Land Held for Resale

Due to/from Other Funds

Property and Equipment, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

WITHOUT WITH
DONOR DONOR 2019 2018
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS  TOTAL TOTAL

$ 106,010 487,601 593,611 $ 838,082

3,825,980 1,975,273 5,801,253 4,889,531

214,169 - 214,169 267,294

1,128 - 1,128 1,128

25,000 125,595 150,595 120,582

- 77,341 77,341 37,620

456,472 25,000 481,472 344,042

138,444 - 138,444 404,373

4,447 - 4,447 3,262

3,579 - 3,579 3,775

502,300 - 502,300 1,000
(113,153) 113,153 - -

628,623 106,897 735,520 777,139

3 5,792,999 2,910,860 8,703,850 $ 7,687,828

$ 9,987 . 9,987 § 8,470

52,570 4,089 56,659 64,421

62,557 4,089 66,646 72,891

5,730,442 - 5,730,442 5,077,256

- 2,906,771 2,906,771 2,537,681

5,730,442 2,906,771 8,637,213 7,614,937

$ 5,792,999 2,910,860 8,703,859 $ 7,687,828




UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018)

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Public Support
Grants
Contributions
In-Kind Coniributions
Capital Campaign
Membership
Land Trust Endowments
Transfers Between Funds

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT

Revenue
Consulting Fees
Special Events, net of Expenses
Interest Income
Investment Income (Loss)
Bike Share Revenue
Other

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT

AND REVENUE
EXPENSES

Program
Conservation Easements
Consulting Subcontract Costs
Other Program Costs

Management

Fundraising

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

WITHOUT WITH
DONOR DONOR 2019 2018
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS  TOTAL TOTAL
- 572,073 572,073 $ 429,900
39,244 15,523 54,767 55,592
- - - 427
914,358 - 914,358 2,644,021
238,846 - 238,846 284,147
- 91,720 91,720 87,770
(329,202) 329,202 - -
967,335 (967,335) - .
1,830,581 41,183 1,871,764 3,501,857
4,072 9,775 13,847 18,471
(2,916) 6,408 3,492 34,631
10,154 135 10,289 9,671
481,819 280,490 762,309 (289,243)
- 29,433 29,433 33,843
1,590 1,666 3,256 2,682
494,719 327,907 822,626 (189,945)
2,325,300 369,090 2,694,390 3,311,912
; ] ; 210,000
100,575 - 100,575 98,920
1,118,933 - 1,118,933 953,061
123,513 . 123,513 125,592
329,093 - 329,093 405,053
1,672,114 - 1,672,114 1,792,626
653,186 369,090 1,022,276 1,519,286
5,077,256 2,537,681 7,614,937 6,095,651
5,730,442 2,906,771 8,637,213 $  7.614,937

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



UPSTATE FOREVER

GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018)

EXPENSES

Accounting
Advertising

Bad Debt Expense
Bank Charges
Computer

Consultants

Copier

Depreciation Expense
Education/Training
Events, Other
Insurance

Licenses and Fees
Meeting and Conference Expenses
Miscellaneous
Organizational Dues
Overhead Allocation
Postage & Mailing
Printed Materials
Records Management
Rent

Repairs and Maintenance
Salaries

Employee Benefits
Salaries, Paid Time Off
Payroll Service

Payroll Tax Expense
Sponsorship Expenses

Supplies and Equipment
Telecommunications

Travel
Utilities

Contribution for Conservation Easements

Consulting Subconiract Costs

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

OTHER 2019 2018
PROGRAMS MANAGEMENT FUNDRAISING TOTAL TOTAL
$ - 12,280 - 12,280 § 10,780

4,307 - 68 4,375 3,987
- - 13,500 13,500 3,263
3,941 30 3,712 7,683 11,305
23,773 8,642 3,375 35,790 33,790
95,889 3,500 24,648 124,037 200,070
2,257 5,006 - 7,263 6,507
28,031 20,911 - 48,942 49 780
1,503 1,919 - 3,422 1,031
11,199 15 22,122 33,336 -
9,003 21,540 . 30,543 29,369
450 300 - 750 1,057
18,738 1,995 1,599 22,332 26,747
2,125 564 - 2,689 2,002
14,892 250 475 15,617 5,282
95,184 (125,348) 30,164 - -
2,858 989 3,765 7,612 5,449
20,067 2,222 7.384 29,673 29,166
- 991 - 991 942
12,340 285 - 12,625 12,340
22,628 4673 1,300 28,601 24,646
602,988 128,048 187,954 918,990 806,897
33,555 7,466 10,326 51,347 50,316
(3,397) (531 (736) (4,664) 4,594
- 2,446 - 2,446 2,295
43,225 9,143 13,610 65,978 59,636
13,775 750 - 14,525 31,000
19,623 4,632 1,935 26,190 23,018
9,378 6.316 1,516 17,210 15,856
28,735 533 1,867 31,135 21,767
1,866 3,946 509 6,321 5814
$ 1,118,933 123,513 329,093 1,571,539 1,483,706
- 210,000
100,575 98,920
1,672,114 § 1,792,626




UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets
Adjusiments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Cash Provided

by (used in) Operating Activities:

Unrealized (Gain} Loss on Marketable Securities and Investments

Depreciation

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits, Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts and Long-Term Pledges Receivable
{Increase) Decrease in Land Held for Resale
Increase {Decrease) in Liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Purchase of Marketable Securities and Investents
Acquisition of Property and Equipment

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE} IN CASH
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

2019 2018
$ 1,022276 § 1,519286
(669,239) 436,254
48,942 49,780
(989) 2,526
58,765 (663,471)

(501,300) -
(6,245) 11,247
(47,790) 1,355,622
(189,359)  (1,648,158)
(7.322) (8,256)
(196,681) __ (1,656,414)
(244,471) (300,792)
838,082 1,138,874
$ 593611 § 838,082




UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2018
WITHOUT WITH
DONOR DONOR 2018
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash $ 299,707 538,375 § 838,082
Marketable Securities 3,243,779 1,645,752 4,889 531
Invesiments 267,294 - 267,294
Deposits 1,128 - 1,128
Accounts Receivable 32,500 88,082 120,582
Long-Term Accounts Receivable, net - 37,620 37,620
Campaign Pledge Receivables 314,042 30,000 344,042
Long-Term Pledge Campaign Receivables, net 374,373 30,000 404,373
Prepaid Expenses 3,262 - 3,262
Other Current Assets 3,775 - 3,775
Land Held for Resale 1,000 - 1,000
Due to/from other Funds {33,625) 33,625 -
Property and Equipment, net 642,912 134,227 777,139
TOTAL ASSETS 3 5,150,147 2,537681 § 7,687,828
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable L 8.470 - $ 8,470
Accrued Liabilities 64,421 - 64,421
TOTAL LIABILITIES 72,891 - 72,891
NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions 5,077,256 - 5,077,256
With Donor Restrictions - 2,537,681 2,537,681
TOTAL NET ASSETS 5,077,256 2,537,681 7,614,937
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND NET ASSETS $ 5,150,147 2,537,681 § 7687828

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.



UPSTATE FOREVYER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CARCGLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

WITHOUT WITH
DONOR DONOR 2018
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Public Support

Grants S 20,000 409900 S 429,900
Contributions 46,392 9,200 55,592
In-Kind Contributions 427 . 427
Capital Campaign 2,544,021 100,000 2,644,021
Membership 284,147 - 284,147
Land Trust Endowments - 87,770 87,770
Transfers Between Funds (56,642) 56,642 -
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 873,803 (873,803) -
TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT 3,712,148 (210,291} 3,501,857
Revenue
Consulting Fees 4,096 14,375 18,471
Special Events, net of Expenses 27,986 6,642 34,631
Interest Income 9,072 599 9,671
Investment Income (Loss) (175,288) {113,955} (289,243)
Bike Share Revenue - 33,843 33,843
Other 2,585 97 2,682
TOTAL REVENUE (131,546) (58,399) (189,945)
TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT
AND REVENUE
3,580,602 (268,690) 3,311,912
EXPENSES
Program
Conservation Easements 210,000 - 210,000
Consulting Subcontract Costs 98,920 - 98,920
Other Program Costs 953,061 - 953,061
Management 125,592 - 125,592
Fundraising 405,053 - 405,053
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,792,626 - 1,792,626
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,787,976 (268,690) 1,519,286
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,289,280 2,806,371 6,095,651
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 3 5,077,256 2,537,681 3 7,614,937

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

OTHER 2018

PROGRAMS MANAGEMENT FUNDRAISING TOTAL
EXPENSES
Accounting 5 - 10,780 - g 10,780
Advertising 8,912 - 75 8,987
Bad Debt Expense 3,263 - - 3,263
Bank Charges 8,009 80 3.216 11,305
Computer 26,961 5,705 1,124 33,790
Consultants 67,690 527 131,853 200,070
Copier 3,040 3314 153 6,507
Depreciation Expense 29419 20,361 - 45,780
Education/Training 276 - 755 1,031
Insurance 8,702 20,667 - 29,369
Licenses and Fees 569 214 274 1,057
Meeting and Conference Expenses 11,945 150 14,652 26,747
Miscellaneous 1,335 272 395 2,002
Organizational Dues 4,232 575 475 5,282
Overhead Allocation 78,360 (107,966} 29,606 -
Postage & Mailing 3,089 400 1,960 5,449
Printed Materials 19,604 1,464 8,098 29,166
Records Management - 942 - 942
Rent 12,340 - - 12,340
Repairs and Maintenance 19,389 5,257 - 24,646
Salaries 492,286 130,572 184,039 806,897
Employee Benefits 31,324 7,579 11,413 50,316
Salaries, Paid Time Off 4206 1,307 (919) 4,554
Payroll Service - 2,295 - 2,295
Payroll Tax Expense 36,467 9,536 13,633 59,636
Sponsorship Expenses 31,000 - - 31,000
Supplies and Equipment 17,144 3,279 2,595 23,018
Telecommunications 9,934 4.629 1,298 15,856
Travel 21,403 6 358 21,767
Utilities 2,162 3,652 - 5,814

S 953,061 125,592 405,053 1,483,706
Contribution for Conservation Easements 210,000
Consulting Subcontract Costs 98,920

3 1792626

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Operation

Upstate Forever (the “Organization™) is a nonprofit organization founded in 1998 to protect critical lands, waters, and
the unique character of the Upstate of South Carolina. The Organization accomplishes its mission through four major
programs: Land Conservation, Clean Water, Land Planning and Policy, and Energy. The Organization receives third-
party donations, grants from state and federal governments, foundations and private industry, and investment income.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and are presented in
accordance with FASB ASC 958-205 Not-For-Profit Presentation of Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes revenue on granis either when received or when the funds have been expended
(reimbursable grants) in accordance with grant requirements. Contributions are recognized when received or when a
written pledge 1s received for contributions promised over more than one year. The Organization has received planned
gifts of $4.6 million as a part of its Crossroads Campaign as described further in Note 7. Planned gifts are future
contributions that a donor plans during their lifetime that will take effect upon the donor's passing. Planned gifts are
not recognized on the financial statements until the cash is received.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization generally considers all instruments with a maturity of three months
or less at date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist primarily of publicly traded mutual funds and publicly traded stock and are classified as
available-for-sale. Such securities are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices, with any unrealized gains
or losses reported as a change in donor restricted net assets or net assets without donor restrictions.

Investments

Investments consist of a private equity limited partmership fund that makes investments in middle-market businesses.
Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of amounts due for grants and from large donors.

Campaign pledge receivables that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net realizable value.
Campaign pledge receivables that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of their
estimated future cash flows. The discounts on thosc amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates applicable to
the years in which the pledge receivables are received. Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution

revenue.

Allowances for uncollectible accounts are determined based on subsequent collections, past experience, and an
assessment of economic conditions. Receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under section 301(c}3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and
therefore has made no provision for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial statements.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment with an estimated useful life of at least 2 years and with a cost or value equal to or greater
than $2,500 are recorded at cost if purchased, and recorded at fair market value if donated. Assets are depreciated on
a straight-line method.

Net Assets

Net assets and revenues are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly,
net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

¢ Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions are net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions. The Board, at its discretion, may designate a portion of the net assets without donor
restrictions to be used for specific purposes, such as capital improvements.

» Net Assets With Donor Restrictions are net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Sorne donor-imposed
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met either by the actions of the Organization or
the passage of time. Other donor-imposed restrictions may be perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates
that the resources be maintained in perpetuity. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from
restrictions. If a restriction is fulfilled during the same year in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports that support as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions.

Conservation Easements

A conservation easement is an agreement between a landowner and the organization in which the landowner
permanently relinquishes most or all of the rights to develop the property and agrees to other terms benefitting the
public. The easement is publicly recorded and is binding on all future owners of the property. The Qrganization’s
principal responsibility is to ensure compliance with the terms of the easement. It meets this responsibility by
periodically inspecting the property and, if necessary, taking appropriate action to enforce the easement.

Each conservation easement received by the Organization provides that it cannot be transferred or assigned to any
person or entity except to an organization that is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code to receive easements and
that has the commitment, ability, and resources to meet its responsibilities and obligations under the easement and to
take the necessary steps to protect the conservation values of the property. Accordingly, there is no market for any of
the conservation easements received by the Organization.

Conservation easements donated to the Organization are recorded at a zero value in the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Activities and the Statement of Functional Expenses. Conservation easements that are
purchased are recorded at a zero value in the Statement of Financial Position and are shown as an expense in the
Statement of Activities, Statement of Functional Expenses and Statements of Cash Flows. The funding source that
enables the purchase of these ecasements is shown as a revenue in the Statement of Activities and Statements of Cash
Flows, resulting in a net zero effect on net assets.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Conservation Easements (Continued)

The Organization believes that tracking the value of conservation easements under management is useful to gange the
significance of the ongoing responsibility to monitor these easements. Accordingly, for purposes of note disclosure
only, conservation casements received by the Organization are disclosed at the value paid to acquire the conservation
easement or the estimated value of the development rights relinquished under the easement, that is, the amount of the
reduction in fair market value {(as defined in IRS regulations) resulting from the easement at the date it is recorded.
This value is generally established through qualified appraisals that are performed at or near the recording date. Where
such an appraisal is net available, management makes its best estimate of the value based on relevant facts and
circumstances. Values are not updated as they represent the historical cost at the date the easements were granted. See
Note 15 for more details of the Organization’s conservation easements.

Granis

The Organization receives grants from federal, state and local governments, as well as from private organizations, to
be used for specific programs or for the purchase of conservation easements.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires the Organization's management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.

NOTE 2—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within
the year following December 31, 2019 consist of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 106,010
M arketable Securities 3,825,080
Investments 214,169
Accounts Receivable 25,000
Campaign Pledge Receivables, Net 456,472
Endowment distributions and appropriations 80,000

3 4,707,631

The Organization’s board-designated endowment of $2,452,933 is subject to board approval. Although they do not
intend to spend from this endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the Board's
annual budget approval), these amounts could be made available if necessary.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 3 - FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services
benefited.

NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization currently maintains bank accounts. Accounts at each institution were insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") up to $250,000 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the Organization’s holdings
did not exceed the insured limits.

NOTE 5 — FAIR YALUE DISCLOSURES

The Financial Accounting Standards Board {“FASB”) issued a statement that defines fair value and establishes a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level | — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities
in active markets that the Organization has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include
¢ quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
* quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
* inputs thai are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 —Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurements. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inpuls and minimize the vse of unobservable inputs.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization’s marketable securities, investments, and campaign pledges
receivable were the only financial instruments carried at fair value on the statements of financial position in accordance
with the FASB ASC 820-10 valuation hierarchy. These marketable securities and investments were valued based upon
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have been
no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Mutual and Money Market Funds
These investments are public investment vehicles valued using the Net Asset Value {NAV) provided by the
administrator of the fund. The NAV is based on the value of the underlining assets owned by the fund, minus its

liabilities, and then divided by the number of shares outstanding. The NAV is a quoted price in an active market and
classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.
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UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 5 —FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Stocks

These investments are valued based on the current stock market price or information obtained from the company itself
if there is no secondary market for the sale of the shares of stock. The current stock market price investments are
classified within Level 1.

Privare Equity Fund

A contribution was given to the Organization in Deccmber 2018 that is an intcrest in a private equity limited
partnership fund that makes investments in lower middle-market businesscs. This investment is repotted at NAV of
the Organization’s share in the private equity fund. As part of the transfer of ownership agreement, the Organization
is not responsible for any future calls for funding and any or al} future distributions are solely the property of Upstate
Forever. The private equity partnership is scheduled to close out and make final disbursements in October 2020. The
Organization uses NAV reported by fund managers to estimate fair value of alternative investments that {a) do not
have a readily determinable fair valuc and (b) either have the attributes of an investment company or prepare their
financial statements consistent with the measurement principles of an investment company, unless it is probable that
all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from NAY. The private equity investment; whose
fair value was determined using NAV as a practical expedient, is not categorized within the described fair value
hierarchy.

The table below details the activity within the private equity fund during 2019:

Private Equity Fund Value at December 31, 2018 5 267.294
Cash Distributions from the Fund {66,336)
Unrealized Gains on [nvestment 13,211

Private Equity Fund Value at December 31, 2019 3 214,169




UPSTATE FOREVER

GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 5 - FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The following table sets forth by level the fair value hierarchy of the Trust’s assets accounted for at fair value on a
recurting basis as of December 31, 2019:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2019 Using Quoted Prices:

Assets:
Cash and Deposit-in-Transit
Certificates of Deposit
Community Foundation Funds
Equities - Publicly Traded
Bonds - Publicly Traded
Treasury Notes
Mutual Funds:

Stocks

Bonds

Ocher

Total Mutual Funds

Money Market Funds

Total Assets at Fair Value

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical Quoted Prices for Significant
Fair Value at Assets and Similar Assets Unobservable
December 31, Liabilities {(Level | and Liabilities Inputs (Level 3
2019 Inputs) {Level 2 Inputs) Inputs)
3 36,756 36,756 - b -
607,000 607,000
21,897 21,897 - -
1,023,688 1,023,688 - -
158,848 158,848 - -
156,694 156,694 - -
1,496,661 1,496,661 - -
1,883,814 1,883,814 - -
80,627 80,627 - -
3,461,102 3,461,102 - -
335,268 335,268 - -
$§ 5801253 5801253 - 3 -

Toetal investment gain on marketable securities and investments of $762,309 includes $669,239 of unrealized gains
for the year ended December 31, 2019. Investment fees in the amount of $26,595 are netted with [nvestment Income
on the Statement of Activities for the year ended December 31, 2019.
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GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 5 - FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The following table sets forth by level the fair value hierarchy of the Trust’s assets accounted for at fair value on a
recurring basis as of December 31, 2018:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2018 Using Quoted Prices:

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for ldentical Quoted Prices for Significant
Fair Value at Assets and Similar Assets Unobservable
December 31, Liabilities (Level | and Liabilities Inputs (Level 3
2018 Inputs) {Level 2 Inputs) Inputs)
Assels:
Cash and Deposit-in-Transit 5 56,145 56,145 - 3 -
Certificates of Deposit 342,000 342,000
Community Foundation Funds 22,308 22,308 - -
Equities - Publicly Traded 805,267 805,267 - -
Bonds - Publicly Traded 167,763 167,763 - -
Treasury Notes 133,970 133,970 - -
Mutual Funds:
Stocks 1,178,215 1,178,215 - -
Bonds 1,582,881 1,582,881 - -
Other 288,110 288,110 - -
Total Mutual Funds 3,049,206 3,049,206 - -
Money Market Funds 312,872 312,872 - -
Total Assets at Fair Value % 4,889,531 4,889,531 - 5 -

Total investment loss on marketable securities and investments of $289,243 includes $436,254 of unrealized losses
for the year ended December 31, 2018. Investment fees in the amount of $22,785 are netted with [nvestment Income
on the Statement of Activities for the year ended December 31, 2018.

NOTE 6 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS

Land Trust Endowment

As part of the Organization’s Land Trust program, it receives gifts and contributions from individuals and entities to
be used to ensure compliance with the terms of its conservation easements. (See Note 15 for a description of the
Organization’s conservation easements).

The Land Trust Endowment is comprised of three individual funds: The Principal Fund (investment), Monitoring
Fund, and Defense Fund, all of which are classified as with donor restrictions. These funds include amounts invested

in marketable securities, and accounts receivable from donors.

Investment income eamed on the marketable securities is allocated to the Defense and Monitoring Funds in order to
provide continuing support for the Organization’s oversight responsibilities.

14



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Land Trust Endowment (Continued)

It is the written intent of most donors and the Organization that cumulative investment losses, if any, will not be
reported in net assets without donor restrictions. Investment losses will be reported first in the Monitoring and Defense
net assets to the extent of cumulative investment earnings, net of appropriations for expenditures, and then against the
account principal. Future investment income will be used to restore losses, if any, to the principal before again being
available for oversight activitics.

Endowment Without Donor Restrictions

As of December 31, 2019, the Organization has received $2,200,000 in funds without restrictions from one family,
which the Board of Directors designated to be held as an endowment fund for future endeavors. The Qrganization
classified these as net assets without donor resirictions, and also records investment eamings as without donor
restrictions. The Board of Directors approves when and how to use these gifis (hat are without donor restrictions.

Accounting Guidance

Net assets with donor restrictions are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with
the standard of prudence prescribed by the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (“UPMIFA™). In
accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate
or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
s  The duration and preservation of the endowment fund.
The purposes of the Organization and the endowment fund.
General economic conditions.
The possible effect of inflation or deflation.
The expected total return from income and appreciation of investments.
Other resources of the Organization.
The investment policy of the Organization.

Investment Objective

The Organization’s investment objective is to attain an average annual real total retum (net of investment management
fees) with an acceptable margin of risk. The overall goal is for the fund, over the long term (rolling three-year periods),
to achieve retums comparable to appropriate asset class indexes. The Organization has a diversified approach to
investment that balances the goals of maximizing return with preservation of funds. By diversifying among asset
classes, and rebalancing toward policy target allocations, the Organization expects to enhance real market value.

Rebalancing asset allocations to policy targets is essential for maintaining the risk profile of this policy. When funds
exceed established ranges, a rebalancing occurs, generally not more frequently than quarterly. Funds are diversified
both by asset class and within asset class in accordance with the following guidelines: 60%-70% in equity securities,
alternate investments and real estate, and 30%- 40% in fixed income funds (bonds and cash equivalents),

The Organization has chosen not to manage its underlying assets directly, but utilizes independent investment
managers to do so. The Finance and Investment Committee of the Organization meets twice annually with the
investment managers to review and discuss the management of the Endowment Funds.

The total fund balance is comprised of both marketable securities and other assets and liabilities of the Endowment
Funds.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Organization’s Endowment Funds, by net asset classification, for the years ended December 31, 2019

and 2018 are sumnmarized as follows:

Although substantially all of the assets of the Endowment Fund are invested in marketable securities, the category
Marketable Securities on the balance sheet also includes Centificates of Deposit with original maturities over 90 days

2019
Board Designated Land Trust
Without Donor With Donor
Description Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment Fund, Beginning of Year $ 2,141,866 1,571,580 $ 3,713,446
Investment Gain 391,067 280,450 671,557
Contributions - 93473 93473
Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure {80,000} (56,619} (136,619)
Endowmgent Funds, End of Year 3 2,452,933 1,888,924 4341857
2018
Board Designated Land Trust
Without Donor With Donor
Description Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment Fund, Beginning of Year 3 2,344,041 1,647,722 5 3991763
Investment Loss (122,175} {113,955) {236,130)
Contributions - 87,770 82,770
Apprapriation of Assets for Expenditure {%0,000) (49,957) {129.957)
Endowment Funds, End of Year $ 2,141 866 1,571,580 3 3713446

and funds collected as part of the Crossroads Campaign but not yet spent.

NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS AND PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Accounts and long-term pledges receivable consist of the following amounts due to the programs and funds noted

below:

Land Policy and Planning
Land Trust Endowment Funds

Clean Water Program
Land Conservation Program

Other
Total

Accounts Receivable

2019 2018

$ 50,000 $ -
8,652 17,952
54,793 59,730
12,150 10,400
25,000 32,500
S 150,595 3 120,582

1<



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS AND PLEDGES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Accounts Receivable

2019 2018
Land Conservation Program, Net $ 28560 § 37620
Land Policy and Planning, Net 48,780 -
Total § 71341 $ 37,620

During 2018, the Organization launched the “Crossroads Campaign” with a goal of $7 million, with $3 million in
donations and $4 million in planned gifts. At the close of the campaign in 2019, the Organization exceeded its goals
with $3.6 million in donations and $4.6 million in planned gifts. Of the $3,558,379 in donations, $2,922,496 was
received in cash, marketable securitics and real property. The remaining pledges receivable are due as follows:

Pledges Receivable
2019 2018
Due in 2018 3 - $ 20,500
Due in 2019 75,198 323,542
Due in 2020 406,273 340,545
Due in 2021 145,937 67,195
Due in 2022 8,475 8,000
635,883 759,782

Less Discount to Net Present Value

of 2.5% peryear - (3,967 (11,367)
Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (12,000) -
Campaign Pledges Receivable, Net 619,916 748415
Less Current Portion {481,472) {344,042)
Portion Included in Long-Term
Campaign Pledges ReceivablesNet  § 138444  § 404,373

The carrying amount of campaign pledges approximate fair value because the pledges have been discounted to present
value. Also, the organization has recorded a $12,000 allowance for doubtful accounts.
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GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 7- ACCOUNTS AND PLEDGES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

During 2018, the Organization also received a $50,000 pledge from Daniel-Mickel Foundation for a Critical Lands
Grant, The grant is to be received over a period of five years. The remaining grant receivable is due as follows:

2019 2018
Due in 2019 g - $ 10,000
Due in 2020 10,000 10,000
Due in 2021 10,000 10,000
Due in 2022 10,000 10,000
Due in 2023 10,000 10,000
40,000 50,000

Less Discount to Net Presemt Value

of 2.5% per year {1,440) (2.380)
Critical Lands Grant Receivable, Net 38,560 47.620
Less Current Portion Included in

Accounts Receivable {10,000) (10,000)
Portion Included in Long-Temm
Accounts Receivable, Net $ 28,560 b 37.620

During 2019, the Organization also received a $150,000 pledge from the Jolley Foundation for a Shaping Growth in
Greenville County grant. The grant is to be received over a period of three years. The remaining grant reccivable is

due as follows:

Due in 2020

Due in 2021

Less Discount to Net Present Value
of 2.5% per year

Critical Lands Grant Receivable, Net

Less Current Portion Included in
Accounts Receivable

Portion Included in Long-Term
Accounts Receivable, Net

an

2019

$

g

50,000
50,000

140,000

(1,220)

98,780

{50,000}

48,780
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2013

NOTE 8 - FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Grants with donor restrictions received in 2019 and 2018 are comprised of the following:

Major Grants 2019 2018
Shaping Growth - Greenville, net discount $ 237,046 £ 75640
Tyger River Section 319 Grant 78,153 83,639
Oconee County Land Conservation 75,000 500
Sea Change - Energy and Pipeline Initiatives 45,000 50,254
Lake Keowee Watershed-Based Plan 26,435 -
3820 Creek Section 319 Grant 21,376 30,232
Saving Lake Greenwood 7,000 -
Reconnecting People with Rivers 4,122 12,715
Campaign for Critical Lands, net discount 940 47,620
Bike Share - 30,000
Other Grants
Other Land Policy And Planning Restricted Grants 27,000 -
Upstate Voice for SC Energy Efficiency 15,000 -
Land Trust Restricted Grants 11,000 25,000
Citizen Planning Academies 10,000 -
M iscellancous 14,0600 13,300
Jones Gap & Paris M ountain Conservation - 20,000
Missing Middie Affordable Housing - 14,000
Conservation Bank Funding - 7,000
¥ 571207 $ 409,900

In 2019, the Organization completed work under two major grants, continues work under seven major grants and
received one additional major grant. The work finded by these major grants is described below.

Lake Keowee Watershed-Based Plan — New
The Organization is a sub-grantee of the Lake Keowee Source Protection Team’s $49,000, DHEC reimbursement
grant. The Organization will prepare a watershed-based plan for two sub-watersheds of the Keowee River-Lake

Keowee and the Little River. The watershed-based plan will identify sources of bacteria, sediment, and bioclogical
pollutants in these basins and devise strategies to mitigate these pollutants and improve water quality.

i
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GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 20138

NOTE 8 - FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)
Lake Keowee Watershed-Based Plan — New (Continued)

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity. In addition to the $26,435 in total grants below, there is
$22,565 available in uneamed reimbursement grant funds.

Inception

Through

12731417 2018 2019 Tuotal
Gramts 3 - - 26435 % 26435
Direct Expenses - - 26,435 26435
Change in Net Assets $ - - - % -

Shaping Growth in Greenville — In Progress

Since 2017, the Organization has received $408,905 to promote land use planning and policy in Greenville County
and its municipalities. One of the objectives is to facilitate land use policy training for local government staff &
officials, practitioners and citizens highlighting land-use solutions likely to address issues related to affordable
housing, public transportation and sprawl. Another objective is to provide grassroots organization and assistance to
empower Greenville County citizens in the land use planning process. Grants were awarded as follows:

Grantors Total Grants
Jolley Foundation $ 240,000
Hollingsworth 150,000
New Belgivm 5,000
Cormmunity Foundation 5,000
Greenville Housing Fund 5,000
Orther Grants 3,905
Total % 408,905
The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.
Inception
Through
1253117 2018 2019 Total
Grants $ 95,000 75,640 238,265 5§ 408,905
{Discount Long Term Recevable) - - (L219) {1,219
Fund Transfers in - 1.948 - 1,948
Direct Expenses 673 57,509 120,439 178,621
Change in Net Assets 3 94327 20079 116,606 § 231,012

ok
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GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 8 - FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)
Oconee County Land Conservation and Stewardship — In Progress
Since 2017, the Organization has been awarded $125,500 to expand land conservation outreach, strengthen

conservation stewardship, and form cost-sharing partnerships in Oconee County, South Carolina. A listing of the
grants follows:

Grantors Total Granis
Pete and Sally Smith Foundation 5 125,000
Lake Kcowee Source Water Protection team 500
Total $ 125,500
The table below details the annual and grant 1o dale activity.
Inception
Through
1231417 HIR 2019 Total
Grants $ 50,000 500 75000 S 125500
Direct Expenses 243 39,059 8,797 48,099
Change in Net Asseis $ 49,757 (38,559) 66,203 S 77401

Sea Change — In Progress

Since 2017, the Organization has been awarded grants in the amount of $144,300 to support Upstate Forever's pipeline
and renewable energy policy initiatives, reauthorization of the South Carolina Conservation bank and wetland
mitigation across the state. These efforts included working with a broad coalition to bring about statewide policy
change supporting clean energy and development of a 4-part webinar series entitled "Natural Gas Pipelines 101 - What
You Need to Know Before One Comes Through Your Community™.

Grantors

Tumer Foundation
Oak Hill

Other incoms
Total

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.

Grants

Qther income

Direct Expenses

Transker in from Unrestricted funds
Change in Net Assets

Total Grants
$ 50,000
94,300
254
$ 144,554

Inception
Through
12531117 2018 2019 Total
5 49,300 50,000 45,000 3 144,300
- 254 - 254
4,713 91,554 44.912 141,179
2,730 8,027 10,756
$ 44,587 {38,570) 8114 5 14,131
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 8 - FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)

Tyger River Implementation Praject (Section 319 Grani) - In Progress

The Organization has reccived $77,000 from local water districts and $343,454 from the South Carolina Department
of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC) to implement the recommendations from our completed watershed-
based plan for three sub-watersheds of the Tyger River Basin to reduce nonpoint source pollution in this region.
Partnering with three local water districts, the Organization is working to install a variety of implementation measures
{e.g., septic system repairs, livestock fencing, drip irrigation, conservation easements} to reduce bacteria, sediment
and nutrient pollution in the watersheds over a three-year period. The local grants and DHEC govemment

reimbursement grants are listed as follows:
Grantors
Departtnent of Health and Environmental Control -
Watershed Base Plan
Depantment of Health and Environmental Control —
Implementation Plan

Greer Commission of Public Works (CPW)

Startex Jackson Welford Duncan Water District (SIWD)

Woadruif Roebuck Water District (WRWD)
Total

Total Grants

3 40,939

302,515
32,000

30,000

15,000

$§ 420,454

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity. In addition to the $184,333 in total grants below, there

is an additional $236,121 available in uneamned reimbursement grant funds.

Inception
Through
12731117 2018 19 Total
Total Grants 5 22,541 83,639 78,153 & 184,333
Dircct Expenses 15,208 36,902 77,906 130,016
Transfer in from other funds 931 858 1,789
Change in Net Assets g 7,333 46,737 1LL10S 3 56,106

Campaign for Critical Lands — In Progress

In 2017 and 2018, the Organization received $130,000 in grants to provide financial support for closing conservation
easements. Through a partnership with Furman University, the Organization has identified and mapped the most
critical lands that influence water quality in the Upstate region. Conserving these areas with voluntary conservation
easements will protect our drinking water supply, build capacity for future growth, and conserve the lands needed to

support the region’s burgeoning local food economy.

Grantors

Greenville Women Giving
Daniel-M ickel Foundation
Tetal

Total Grants
] 80,000
50,000
5 130,000

——————
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 8 - FUNDS WITH BONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)

Campaign for Critical Lands — In Progress (Continued)

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.

Inception
Through
123117 2018 2019 Total
Grants 5 80,000 50,000 - $ 130,000
{Discount Long Term Recevable) - (2,380) 940 (1,440
Direct Expenses 5,706 24,940 8,205 38,851
Change in Net Assets $ 74,294 22,680 (7.265) 3 89,709

Reconnecting People to Rivers Initiative Grants — In Progress

In2014, the Organization launched a multi-year initiative to reconnect people to rivers. Coordinating with stakeholders
throughout the region, the initiative created blueway maps and coordinated a statewide website highlighting river
recreation and paddling opportunities. Additionally, it helped to develop the SC Adopt-a-Stream voluntcer water
quality monitoring program to engage citizens in the health of local rivers and provide much needed water quality
data. The Organization has raised $334,593 including a $100,000 challenge grant from the Callie and John Rainey
Foundation and a $95,000 reimbursement grant from SC Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to fund this work.

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity. In addition to the $290,798 in total revenue below, there
is an additional $46,161 available in uneamned reimbursement grant funds from SCDNR. The ending balance of $858
was transferred to another clean water project.

Inception

Through

123117 2018 2019 Total
Grants $ 2673847 12,716 4,122 § 284,685
Other income 6,113 - - 6,113
Total Revenue 273,960 12,716 4,122 290,798
Total Expenses 253,116 32,702 4,122 289,940
Transfer out to Tyger Implementation (858) (858)
Change in Net Assets $ 20,844 {19,986) (858) 8 -

Saving Lake Greenwood — In Progress

Since 2016, the Organization received $97,000 in grants from FujiFilm Manufacturing U.S.A., Inc., and $11,337 in
other income to improve water quality throughout the Reedy River and Lake Greenwood. The work includes:

¢ Participation in the Reedy River Water Quality Group, a comprehensive stakeholder effort focused on
reducing nutrient levels throughout the Reedy River watershed.

¢ Advocating to improve development and land use regulations 1o reduce pavement requirements and allow
for low impact development/green infrastructure storm water solutions.

¢ Producing easy-to-understand report cards for major rivers and lakes across the Upstate to address water

quality conditions and concerns.
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NOTE 8 - FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)

Saving Lake Greenwood — In Progress (Continued)

= Coordinating educational events to draw public interest in the value of healthy rivers and lakes.
s [nstzalling hydration stations in downtown Greenwood to encourage use of reusable water bottles.

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity,

Inception
Through
1213117 2018 2019 Total

Grants $ 90,000 - 7.000 3 97,000
Other income 9,677 97 1,563 11,337
99,677 97 8,563 108,337
Direct Expenses 44,927 24,425 22,555 91,907
Changg in Net Assets 3 34,750 {24,328) (13,992) § 16,430

Watershed-Based Plan and Implementation for the Three and Twenty Creek (Section 319 Grant) — Completed

In 2018, the Organization received a $46,608 reimbursable grant from the South Carolina Department of Health and
Environmental Control {DHEC) and $5,000 from Anderson Regional Joint Water System to prepare a watershed-
based plan for Three and Twenty Creek, in the Savannah River Basin. The plan targets bacteria, sediment and nutrient
pollution from nonpoint sources and devises strategies to mitigate the threats and improve water quality. The local

grant and the DHEC reimbursable grant are listed below:

Grantors

Department of Health and Environmental Control

(DHEC)

Anderson Joint Regional Water District (AJRWD)

Total

Tota ants
% 46,608
5,000
$ 51,608

The project was successfully completed in 2019; the net deficit was covered with unrestricted funds.

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.

[nception

Through

123117 2018 2019 Total
Grants s - 30,232 21,376 § 51,608
Direct Expenses 26,705 25,198 51,903
Change in Net Assets 3 - 3,527 (3.822) §  (295)

P&
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 8 — FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)

Bike Share Program - Completed

Since 2012, the Organization has been awarded several grants to purchase, install and operate a bike share system in

Greenville as follows:

Grantors
Greenville Health System (“GHS™)

Greenville Transit Authority (“GTA™)

Greenville County Department of Parks, Recreation and
Tourism District (“GCPRT")

Other Grants
Total

Total Grants

380,000
129,658

35,000
24,375
569,033

_————

The system, launched in 2013, provided alternative transportation to workers, residents, and visitors in downtown
areas.

After six years of operating the Greenville bike share system, the organization decided to give up the reins as bike
share operator. The program ceased operation in November 2019 and transferred ownership of the equipment to the
manufacturer, BCycle, LLC in January 2020. BCycle LLC is considering operating the program themselves in
Greenville. See Note 16 for further discussion.

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.

Inception
Through
121417 2018 2019 Total
Revenue
Grant from GTA 3 129,658 - - $ 129,658
Grant from GHS 350,000 30,600 - 330,000
Grant from GCPRT 35,000 - - 35.000
Grants - Other 24,375 - - 24,375
Total Grants 539,033 30,000 - 569,033

Bike Share M emberships and Sponsorships 144,368 33,843 29433 207,644
In-Kind Contribution 31,270 - - 31,270
Net Transfers (748) - - (748)
Total Support and Revenue 713,923 63,843 29,433 307,199
Diirect Expenses 470,265 93,770 03,463 657,498
Change in Net Assets 3 243,658 (29,927) (64,030} § 149,701

Included in the change in total net asscts is the net valuc of the bike share cquipment at December 31, 2019 of $106,897 and the remaining cash
balance.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 8 —- FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)

South Pacolet Watershed Area Long Range Plan - Completed

In 2017, the Organization received a $25,000 grant from Spartanburg Water to develop a streamlined and cost-
effective plan to protect the North and South Pacolet Watersheds. The project focused on identifying and prioritizing
land that, if developed, would have a disproportionate impact on water quality and was completed in 2018.

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.

Inception

Through

12/31/16 2017 2018 Total
Grants $ - 25,000 - $ 25,000
Direct Expenses - 12,608 12,392 25,000
Change in Net Assets by - 12,392 (12,392} § -

Preserving Our Natural and Rural Heritage - Completed

In 2017, the Organization received a $25,000 grant from the Daniel Mickel Foundation to preserve our natural
heritage. The program includes educating focal Greenville County leaders on the results of the Shaping Our Future
study with the ultimate goal of improving land use policies to pretect our most critical natural resources. The project
was successfully completed in 2018; the net deficit was covered with unrestricted funds.

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.

Inception

Through

12131/16 2017 2018 Total
Grants ¥ - 25,000 - 3 25000
Direct Expenses - 14,499 11,386 25,885
Change in Net Assets £ - 10,501 (11,386) 8 {885)

Mary Black Active Communities 2018 — Completed

In October 2017, the Organization received a $50,075 grant from the Mary Black Foundation to build capacity at a
grassroots level and among elected/appointed officials and public-sector staff to transform built-environments in
Spartanburg County and create places where residents can safely and conveniently integrate physical activity and
healthy eating into daily life routines. The grant period is from November 1, 2017 to October 31, 2018. The project
was successfully completed in 2018; the net deficit was covered with unrestricted funds.
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UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 8 — FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)
Mary Black Active Communities 2018 — Completed (Continued)

The table below details the annual and grant to date activity.

Inception
Through
12/31/16 2017 2018 Total
Grants 3 - 50,075 - % 50,075
Direct Expenses - 5,750 44,775 50,534
Change in Net Assets 5 - 44,316 (44,775) $ {459)

South Carolina Conservation Bank - Completed

The Organization did not receive funds from the South Carolina Conservation Bank (SCCB) in 2019 nor 2018. In
May of 2018 the SCCB was made a permanent state agency and has been reorganizing, it is anticipated that new
applications will be submitted in 2020,
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UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 8 — FUNDS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)
Total Funds with Donor Restrictions

The Organization has remaining balances in the following funds with donor restrictions as of December 13, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

Major Grants

Shaping Growth - Greenville s 23).013 s 114,406
Bike Share 149,701 213,730
Cconee County Land Censervation 77,401 11,198
Tyger River Section 319 Grant Match 56,106 55.000
Campaign for Critical Lands £9.709 96,973
Quality of Life Initiative 22,174 -
Saving Lake Greenwood 16,430 30,422
Sea Change - Energy and Pipeline Initiatives 14,131 5,599
Planning Academies 7.553 -
3&20 Section 319 Grant - 3,527
Reconnecting People with Rivers - 858
Other Grants

Land Trust Endowment Funds (see note 6) 674,837 440,966
North M ain Park 125,531 130,815
MNorth Saluda Watershed 115,654 115,654
Barr Family Pledge, Water Programs 85,112 100,000
Qconce Forever 15,007 15,166
Comell Bird 5,000 -
Land Trust Restricted Grants - 21,381
Rockerfeller Pipclines - 5,568
100 and Counting - 2,204
Rocky River - 22,948
Jones Gap & Paris M ountain Conservation - 12,479
Missing Middle Affordable Housing - 619
Miscellancous 7,327 7.556
Total $ 1,692,686 § 1,407,069

Transfers Between Funds
The Organization transferred $329,202 and $56,642 from funds without donor restrictions to donor-restricted funds

10 cover program activities for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Included in the 2019
transfer is $318,680 of campaign funds in support of campaign initiatives.
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UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 9 - LAND HELD FOR RESALE

In fiscal year 2019, the Organization was gifted 115 acres of property in Oconee County. The majority of the property
has a conservation easement on it which is held by Oconee County Soil and Water District. The Organization has
conservatively valued this asset at the tax value ($501,300), and it has no significant carTying costs associated with
the property. The property was listed for sale in November 2019.

NOTE 10 - PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

A summary of property and equipment is as follows:

2019 2018
Property b £33,097 b3 833,097
Furniture 18,235 10912
Egquipment 8,256 8,256
Bike Share Equipment 289,320 289,320
Total Property and Equipment 1,148,908 1,141,585
Less Accumulaied Depreciation {413,388) (364,446)
Propenty and Equipment, Net 3 735,520 $ 777,139

NOTE 11 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS

On February 15, 2017, the Spartanburg office moved to new rental space at $1,028 per month. The lease expired in
February 2020, and the new monthly rate is $1,091. Rent expense was $12,625 and $12,340 for the years ending
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 12 —- CONTINGENCIES

The Organization is dependent upon grants, contracts, and contributions. The Organization must apply for renewals
of grants and contracts. Funding is subject to increases or decreases at the discretion of the contractors, grantors or
donors.

The Organization’s costs incurred under its govemmental grants are subject to audit by government agencies.
Management believes that disallowance of costs, if any, would not be material to the financial position or changes in
net assets of the Organization.

NOTE 13 - CONSERVATION EASEMENT INSURANCE

The Organization is enrolled with the Terrafirma Risk Retention Group LLC, which provides insurance coverage for
enforcement and defense of conservation easements under the terms of that policy.

NOTE 14 - CONCENTRATION OF MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS

In 2019, the Organization received 55.95% of its total unrestricted campaign pledges, contributions and membership
revenues from five members. In 2018, the Organization received 64.07% of its total unresiricted campaign pledges,
contributions and membership revenues from three members.



UPSTATE FOREVER
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 15 - CONSERVATION EASEMENTS

At December 31,2019, the Organization had conservation easements on 123 sites in upper South Carolina and westemn
North Carolina. A summary of conservation easements signed in 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Value Paid / Estimated
Easement Value of Development
County/State Acreage Rights Relinguished
Balance at December 31, 2017 21,130 3 91,505,746
Greenville, Pickens, Cherokee, and
Oconee Counties, South Carolina
Total Easements Completed 2018 893 3,921,086
Balance at December 31, 2018 22,023 95,426,832
Greenville, Oconee, Cherokee, Polk and
Union Counties, South Carolina
Total Easements Completed 2019 1,623 3,812,604
Grand Tatal at December 31, 2019 23,646 3 99,239,436

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2020, the Organization transferred ownership of its Bike Share Program to BCycle, LLC as BCycle, LL.C
is considering operating the program themselves in Greenville. Per the agreement, the transfer inctudes all assets
related to the Bike Share Program, including bikes, dock stations, etc. As a result of the transfer of the BikeShare
assets to a new operator in January 2020, the Organization will recognize a loss of approximately $107,000 on this
transfer in fiscal year 2020.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic.
The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has resulted in a significant impact on the financial markets. The
Organization’s marketable securities were affected by significant decline in the equity markets but is well-positioned
with adequate cash reserves to weather the storm and continue all operations and program activities. At the current
time, there is no material effect to the organization to continue to fund operations at full capacity. The Organization
is adapting to the new culture of business and reaching members and grantors. As of March 18, 2020, the total
marketable securities were valued approximately as $5,100,303.

The financial statements were issued on March 18, 2020 and subsequent events have been evaluated through that date.
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2021 Budget, Total Restricted and

Unrestricted

Ordinary Revenue/Expense
Revenue
Interest lncome
Contributions Income
Special Evants
Grants
Membership Dues
Miscellaneous Income
Program Fees
Total Revenue
Fund Transfer/in
Transfer-in Marjorle Schmidt
Transfer«<in Campaign
Fund Transter/ln - Endowmants
Total Fund Transfer/ln
Total Funds Available
Expense
Payrell Costs
Salariss
Employee Benefits
Payroll Tax Expense
Payrall Service
Total Payrolt
ABocation of Overhead
Allocation Trsfd Out
Conservation Easements
Consultants
Computar
Insurance
Maeting and Conference Expenses
Organizational Dues
Other Event Expanses
Printed Matorials
Rapairs and Maintenance
Sponsorship Expenses
Supplies and Equipment
Talacommunications
Travel
Other Expansos
Accounting
Advertising
Bank Charges
Copier
Education/Training
Licenses and Fees
Postage & Mailing
Records Mgmt
Rent
Special Event Expenses
Subseriptions
Taxes
Utilities
Total Other Expanses
Total Expanse
Net Ordinary Income
2020 Carry-Over inte 2021
2021 Net Income

With Donor  Without Donor Total 2021
Restrictions Restrictions Budget
0 17,000 17,000
6,000 75,000 81,000
0 0 0
409,428 0 409,428
D 450,000 450,000
0 800 800
15,500 4,000 18,500
430,928 546,800 977,728
0 0
267,800 152,813 420,613
200,212 150,004 350,212
50,000 80,000 130,000
518,012 382,813 500,825
948,940 529,613 1,878,553
689,685 574,535 1,264,220
40,691 33,898 74,589
52,761 43,952 96,713
0 4,000 4,000
783,137 656,384 1,439,522
104,686 97,580 102,275
0 {262,275) {202,275)
120,000 o 120,000
75,562 125,000 204,562
13,140 27,166 40,308
0 25,060 25,000
15,250 5,000 20,250
3,950 2,300 6,250
0 0 o
1,547 37,240 39,787
2,501 13,860 16,361
2,500 2,250 4,750
3,306 9,700 13,006
800 18,560 19,360
16,732 3,300 20,032
0 14,000 14,000
2,000 2,000 4,000
0 31,000 3,000
0 5,860 5.860
1,750 21,000 22,750
1,351 550 1,901
3,327 10,225 13,552
o 1,500 1,500
0 12,648 12,648
8,500 23,500 32,000
510 250 760
0 500 s00
0 6,550 6,550
17,438 101,583 113,021
1,161,549 926,658 2,088,207
-212,609 2,955 -209,654
465,042 0 465042
253,433 2,955 255,388
Management Fundraising Total
5 75,934 § 302,176 $ 378,100
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